II.

III.

VL

VIIL

VIIL

CITY OF BELTON
CITY COUNCIL
PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING
TUESDAY, JULY 12,2016 — 7:00 P.M.
CITY HALL ANNEX
520 MAIN STREET
AGENDA

PUBLIC HEARING — 7:00 P.M.

Boardwalk at Belton
A public hearing to receive public input regarding the proposed termination of the Boardwalk

at Belton Tax Increment Financing Plan, generally located east of I-49, south of 155% Street,
and north of 162™ Street.

ADJOURN PUBLIC HEARING
CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - COUNCILMAN SAVAGE

ROLL CALL

CONSENT AGENDA

One motion, non-debatable, to approve the “recommendations” noted. Any member of the
Council may ask for an item to be taken from the consent agenda for discussion and separate

action.

A. Motion approving the minutes of the June 28, 2016, City Council regular meeting.

Page 7

B. Motion approving sealing and stripping the asphalt parking lots by Seal-O-Matic of

Kansas City in the amount of $6.417.20. which was approved in the FY17 Budget.

Page 13

C. Motion canceling the August 2, 2016 City Council Work Session due to National Night
Out.

PERSONAL APPEARANCES

ORDINANCES

A. Motion approving the final reading of Bill No. 2016-75:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI THROUGH

ITS POLICE DEPARTMENT TO RENEW A MAINTENANCE /SERVICE

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avgilable for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office,
506 Main Street, Belton, MO, 64012.



CONTRACT FOR THE TELEPHONE HARDWARE MAINTENANCE AND
REPLACEMENT WITH DICE COMMUNICATIONS.

Paperwork previously distributed.

B. Motion approving the final reading of Bill No. 2016-77:
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 40. USE-SPECIFIC STANDARDS—
RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, OTHER OF THE BELTON _ UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE BY AMENDING SECTION 40-3 SPECIAL USES.

Paperwork previously distributed.

C. Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2016-78:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURL THROUGH
ITS FIRE DEPARTMENT, TO APPROVE THE MAINTENANCE AND SERVICE
AGREEMENT WITH PHYSIO- CONTROL, INC. TO PROVIDE MAINTENANCE
AND SERVICE TO THE DEPARTMENT’S SIX DEFIBRILLATORS.

Paperwork attached.
Page 27 [_]Pass [ ]Fail

D. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-79:

AN _ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING COMMISSION OF BELTON, MISSOURL DECLARING
THE REDEVELOPER, SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C.. IN DEFAULT OF ITS
OBLIGATIONS: TERMINATING THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: TERMINATING THE
REDEVELOPMENT _AREA AND ALL REDEVELOPMENT _PROJECTS
CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN: TERMINATING THE DESIGNATION OF
SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C. AS REDEVELOPER OF THE BOARDWALK AT
BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN AND ALL REDEVELOPMENT
PROJECT AREAS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN: AND TERMINATING THE
TIF CONTRACT BETWEEN SOUTHVIEW PLAZA. L.L.C. AND THE CITY FOR
THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT
FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN.

Paperwork attached.
Page 47 [ ]Pass [ |Fail

On June 15, 2016, the Belton Tax Increment Financing Commission held a public
hearing on the proposed termination of the Boardwalk at Belton TIF. The TIF
Commission voted unanimously to recommend termination of this TIF.

E. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-80:
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO
CHAPTER 8 — COURTS AND JAILS, ARTICLE Il - MUNICIPAL COURT, SECTION

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avgilable for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office,
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012.



8-88 - JURY TRIALS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI.

Bill Marshall, City Prosecutor, will be present for discussion and to answer any questions.

Paperwork attached.

Page 75 [ ]Pass [ _]Fail

F. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-81:
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 19 — STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND
OTHER PUBLIC PLACES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES AND CHAPTER 34 -
STREETS AND SIDEWALKS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE TO
CREATE A CONSOLIDATED AND COMPLETE CHAPTER 19 - STREETS,
SIDEWALKS. RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES OF THE CODE
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI.

Paperwork attached.

Page 79 [ ]Pass [ _]|Fail

G. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2016-82:
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPENDIX A — SCHEDULE OF FEES AND
CHARGES, PART II. — UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT CODE AND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES AND CHAPTER 36 —
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE
CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI TO REFLECT THE CORRECT NOMENCLATURE,
FEES AND CHARGES RELATED TO PUBLIC WORKS ENGINEERING ITEMS
INCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMITTING, SANITARY SEWER IMPACT FEES,

AND ENGINEERING REVIEW FEES.

Paperwork attached.

Page 179 [ ]Pass [ _]Fail

H. Motion approving both readings of Bill No. 2016-83:
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE RE-APPROPRIATION & REVISION OF THE
FISCAL YEAR 2017 ADOPTED CITY BUDGET BY ADDING A CERTIFIED

BUILDING OFFICIAL.

Paperwork attached.

Page 203 [ ]Pass [_]Fail
IX. RESOLUTIONS

A. Motion approving Resolution 2016-27:
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PUBLIC WATER LINE EXTENSION AT

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avajlable for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office,
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012.



THE CORNER OF 163*” STREET AND GIVAN AVENUE, COMMONLY
KNOWN AS THE ARVEST BANK DEVELOPMENT.

Paperwork attached.

Page 213 [ ]Pass [ _]Fail

-B. Motion approving Resolution 2016-28:

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT #1 WITH BURNS &
MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY. INC. IN A NOT-TO EXCEED AMOUNT
OF $45.000 TO PERFORM EVALUATION AND ENGINEERING FOR THE CITY’S
NEW COMPOSTING PROGRAM.

Paperwork attached.
Page 219 [ ]Pass [ _]Fail

C. Motion approving Resolution 2016-29:
A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT #1 WITH OLSSON
ASSOCIATES., INC. IN A NOT-TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $30.680 TO PROVIDE
STORMWATER PROGRAM SUPPORT.

Paperwork attached.
Page 233 [ JPass [ ]Fail

D. Motion approving Resolution 2016-30:

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT #18 WITH TRANSYSTEMS
CORPORATION IN A NOT-TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $10.798 TO DEVELOP A
TRAFFIC DATA MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND SUPPORT TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING.

Paperwork attached.

Page 243 []Pass [ _]Fail

X.  CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS

XI. MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS
XII. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT
XIII. MOTIONS
XIV. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Discussion of Google Fiber right-of-way management costs.

XV. ADJOURN

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avgilable for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office,
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012,



SECTION Vi
A






MINUTES OF THE
BELTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING
JUNE 28, 2016
CITY HALL ANNEX, 520 MAIN STREET
BELTON, MISSOURI

Mayor Davis called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.
Councilman Lathrop led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

Councilmembers present: Mayor Jeff Davis, Councilmen Ryan Finn, Jeff Fletcher, Gary Lathrop,
Bob Newell, Lorrie Peck, Tim Savage, Chet Trutzel, and Dean VanWinkle; Absent: None. Also
present Ron Trivitt, City Manager; Megan McGuire, City Attorney; and Patti Ledford, City

Cletk.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Councilman Trutzel moved to approved the consent agenda consisting of a motion approving
the minutes of the June 14, 2016, City Council regular meeting; a motion approving the
May 2016 Municipal Police Judge’s Report; a motion to cancel the July 5, 2016, City
Council Work Session; a motion appointing Lisa Peek to serve on the Community Advisory
Committee (CAC) of the Health Care Foundation of Greater Kansas City (HCF) beginning
July 1, 2016, for a term of three (3) years; a motion approving Resolution R2016-25: a
Resolution reappointing Holly Girgin and appointing Scott Swaggart to the Planning
Commission; a motion approving Resolution R2016-26: a Resolution appointing Tom
Macpherson and Andrew Underwood to the Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board; a motion
approving the purchase of a 2016 Ford F-250 truck from Dick Smith Ford in the amount of
$23,653 for animal control; a motion approving the purchase of a Watson Dispatch
Mercury console from Watson Dispatch in the amount of $23,797 for the Police
Department; a motion approving the purchase of a 2016 Harley Davidson Road King
motorcycle from Gail’s Harley Davidson in the amount of $16,120 for the Police
Department; and a motion approving sealing and marking the Police Station parking lot by
Seal-O-Matic in the amount of $12,962.82._Councilman Newell seconded. Mayor Davis noted
a scrivener’s error that has been corrected on item E, Resolution 2016-25, on the Planning
Commission appointment; it mentioned park board in the body of the resolution. All voted in

favor. Consent agenda approved.

ORDINANCES:

Patti Ledford, City Clerk, gave the final reading of Bill No. 2016-73: AN ORDINANCE
AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE A WATER SHUT-OFF
AGREEMENT FOR NON-PAYMENT OF SEWER SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITIES
OF BELTON AND RAYMORE, MISSOURI TO FACILITATE AND COORDINATE
PROVIDING SANITARY SEWER TO PROPERTIES ADJACENT TO THE CITY OF
BELTON. Presented by Councilman Savage, seconded by Councilman Lathrop. The Council
was polled and the following vote recorded; Ayes: 9, Councilmen Trutzel, Finn, Peek, Mayor
Davis, Councilmen Lathrop, Fletcher, Newell, VanWinkle and Savage; Noes: None; Absent:
None. Bill No. 2016-73 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2016-

4240, subject to Mayoral veto.
7



Ms. Ledford gave the final reading of Bill No. 2016-74: AN ORDINANCE APPROVING
THE VACATION OF AN UNUSED UTILITY EASEMENT AT 234 PECULIAR DRIVE
LOCATED IN THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI. Presented by
Councilman Lathrop, seconded by Councilman Trutzel. The Council was polled and the
following vote recorded; Ayes: 9, Councilmen Savage, Trutzel, Mayor Davis, Lathrop, Peek,
Fletcher, VanWinkle, Finn, and Newell; Noes: None; Absent: None. Bill No. 2016-74 was
declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2016-4241, subject to Mayoral
veto.

Ms. Ledford read Bill No. 2016-75: AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI THROUGH ITS POLICE DEPARTMENT TO RENEW A
MAINTENANCE /SERVICE CONTRACT FOR THE TELEPHONE HARDWARE
MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT WITH DICE COMMUNICATIONS. Presented
by Councilmen Lathrop, seconded by Councilman Newell. Vote on the first reading was recorded
with all voting in favor, First reading passed.

Ms. Ledford read Bill No. 2016-76: AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A BUDGET
AMENDMENT FOR THE REMAINING COSTS TO REPLACE THE 2012 HARLEY
DAVIDSON MOTORCYCLE. Presented by Councilman Trutzel, seconded by Councilman
Lathrop. Captain Swanson said the motorcycle was wrecked during training and was totaled.
Approval of this will replace it with a 2016 model. All voted in favor of the first reading.
Councilman Fletcher moved to hear the final reading. Councilman Lathrop seconded. All
voted in favor. The final reading was read. Presented by Councilman Lathrop, seconded by
Councilman Finn. The Council was polled and the following vote recorded; Ayes: 9, Councilmen
Lathrop, Newell, Finn, Savage, Peck, Fletcher, Mayor Davis, Councilmen Trutzel, and
VanWinkle; Noes: None; Absent: None. Bill No. 2016-76 was declared passed and in full force
and effect as Ordinance No. 2016-4242, subject to Mayoral veto.

Ms. Ledford read Bill No. 2016-77: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 40, USE-
SPECIFIC STANDARDS—RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, OTHER OF THE
BELTON UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE BY AMENDING SECTION 40-3 SPECIAL
USES. Presented by Councilman Trutzel, seconded by Councilman Peek. J ay Leipzig, Economic
Development Director, explained this is some clean-up items of text recommended by the
Planning Commission at their June 16 meeting and unanimously approved. All voted in favor.
First reading passed.

MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS:

Mayor Davis said he and Mayor Pro Tem Fletcher had the opportunity to take an early tour of
Fazoli’s; it’s going to be nice and it is exciting for the city.

Jay Leipzig, Economic Development Director, announced Carnegie Village had their
groundbreaking today for the expansion of their memory care unit. It is a $9 million expansion; it
will be great for the City. They are anticipating an April/May 2017 opening.

Mayor Davis mentioned there were a few homes affected by a sewer back up a few weeks ago on
Sunset Lane. One resident was temporarily evicted from her home because of the necessary
clean-up. Brad Foster, Assistant City Manager, got involved and he and his wife spent about 8
hours Saturday helping the elderly resident. Mayor Davis said he appreciates the efforts from
staff. This was a big deal; the elderly lady was ig need of help and assistance due to the sewer
back up. He was real pleased with the help she received.



CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:

Jeff Fisher, Public Works Director, said staff made a post on Facebook today pertaining to the
traffic signal on Markey and Town Center. Electricity will be off for about a week so KCPL can
get power to Menards. We will keep you posted on the progress. Mayor Davis said the police
need to be aware of this because this is a critical area for traffic.

Mayor Davis asked Fire Chief Norman Larkey about the fireworks this weekend. Chief Larkey
said all five fireworks tents are set up and inspected. They can start selling today. We pray we
have enough moisture for it not to be a fire hazard. Councilman Fletcher said Belton Emergency

Management has a fireworks tent and we should support our emergency management team.

OTHER BUSINESS:

Mayor Davis recognized a couple of Boy Scouts in the audience. Trevor Carbaugh from Troop
#111 and John Labbe from Troop #210. He said he is proud of the Boy Scout troops in northern

Cass County.

Being no further business, Councilman Lathrop moved to adjourn at 7:16 P.M. Councilman Peek
seconded. All voted in favor. Meeting adjourned.

(i)

Patti Ledford, Cltyg’ﬂélk Jeff Davis, Mayor




10



SECTION Vi
B



12



W CITY OF BELTON

7% CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM
DATE: June 28, 2016 AGENDA DATE: July 12,2016

ASSIGNED STAFF: Norman K. Larkey Sr., Fire Chief
DEPARTMENT: Fire

Approvals
[]

Engineer: [l  Dept.Dirr [] Attorney: City Manager.: ]

[ | Ordinance || ] Resolution Consent Item | [ | Change Order Motion

[] Agreement |[ ]| Discussion |[ ] FYI/Update |[ | Public Hearing | [ |

ISSUE/REQUEST

The asphalt parking lots at Fire Station #1 and Fire Station #2 need to be sealed and striped.

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION

A motion approving sealing and stipping the asphalt parking lots by Seal-O-Matic of Kansas City in

the amount of $6,417.20 which was approved in the FY17 Budget.

BACKGROUND: (including location, programs, department affected, and process issues)

The funding for the asphalt parking lot sealing and striping was approved in the FY17 Budget for
$7,000. The Fire Department added on to the Poilce Department bid process and are using the

contractor they selected.

IMPACT/ANALYSIS:

The asphalt parking lot has worn over the years and is in need of sealing and stripping to preserve the
life of each one. The new stripping will alow the department to re-work the handicap spaces and make

them ADA compliant.
FINANCIAL IMPACT
Contractor:  Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions
Amount of Request/Contract: $ 6,417.20
Amount Budgeted: $ 7,000.00
Funding Source: Capital Outlay/ Parking Lot Re-Seal
Additional Funds: $ 0.00
Funding Source: N/A
Encumbered: $ 0.00
Funds Remaining: $ 582.80
| TIMELINE: | START: | FINISH:

OTHER INFORMATION/UNIQUE CHARACTERISTICS:

13



STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
Approve recommendation by staff.

Action and Date:
LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Bid from Seal-O-Matic for Fire Station #1.
2. Warrenty Information for Fire Station #1.
3. Striping Plain for Fire Station #1.

4. Bid from Seal-O-Matic for Station #2.

5. Warrenty Information for Fire Station #2.
6. Striping Plan for Fire Station #2.

14



PAVENMENT S0OLUTIONS

Incorporated
14371 W. 122 Street e Olathe, KS 66062 ¢ (816) 741-2646 Voice o (816) 741-2711 Fax

e St s

e e e e o

FROM: _Randy Randall DATE:_June 27, 2016
TO: Fire Chief Norman K. Larkey Sr.

RE: Asphalt Improvements for Belton Fire Depart t Station 3 Mai elton 64012

This facsimile transmission contains 2 page(s), including this cover sheet.

All terms, conditions and clarifications stated within this proposal are to be included in any contract agreement
document offered for signature. Additionally, Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions,, Iric. reserves the right to negotiate
specific terms or conditions of any contract agreement offered for signature, despite pre-bid publication.

In all circumstances the work to be performed shall be first class quality by our employees skilled in their respective trade and
knowledgeable about our products and equipment being used. These procedures are a list of the major tasks to be completed to

achieve the quality of work which is expected.

Base Bid Scope:
1,465 L.F. Application of Rubberized Hot-Pour Crack Sealant.

e All parking lot surfaces shall be cleaned of debris & sediment with mechanical blowers, wire brooms & scrapers.
e All vegetation shall be removed from cracks & curb line in parking lot.

e Cracks shall be cleaned with mechanical blowers and be free of any debris/ sediment.

® Cracks shall be filled with Crafco PLS hot-rubberized crack sealant

1,236 S.Y. Two Coat Application of Asphalt Seal Coat
e Asphalt seal coat shall be “cut in” using fine bristled edge brushes in all areas where asphalt abuts concrete

curbing, sidewalk, flatwork, or existing structures.
First coat of seal coat shall be entirely squeegee applied uniformly.

e Second coat shall be applied using a spray application uniformly. {Second coat will not he applied until 1% coat
has had adequate cure time)

® Stripe parking lot with new layout.

Base Bid Total=$2,961.72

Terms & Conditions:

e Pricing requires maximum two {2) mobilization per location for all of the above proposed work as one project in the
2016 paving season. Scheduling of work is contingent upon availability of materials from supplier of record and
previous scheduling commitments of Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions.

Pricing is based off of quantities as provided; Any Additional area may incur additional costs.

Pricing Based on acceptance of Crafco PLS crack sealant.

Pricing based on project being tax exempt.

Pricing based on acceptance of Micro-pave Asphalt Emulsion.

Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions cannot be responsible for damage to existing pavement during construction

operations.

e o o @ o

15



___ PAVEMENT SOLUTIONS
[E——=————rE e Wb E e S RSeS|

Incorporated
14371 W. 122" Street o Olathe, KS 66062 e (816) 741-2646 Voice * (816) 741-2711 Fax

i e e i)

s

e

)

® Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions will not warranty work if barricades/cones are moved and/or traffic upon
pavement prior to us deeming the project complete.

e Owner is responsible for having all irrigation/ sprinkler systems off no less than 48 hours prior to work.

Owner is responsible for having all vehicles moved/ towing fee’s associated with removal of vehicles in work area.

Seal-O-Matic cannot be responsible for existing pavement failures, ground cracking, natural conditions which cause

failure.

Pricing is based on these quantities; any changes prior to work performed may incur additional cost.

Cracks 3/8” and greater will be sealed.

Alligator crack/ spider web cracking cannot/ will not be crack sealed.

Cannot guarantee existing cracking will not re-appear and/or new cracks will not appear in the future.

Cannot prevent condensation marking/ damage caused by existing ground water issues.

Cannot guarantee elimination of water holes/ bird baths.

Pricing is based on these quantities provided as a minimum; any additional area will allocate unit pricing.

If installed quantities vary -/+ 5% from bid quantity, we reserve the right to adjust our pricing.

Field measurements time’s unit prices will govern final billing.

Pricing EXCLUDES removal of cars; removal of trash dumpster/recycling bins; joint sealing between asphalt and

concrete curb; layout; staking; milling/removal of pavement other than specified ; Installation of aggregate base;

location/relocation of utilities; asphalt patching; subgrade preparation/ fine grading; subgrade finish to paving grade;

removal/ relocation of sprinkler system; repair of unmarked/moved sprinkler lines in area of construction

;backfilling; Repair of unmarked utilities; material testing; erosion control; base installation under any/all concrete;

remediation of unsuitable subgrade prior to material installation; remediation of contaminated/unsuitable material,

frozen, soft, or excessively moist sub-grade; moisture curing ; seeding; herbicide; speed bumps; bollards; wheel

stops; paving fabric; cold weather protection; protection of our installed work; field sampling or testing; builder's

risk, owner's protective, railroad, marine or flood insurance coverage; bonds; and permits.

® Fuel and/or energy surcharges for materials delivery and/or materials will be charged as additional work if imposed.
Unless alternate payment terms are agreed by both parties, payment terms to be net 30 days from date of invoice or
as specified in construction documents. Owner and/or Contractor to provide proof of financing if requested.

Signing and returning this proposal wilf constitute a contractual commitment. Lack of receipt within thirty
(30) calendar days of this “Letter of Intent”, or of contract documents for the scope of work of this proposal
as stated above, may result in this proposal being withdrawn.

Please sign below if it is your intent to enter into a contractual agreement with Seal-O-Matic Pavement
Solutions for the scope of work of this proposal and return to our attention as soon as possible.

Company:

Signature:

Printed Name & Title:

Date:

16



PAVEMENT SOLUTIONS

Incorporated
14371 W. 122" Street o Olathe, KS 66062 e (816) 741-2646 Voice o (816) 741-2711 Fax

e

i

E e

FROM: _Randy Randall DATE:_June 27,2016

TO: Fire Chief Norman K. Larkeyv Sr.
RE: Asphalt Improvements for Belton Fire Department, Station #2, 16300 N, Mullen Rd. Belton, MO 64012

This facsimile transmission contains 2 page(s), including this cover sheet.

All terms, conditions and clarifications stated within this proposal are to be included in any contract agreement
document offered for signature. Additionally, Seal-0-Matic Pavement Solutions., Inc. reserves the right to negotiate
specific terms or conditions of any contract agreement offered for signature, despite pre-bid publication.

In all circumstances the work to be performed shall be first class quality by our employees skilled in their respective trade and
knowledgeable about our products and equipment being used. These procedures are a list of the major tasks to be completed to

achieve the quality of work which is expected.

Base Bid Scope:
792 LF. Application of Rubberized Hot-Pour Crack Sealant.

All parking lot surfaces shall be cleaned of debris & sediment with mechanical blowers, wire brooms & scrapers.
All vegetation shall be removed from cracks & curb line in parking lot.

Cracks shall be cleaned with mechanical blowers and be free of any debris/ sediment.

Cracks shall be filled with Crafco PLS hot-rubberized crack sealant

2,121 SY. Two Coat Application of Asphalt Seal Coat
® Asphalt seal coat shall be “cut in” using fine bristled edge brushes in all areas where asphalt abuts concrete
curbing, sidewalk, flatwork, or existing structures.
First coat of seal coat shall be entirely squeegee applied uniformly.
Second coat shall be applied using a spray application uniformly. {Second coat will not be applied until 1% coat
has had adequate cure time)
e Stripe parking lot with new layout.

Base Bid Total=$3,456.00

Terms & Conditions:
® Pricing requires maximum two (2) mobilization per location for all of the above proposed work as one project in the

2016 paving season. Scheduling of work is contingent upon availability of materials from supplier of record and
previous scheduling commitments of Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions.

Pricing is based off of quantities as provided; Any Additional area may incur additional costs.

Pricing Based on acceptance of Crafco PLS crack sealant.

Pricing based on project being tax exempt.

Pricing based on acceptance of Micro-pave Asphalt Emulsion.
Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions cannot be responsible for damage to existing pavement during construction

operations.

17



B e e i TSP

..........

SOLIUTIONS

Incorporated
14371 W. 122" Street » Olathe, KS 66062 ¢ (816) 741-2646 Voice o (816) 741-2711 Fax

e

e P

e e et e e e i S P s i

Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions will not warranty work if barricades/cones are moved and/or traffic upon
pavement prior to us deeming the project complete.

Owner is responsible for having all irrigation/ sprinkler systems off na less than 48 hours prior to work.

Owner is responsible for having ali vehicies moved/ towing fee’s associated with removal of vehicles in work area.
Seal-O-Matic cannot be responsible for existing pavement failures, ground cracking, natural conditions which cause
failure.

Pricing is based on these quantities; any changes prior to work performed may incur additional cost.

Cracks 3/8” and greater will be sealed.

Alligator crack/ spider web cracking cannot/ will not be crack sealed.

Cannot guarantee existing cracking will not re-appear and/or new cracks will not appear in the future.

Cannot prevent condensation marking/ damage caused by existing ground water issues.

Cannot guarantee elimination of water holes/ bird baths.

Pricing is based on these quantities provided as a minimum; any additional area will allocate unit pricing.

If installed quantities vary -/+ 5% from bid quantity, we reserve the right to adjust our pricing.

Field measurements time’s unit prices will govern final billing.

Pricing EXCLUDES removal of cars; removal of trash dumpster/recycling bins; joint sealing between asphalt and
concrete curb; layout; staking; milling/removal of pavement other than specified ; Installation of aggregate base;
location/relocation of utilities; asphalt patching; subgrade preparation/ fine grading; subgrade finish to paving grade;
removal/ relocation of sprinkler system; repair of unmarked/moved sprinkler lines in area of construction
;backfilling; Repair of unmarked utilities; material testing; erosion control; base installation under any/all concrete;
remediation of unsuitable subgrade prior to material installation; remediation of contaminated/unsuitable material,
frozen, soft, or excessively moist sub-grade; moisture curing ; seeding; herbicide; speed bumps; boilards; wheel
stops; paving fabric; cold weather protection; protection of our installed work; field sampling or testing; builder's
risk, owner's protective, railroad, marine or flood insurance coverage; bonds; and permits.

Fuel and/or energy surcharges for materials delivery and/or materials will be charged as additional work if imposed.
Unless alternate payment terms are agreed by both parties, payment terms to be net 30 days from date of invoice or
as specified in construction documents. Owner and/or Contractor to provide proof of financing if requested.

Signing and returning this proposal will constitute a contractual commitment. Lack of receipt within thirty
(30) calendar days of this “Letter of Intent”, or of contract documents for the scope of work of this proposal
as stated above, may result in this proposal being withdrawn.

Please sign below if it is your intent to enter into a contractual agreement with Seal-O-Matic Pavement
Solutions for the scope of work of this proposal and return to our attention as soon as possible.

Company:
Signature:

Printed Name & Title:

Date:

18



PAVEMENT SOLUTIONS

S — L -

incorporated
14371 W. 122™ Street o Olathe, KS 66062 o (316) 741-2646 Voice o (816) 741-2711 Fax

e e e e e o P e o e e aben e sttt

L R —

!

Date: 06/28/16

To: Fire Chief Norman K. Larkey Sr.

Project: Belton Fire Dept. Station #1, 223 Main St. Belton, MO 64012

Scope of Work: Asphalt Crack Seal & Seal Coat

Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions hereby warrants all workmanship and materials provided for the above referenced
Project for a period of one (1) year from the date of substantial completion of our work.

Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions agrees to repair or replace any or all of the work which may prove to be defective in
workmanship or materials, together with any adjacent work which requires repair or replacement because of our defective
work or material. This warranty does not include normal wear and tear, or repair and replacement of materials which have
been abused, neglected, or not maintained in accordance with recommended maintenance procedures and schedules. Also
does not include existing cracking will not re-appear and/or new cracks will not appear in the future or pre-existing

natural conditions which cause failure.
CLAIMS PROCEDURE: Please submit description of claim in writing to:

Miles Jaben, President
Seal-O-Matic Pavement Solutions
14371 W 12244 St.

Olathe, KS

66062

Sincerely,
SEAL-O-MATIC PAVEMENT SOLUTIONS

19



STRIPING PLAN  FRLT STazom 4 1

20






Bhtk oF

Freg STHonN #Z

z]]eleTers










SECTION VIII
C



26



BILL NO. 2016-78 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI, THROUGH
ITS FIRE DEPARTMENT, TO APPROVE THE MAINTENANCE AND SERVICE
AGREEMENT WITH PHYSIO-CONTROL, INC. TO PROVIDE MAINTENANCE
AND SERVICE TO THE DEPARTMENT’S SIX DEFIBRILLATORS.

WHEREAS, in Fiscal Year 2014 the City Council authorized the Fire
Department to accept a Fire Act Grant to purchase four (4) heart monitor/defibrillators;

and

WHEREAS, in Fiscal Year 2015 the City Council authorized the Fire
Department to purchase two (2) heart monitor/defibrillators; and

WHEREAS, the total cost for these six (6) heart monitor/defibrillators was
$191,403; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 19 CSR 30-40.309, the State of Missouri
Department of Health and Senior Services requires Emergency Medical Service agencies
in the state that use heart monitor/defibrillators to provide for the effective maintenance,
storage, usage and replacement of its medical equipment and maintain accurate records of

equipment maintenance; and

WHEREAS, this Maintenance and Service Agreement will provide on-going
maintenance and service for the department’s heart monitor/defibrillators in order to be
compliant with state regulations and assure the medical equipment is working properly

and safely.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF BELTON, MISSOURI.

Section 1. That the City Council hereby authorizes and approves the
Maintenance and Service Agreement with Physio Control, herein attached and
incorporated as Exhibit A to this ordinance, to provide maintenance and service for the
six (6) heart monitor/defibrillators for the Belton Fire Department.

Section 2. That the Mayor is authorized to sign the Agreement on behalf of the
City of Belton, Missouri.

Section 3. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of
its passage, adoption, and approval by the Mayor.

Section 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

27



READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 12,2016

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:

Mayor Jeff Davis

ATTEST:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI)
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS
CITY OF BELTON )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly
introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the _12th day of

July , 2016, and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held the
___day of , 2016 by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:

NOES: COUNCILMEN:

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
City of Belton, Missouri

28



CITY OF BELTON

1/ CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM

DATE: June 28, 2016 AGENDA DATE: July 12,2016

ASSIGNED STAFF: Norman K. Larkey Sr., Fire Chief
DEPARTMENT: Fire

Approvals

Engineer: [ ] Dept.Dir: []  Attorney: []  City Manager.: ]
Ordinance || | Resolution | [ | Consent Item Change Order Motion
[ | Agreement |[ | Discussion |[ | FYI/Update j Public Hearing || |

ISSUE/REQUEST

Need to re-new the Maintenance and Service Agreement with Physio-Control for maintenance and
service on the department's six (6) defibrillators.

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION

An ordinance approving the Maintenance and Services Agreement with Physio-Control for
maintenance and service on the department's six (6) defibrillators.

BACKGROUND: (including location, programs, department affected. and process issues)

The department, thru a grant, purchased four (4) of these defibrillators in FY14.

The department, thru Resolution # 2014-21, also purchased two (2) of these defibrillators in FY15.

The State of Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services requires any EMS agency that uses
defibrillators to have a maintenance and service agreement in place for the defibrillators.

IMPACT/ANALYSIS:

This is an on-site Comprehensive Coverage Plan. It is a three year agreement with payments paid
annually and is in the FY17 Budget.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
Contractor:
Amount of Request/Contract: $§ 10,080
Amount Budgeted: $§ 0
Funding Source: General Fund/ Maintenance Agreement 010-3600-400-2015
Additional Funds: $ 0.00
Funding Source: N/A
Encumbered: $ 0.00
Funds Remaining: $ 27,925.58

| TIMELINE: | START: 2 | FINISH: |

\O




OTHER INFORMATION/UNIQUE CHARACTERISTICS:

These six (6) defibrillators cost approximately $191,431 to purchase new and that is approximately
$31,905.15 each.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
Approve recommendation by staff.

Action and Date:

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

Physio Control-Maintenance and Service Agreement - Exhibit A

30



EXHIBIT

A

Physio-Control, Inc
PHYSIO 11811 Willows Road NE
“nioiu P.Q. Box 97008
CUNTROL Redmond, WA 98073-8706 U.S.A.
waw.physio-control.com
tel 800.442,1142
fax 800.732.0056
To Doug McGuire Quots Number 00042572
BELTON €O Revision # 4
16300 N MULLEN RD
BELTON, MO 64012 Creuted Date 81372016
(816) 331-7969 Sules Consultant  DougSmith
dmeguired@beltonfire.org $§16-726-6330
FoB Redmond, WA
Torms Al quotes subjedt to cradi appraval and (he
following terms and conditions
NET Terms NET 30
Renewal of PB18S154

Coverage Period: 4/29/16-4/28/19
Payable in Annual Instaliments
Fax: 800-772-3340

Terrilory Code: WEMMEo

15% DISCOUNT ON ALL ELECTRODES
15% DISCOUNT ON AGCESSORIES
End User #: 20658401

Bill To#: 00284304

PO#:

“*Please provide a PO with 1he approved quots.

Expiration Cute 6/30/2016

Subtotat UsD 30,240.00

Estimated Tax UsD 0.00

Estimated Shipping & Handling UsSD 0.00
Grand Tolal UsD 30,240.00

Psicing Summary Totals

Ligt Price Toial US0D 30,240.00

Tolal Conact Discounts Amouni USD 0.00

31
Ouois Mumber: 00042572



Total Discount
Trade In Discounts
Tax + S&H

USD 0.00
USD 0.00
UsSD 0.00

————GRAND TOTAL FOR THIS-QUOTE

PHYSIO-CONTROL, INC. REQUIRES WRITTEN VERIFICATION OF
THIS ORDER. A PURCHASE DROER IS REQUIRED ON ALL CUSTOMER APPROVAL (AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE)
ORDERS 55,000 OR GREATER BEFORE APPLICABLE FREIGHT
AND TAXES. THE LUNDERSIGNED 1S AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT
THIS ORDER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND PRICES NAME
DENOTED HEREIN.

TLE

DATE

Reference Number S$C/00284304/92327

CPhysio™) axpres: mmmmmmssﬁbﬁaiumsuhmhﬂs
mmw-s order and b of any partion of he goods, sandces or subscrpSons shall confirm Buyer's acceptance of
these terms. Unless specified ohu\tischerd\ these terms constitute he complete sgreement betwaen he parties. Amendments
mmwmﬂmnmmmwormmt mbys‘eruf”mownr acknowledgment, or
ohtdmﬂinm&wwspmmtnﬂﬁldm!umsl-l by bothr
Pricing. Prices do not ir fraight 1, freight % ding fees, t-es duflas, Imnrmpmfaﬁ or any oher
simlar charge of any kind applicable fo the ds and A Sﬂuuruehxumdnmcﬂc(u&}dmﬁﬁ‘llbewnadh
addition ®© e price of he goads and ' nd Hmﬂn e amnfnvmum cata pdor 0 dolivery.
Discounts may not be combinedwith other specialterms, di s, and

Pwmmthm and sewvices shall m&tﬂlﬂbmlnlambyﬁm Uniess ofhanwise spadiisd by Physio in
wriling, he enfire payment of an Ivalcs B due Thirdy (30) days sfter tha irvolce date for deliveries In The USA, and sight drafi or
mptnu (mmwclmaumunwmmmhmam

Ovder Quantiiy. phmmunmﬂmlndwguas-rvtﬂuhruuymImthnnszooDD

Pmttulmnlty. Prysio shall indemnily Buyer and hold it harmiess from and ageinst all d o losses, and
expenses, arising out of or resulting, fom any acton by a third party against Buysr hat i basert on any claim hat he sanvices
infrings a United States gm Wt m trademark, or vioiale a trade secret or any oher proprietary right of any person or
enfity, Fhyslo)s | der wil be subject o {I)rmlvlngpmrmtuﬁummimothc mxistance of any
ciasim; (F) being nbie to, atits option, curmd he defonze and ssiiement of such cla!m (provided mat, wihout oblaining priur
writn consent of Bwar Physio will enter Into no seitlement Involving the ad ion of gdoing), and (i) receiving full
cooperationolBuyerin the defenseofany clalm
Limitation of interest. Through h.m-otm duct: ‘ ipfions, Buyer does not acquire any intarestin
any foolk s, ation, nming, pm«mmmormnumldwmmrmuusm
?l?:uﬂs or senices, and B Buycr expressly lg-m not o reverse angineer or such prod or related sofware and
nformation.
Delays. Physio will not be liable for any loss or damage of any kind due o Its failure o perorm or delays in fs p co
resuting fom an avent its reasonable conol, iIncluding bist not limited o, acts of God, [abor dispites, he ol ants of
any govemments “dﬂm-t.mmtltam delays In mmma omwtmrnlmaorpumm
Physioinabifty to obtain yauds from its usunl sources.
LimBed Warranty. Fhysio warrenls s prod and send in acc e with the terms of T2 limited warranties located at

N The remadies provided under such warmanfies shall be Buvers sole and exclusive
remedies. Flwsio makes no ather warranties, express or impied, including, without limitafon, NO WARRANTY OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND IN NO EVENT SHALL PHYSHO BE LIABLE FOR

Compiience with Confidentiality Laws. Bof parfies acinowliedge thelr rspwlvu obligafons © maintain the securiy and
mﬂm ?:'!mm.ny identiiatie health information and agree o comply with spplicable fedaraf and state health informadon
co

Complisnce with Low. The parlies agree fo comply with any and sfl laws, rulas, regulations, ficensing v ervts or star

that ara now or hereafier promuigated by any local, siate, and lsdard gwamrnml.nl aufhoriy/agency or noandﬂnghdmlmstr-ﬂe
mﬁym;mmapﬂn!omﬂ o and

HRegu! to I tion. In he -l'll 42 UQ: § 1305V 1 1) & spplicatie, Physio shall make
avaliable fo fhe '.:'.‘au'mry of he Uniied States Dq:athumt of Hulh and Human Services, he Comptrolier Ganeral of he United
States General Accounting Office, or any of their duly .lu:pyo!hnsn-rms such books, documents
and records as are towﬁlymanm-mdmﬂaﬁnfhmmofhtm.ﬂdsm provided by Physio.

No Debarment. Physio represents and warrants tet it and its direciors, oficers, and empioyees (i) are not exciuded, debamed, or
oherwise indigitle o particpate in he Federal health cars pogmms as defined in 42 USC § 1320a-7b(f); (§) have not been
convictad of a ciiminal offense releted o Fie provision of healhcare ltems or services; and () are not und er Investigeon which
may resultin Physio being sxduded from participation insuch programs.

Cholica of Law. The rghts and obligatons of Physio and Buyar related %0 he purchase snd sale of products and services
described In s document shall be govemead by the laws of tha state where Buyer is located. All costs and expenses incuired by
the prevalling parly related %6 enforcement of s rghls under this document, Induding ressonabie attomeys fees, shal be
reimburs ed by the other pany.

32
Quale Number: 00042572

USD 30,240.00



v DOV, T : Itrln! Applyto all Physio Servics Plans.
s«mm mmtm-:mmb thae spplicable Servica Plan purchased by Buayer and described at
A 7 10X for e length of 1ha subsoripiion m.ﬂmwhtdummmuu
. changes
rated “WM mm-.-umamu "“R-u
memw ancs and nsp mﬂm-mmmmh-mmufh.
mmmmwum:mmauum
Davice Befora A ot mmmmmm-mu Wuamm
Hu\mtulup“-utmﬂnmy’bmﬂmm haen-ourrert it prices prior 1 beityg coversd under &

Un '-“‘.y Bguip It Covared mant i not made wieit, Buyer
42 with tha Prysio Sendce T ., erﬁbhm&ubm“bnﬁmhsmdm Frysio resenves
be bszed on mmm:m_g!d“

ihnm - -ﬁrntmmm
senices, tuz 1 ‘m-ﬂ 1 mrnuu plus appicatie travel costs, The retum visit will bo © tha
of tha Sarvice Plen “Mm..hummudmu-mmdqﬁ. Beagyer shall be

m&b-
res posiole for reurns- murm:“u
Unuchoedulod or Ueooveored S o Buyer © be perfhrmed on Covered Equipmant which are not coversd
a Service Plan, or are outsids of d s-v]:um-lqurhm M—cmww Mowm:mn
Physio-Control's standard rates " a0 8pp bk "1 parts requiced Tor
ap il e mad 1 ths then-cument Hxt prica.
fram -] L irs, Physio will provide iy 8 losnor dewice,
Buryar # it ""‘-Iwwr:\;hm-“mdl r-.-nhtbln-'gl’hr I ths same condifon
as racsived, normalwear an mum onthe sarierof the reksm af or Phosles e
Bury Mb'ocm:nlu forth T wﬂ *p i bmmnu'-"h ‘"
ar : e .pumna the desigrated price © the oftha

& dale of termination and the :ﬂpq* wm’m’ﬂtmm
Mm-mman-dm-mmm wte.
Ho Solicstion. During the Plan g ios ‘rdbrmnﬂ)ymﬂm&uplrmmmnubmtb-:ivdv

dictt Prowics s ervices such as thote descrbad In he Senvica Plan

and ir ¥ 1yons play v Prry

. 33
Quote Number: 00042572



LIFEPAK® AED Standard Indemnification Agreement

For and in consideration of its purchase, lease or rental of this LIFEPAK AED, Physio-Control, Inc. (Physio) agrees to
indemnify, defend, save and hold harmlass the First Owner* of this LIFEPAK AED from any and all liability, loss, cost,
expenses (including without limitation reasonable costs of defense), judgments, claims, liens and demands arising
directly from personal injuries to patients which occur during the use of this LIFEPAK AED on such patients and
which are clirectly caused, and to the extent such injury is directly caused, by a design or manufacturing defact of this
LIFEPAK AED (collectively referred to as "Claims").

This indemnification commitment is conditioned on the First Qwner providing Physio with immediate written notice at
the address provided below of any Claim and any event that may result in a Claim, allowing Physio sole management
of defense and ssttlement of any Claim for which indemnification is sought, including selection of counsel, and fully
cooperating, supporting and assisting Physlo and its counsel in investigating, defending and/or setiling any such Claim.

Physio-Control, Inc.
Attention: Mail Stop 158
11811 Willows Road NE

P. 0. Box 97006
Redmond, WA 98073-9706 USA

*First Owner means the first purchaser or lessee of a LIFEPAK AED, directly or through a group purchasing arrangement, from
Physio, from a Physio corparate affiliate, or from an authorized Physio dealer, and includes Invoiced Purchaser’s corporate affiliates,
and their respective employses, officers and directors.

©2009 Physio-Control, g, Redmond, WA 98052, USA, All righls reservad,
GUR 3302425_A

34



Limited Warranty

PHYSI0

CONMTROL

US/Canada

Subject to the limitations and exclusions set forth below, the following Physio-Control products which are purchased from autherized
Physio-Control représentatives or authorized reseliers for use in the United States of America and Canada and are used in accordance
with their instructions; will be free from defects in material and workmanship appearing under normal service and use as defined below.,

Eight Years:
* New LIFEPAK CR" Plus automated external defibrillator and
internal battery system

Five Years:
¢ New LIFEPAK" 15 mionitor/defibrillator series, used in clinic
and hospital settings exclusively (with no use in mobile
applications)
» New LIFEPAK 12 defibrillator/monitor, used in clinic
dnd hospital settings exclusively {with no use in mobile
applications)

New LIFEPAK 20 defibrillator/monitor family of products,
used in clinics and hospital settings exclusively (with no use
in mohile applications)

New LIFEPAK 1000 defibrillators

New LIFEPAK EXPRESS® automated external defibrillatar and
internal battery system

Two Years:

+ CodeManagement Module™ for use with the LIFEPAK 20/20e
defibrillator/moniter

New Trainer 1000 trainer

One Year:

* New LIFEPAK 15 monitor/defibrillator series, which includes
uss in out-af-hospital and mobile applications

» New UFEPAK 12 defibrillator/monitor series, which includes
use in out-of-hospital and mobile applications

» RELP LIFEPAK 12 defibrillator/monitor series
¢ New LUCAS® Chest Compression System

» New LIFEPAK 500T trainer

* New LIFEPAK CR-T trainer

Internal Battery System for LIFEPAK 20 defibrillator/monitor
family of products

Battery charging systems and power adapters

All batteries and battery paks, excluding CHARGE-PAK"
Charging Unit

Masimo SET® Rainbow® patient cables and reusable sensors
New TrueCPR™ Coaching Device

180 Days:
s Masimo® SET SpO, only patient cables and reusable sensors

90 Days:
¢ CHARGE-PAK Charging Unit (external system) for
LIFEPAK CR Plus defibrillator

Instalied customer repair parts
All other produet accessories

30 Days:
¢ Internal paddles and internal paddle handles

35

(continued on back)



Uimited warranty tire limits begin on tfe date of delivery to the First Owner,’

Physio-Control warrants neither error-free nor interruption-free performance. The sole and exclusive remedy of the First Owner under this
Limited Warranly is repair or replacement of defective material or warkmanship-at the oplion of Physio-Controk, To qualify for the repair

or replacement, the product must have been continuously owned by the First Owner and not have been repaired or altered outside of an
authorized Physio-Control factory in any way which, in the judgment of Physio-Centrol, affects its stability and refiability. The product must
have been used in accordance with applicable operating instructions and in the intended environment or setting. The product must not
have been subjected to misuse, abuse or accident,

Physio-Control, in its sole discretion, will determine whether warranty service on the product will be performed in the field or through ship-
in repair. For field repair, this warranty service will be provided by Physio-Control at the purchaser's facliity or an authorized Physio-Control
facility during normal business hours, For ship-in repalr, all products and/or assemblies requiring warranty service should be returned to a
location designated by Ptysio-Control, frelght prepaid, and must be accompanied by a written, detailed explanation of the ciaimad failure.
Products repaired or replaced under this warranty retain the remainder of the warranty period of the repaired or replacsd Product.

Except for the Limited Warranty provided above, PHYSIO-CONTROL MAKES NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,
WHETHER ARISING FROM STATUTE, COMMON LAW, GUSTOMER OR OTHERWISE, THIS LIMITED WARRANTY SHALL BE THE
EXCLUSIVE REMEDY AVAILABLE TO ANY PERSON, PHYSIO-CONTROL IS NOT LIABLE FOR INDIREGT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING LOSS OF BUSINESS OR PROFITS) WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, OR ANY
OTHER LEGAL THEQRY,

ANY LEGAL ACTION ARISING FROM THE PURCHASE OR USE OF PHYSIO-CONTROL PRODUCTS SHALL BE COMMENCED WITHIN
ONE YEAR FROM THE ACCRUAL OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION, OR BE BARRED FOREVER. IN NO EVENT SHALL PHYSIO-CONTROL'S
LIABILITY UNDER THIS WARRANTY OR OTHERWISE EXCEED THE GREATER OF $50,000 OR THE PURCHASE FRICE OF THE
PRODUCT GIVING RISE TO THE CAUSE OF AGTION,

Products. are warrranted in conformance with applicable laws. f any part or term of this Limited Warraaty is held to be illegal, unenforceable
or in conflict with applicable law by any court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining partions of the Limited Warranty shall
not be affected, and all rights and abligations shall be construed and enforced as if this Limited Warranty did not contain the particular
part or term held to be invalid, Some geographies, including certain US states, do not allow the exclusion ar limitation of incidental or
consequential damages, so the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to you, This Limited Warranty gives the user specific legal
rights. The user may also have other rights which vary from state to state or country to country.

1 First Qwner means the first purchaser or lessee of the products fisted above, directly from Physio-Control, through a Physio-Conlrol eorporate affillate, or lrom an autherized
Physic-Control reseller, and includes the invoiced purchasar’s corporate affiiales, and their respective employses, officers dnd directors.

Physio-Eontrol wilt pass through wavranties offered by Third Party Manufaclurers,

For further information, please contact Physio-Control al 800.442.1142 (11.5.3, 800.895.5696 {Canada) or visit our wabsite at www,physio-control.com

Physio-Control Hoadquarlers Physlo-Cantrol Canada

11811 Willows Road NE Physio-Conlrol Canada Sales, Ltd.
PHYS'U Redmuand, WA 98052 7111 Syntex Brive. 3rd Flour
CONTROL vyt physio-contral.com Mississauga. ON

Cuslomer Support LSN 83

P. 0, Box 97008 ganads

Remond, WA 93073 Toll ree 800 895 5896

£ Fax 866 430 6115

Toll free BO0 442 1142
Fox 80D 426 80489

©2013 Physio-Controk. nc. All names herein are lrademarks ur reylstared tradernarks of thelr respactive owners. Masimo, the Radlcal logo. Rainbow and SET are
ieyistered Wademarks al Masimo Corporation,
GDR 3315920_C

36



PHYSIO
CONTROL

Help ensure the integrity
of your lifesaving system.

PHYSIO-CONTROL SERVICE




“| consider our technician an
integral part of our team. In
addition to his service
professionalism, he appears to
care deeply about us and the
patients we treat.”

— Physic-Contro} Service Customer




You are committed

to helping your community.

We are committed
to helping you.

At Physio-Control, we understand maintaining
emergency medical technology.

We know that every day, people rely on you—and that you raly on your
equipment. You make sure to have the best devices availabls, and you
expect them to be ready at all times. In a fast-paced environment; it is
critical they work how-and when you need them,

Now you can rely an us to fielp ensure your devices are always readly.
With a service plan from Physio-Coniral, youw'll get a dedicated equipment
manager who works as part of your team. Our experiencedl service
reprasentatives boast the longest tenure in the industry —an average of
14 years—rnaking them frue partners who understand and anticipate
your needs. Because we know when lives are at stake, you need more
than just great devices.

You need exceptional service.

“Your promipt and professional service is
the main reason we wilt continue to keep
Physio-Control as the oanly vender for our
medical electranic devices.”

— Physio-Gontrol:Service Cuslamer




No matter what type of Physio-Control devices you have,
our market-leading service plans can help protect your equipment—
pecpls who depend on that equipment.

Our service plans provids everything from
preventive maintenance and software
updates te discounts and training classes,
all giving you lhe peace of mind to do your
job with confidence.

You'll find that other manufacturers can't
match our lavel of service and experience.
Our service representatives are highly-
trained and spend approximately 1,500
hours in he field gach year, giving them the
ability to quickly identify and repair gotential
issues before they become prablerns.

The Physio-Control difference.

Whether you need service on a defibrillator
in the middle of the night or simply want

help updating your. software, your local
representative will always strive to respond
by phone within two hours and complate
your service recquest within 24 hours. After
all, we understand that hospitals work around
the clock, That's why ycu need a partner
who does. tco.

e ——



Benefits of a service plan.

Fixed Costs

A service plan allows annual costs to be fixed far budgetary
purposes. and eliminates unprecictable service costs,
Signing up at the time of purchase can tock in a lower
renewal rate for the fulure.

Training

Our training classes help educate biomedical engineers
so thay have the expertise to properly sarvice
Physio-Control devices.

Savings & Discounts

Customers with a service plan save money per device each
year, Discounts on upgracles ancl disposables help you save
money and dllow one-stop shopping for cardiac

accessory needs.

Documentation

Harct copy documentation of quality assurance inspectioni(s)
and repairs are provided to inclicate your procluct(s) meet
faclory specifications.

90% of our customers
renew their current
service plans each year.

T e T SRR e A e e e s



Choose Your Service Plan

Physlo-Control Tachnical Servics Plans are designed to provide Equipment Is properly callbrated, machanical operations-are checkad
consistent support when you need it most, No matter which program and adjusted, if nacessary, and output measurements ars verifled
yourehoose; your Technical Service Plan will provide you with: ta function properly. Electrical safety checks are also performed in
* adedicated, experienced service representative accordance with-Natlonal Fire Protection Assaciation (NFPA) guidelines,
* lalephone support _
o fixed:séivice Costs: Battery Replacement Service Plan
* 17% discount on softwara/hardware upgrades (major, standalone Means replacamnant of batterias ot a one-for-one, like-for-like basls,
version of software or the addition of features or capabillies to up 1o the number of batteries and/or equipment covered. Only
a device) batteries manufactured or distributed by Physio-Control are eligible
* 15% discount on disposables for replacement. Battery replacement is avallable upon Customer

notification to Physlo-Control of the occurrence of: (i) battery fallure
foaner devices if equipment must be remaved from seriice @s determinéd by Custorfier's pariormance testing and evaluation
for repairs in accordance with the applicable Oparating Instructions: or (i) as
written reports of actlons taken or recommended and identification recamrmendad In the applicable device’s Operating Instructions.

of any malerials replaced or recommended for replacement

Comprehensive Service Plan

Repair Plus Service Plan Cormbines the beneiits of Repalr Plus and Preveritive Mainisnance
Protects you from the expense of unplanned service calls post-waranty. Services. Comprehensive Service Includes Inspections at regularly
The service Includes repairs, Baltery Replacement Service, and parts scheduled intervals, Battery Replacement Service, parts and labor

and labor necessary to restore equipment to-manufacturer specifications.  necessary to restore equipment to manulaciurer specifications, a_nd
inspections to verify proper device callbration, mechanical operations

sardise K ' and output measurements, eleclrical safely check in accordantce with
Preventive Maintenance Plan NFPA guitielines. Software updates are provided at no cost, provided
Pravidas inspections and adjustments to maintain equipment in such updates are installed.at thie time of regularly schieduled senvices,

satisfactory operating condiition. You can decide how many quality”
Aassurance Inspections you would like per year. Inspections include
tests, measurements and a thirty-point evalualion of equipment.

Specmc Services Offered By Device

In addition to the services set forth above, equipment Is eligible for device-specific entitlernents,

ummismmm

mmmmmam

« REDFCHARGE® battory. chargir (Catalog® 11141-000115) fepat o feplacenmont of one for sach LIFEPAK 5 Monilor/
Besftliator covered by a Sarvics Pian and as determined necessary by Physio-Control

wmmmmm :5mumwammmmammmmm
mm@nwmnmmmmmmmmnawmmmm

.LfFEPAK!H Defibriliator/Monitor

® mmmmwam

mmmmmmmm}mumwmmmmm12demrma|orfmm
mwawmummmww

e mm:ape.'rnrrapboumm
wwm Replacement of fafled intemal coln cell batteres: and

- mwhwwmdmwwammm«mwmwmmvammz
‘battodes, LIFEPAK SLA batteries

MWMhWMNMWMGWWMU

- FaamhLFEPMQMWWaSmbeMWmMmbmeFWLMHMhmm
with the device Operaling Instructions or upon baltery failuro

S "




Choose Your Service Location

On-Site Service

Highfy-lralned and autherized representatives with detalled technical
knowledye and dlagnostic capabilities quickly Identify problems and
provide maintenance onisite. Where possible, repairs are made at
your facilily, with original manufacturer parls, for maximum uptime
and minimal demand on your equipmant, Services will be performed
betwean 8:00am and 6:00 pm local time, Monday through Friday,
excluding holldays. Customer is to ensure Covered Equipment
is-avallable for Services at scheduled times. Some Services may

not be completed onsite. Physio-Control will cover traval and/or
round-trip freigfit for Covered Equipment that rmust be sent to our
designated facility for repair.

Ship-In Service

For customers located at least 50 milss from a field technical sarvice
representative, ship-in service is avallable. Your devics can be
shipped to-the naarest service center for repairs and inspections, We
use only original manufaciurer parts and sarvices will be performed
at a designated Physio-Control facilily, Cuslomer is responsible for
round-trip freight for Covered Equipment.

Service Features

LOANERS. If Govered Equipment must be removed from use to
comiplete repairs, Physio-Control will strive to provide Customer
with a similar loaner device unti! the Covered Equipment is returned.
Customer assumes complete respensibility for the loaner and shall

LIFEPAK 20/20e Defibriflator/Monitor

return the loaner at Customer's expense to Physio-Control in the
same condiition as received, upon the earlier of the relurn of the
removed Covered Equipment or Physio-Control's request.

UPDATES are changes to a device lo enhance its current features,
stability or software. If Comprehensive Servigs is selected,
Physio-Control will install Updates at no additional cost, provided
such Updates are installed at the time of regularly scheduled
Services. Updates for equipmant on Repalr Plus or Preventive
Maintenanee Service, or at a time other than regularly scheduled
Comprehensive Service will be billed on a separate invoice at 20%
off the then-current list price of the Update. For all Service plans,
If parts must be replaced to accommodate Instaliation of new
soltware, such parts may be purchased at a rate of 30% off the
then-current list price.

UPGRADES are major, standalone versions of soltware or the
addition of features or capabilities to a device. For all Service plans,
Upgrades must be purchased separately and are not provided
under the plan. Upgrades are available at a rate of 17% off the then-
current list price.

Service plans do not include: supply or repair of accessories

or disposables; repair of damage caused by misuse, abuse,
abnormal operaling conditions, operator errars, acts of God,

and use of batteries, efacirades or other products not distributed
by Physia-Control; replacement ar repalr of cases; repair or
replacemant of items not originally distributed or installed by
Physio-Control; Upgrades and instaliation of Upgrades.

* Slandard detachable hard paddies repair o replacoment
* Baltery Roplacomant Servic

- mmwmammmwsmm replacement of ona (1) LIFEPAK 20/206 internal battery in
mmmmmm«mw

LI-'EPAK‘IDGDG‘WDAEJ battery
Sarvice Plan dnd as datermined necessary by Physio-Control
* Batiory Rephcement Sarvice

- FyanWmeAmmwammmmmdwmmmmxwoowmo

fechergeable battery pak-in accortiance with the the davice Operating

- quu;LFEPM1mca500AEnmadbyasummmdmbmmLﬁm1muor500
memhmmummm

dofioritor

charger repair or replacemant of one for each LIFEPAK 1000 or 500 AED coverad by a

Instructions or upon battery (alure; or
or ugon battery falure

Lm"z Chest Compression System

oo with the devica Operating lnstructions or upon battery fallure
Mdhhmdaﬂbcbwsmf
* Repiacement of suction eup:and patlent straps, if necessary

LUOAB! mastcmmmsslon System

mm meunaszdmmdwammmmofmmumszmyh

'Fbpbcemml.ofmionaparupawwlraps, it necassary

43 A it

@
')
Ié]
[=
el
O
(‘"\
G
2
a




For further information, please contact Pliysid-Control at 860.442.1142:(0.5.}, 800.895.5896 (Canada} or visit our webslte at www.physlo-coritrol.com

Physio-Control Hoadquarters Physic-Control Canadz
11811 Willows Road ME Physia-Control Canada Sales. Lid.
P H YS ' D Rodmond. WA BE0S2 7111 Synlex Drive, 3rd Floor
CONTROL www.physio-controlcom Mississauga, ON
: L3N 8G3
Customar Support Canada

P. Q, Box 97000
Rodmond, WA 88073
Tall froa B00 442 1142
Fax 800 426 8049

Toll lree 80O 805 5880
Fax 868 43¢ 68115

@2013 Physto-Conlrol, Inc.
GOR 3324740_A




SECTION VIl
D



46



BILL NO. 2016-79 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE TAX INCREMENT
FINANCING COMMISSION OF BELTON, MISSOURI, DECLARING THE
REDEVELOPER, SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C., IN DEFAULT OF ITS OBLIGATIONS;
TERMINATING THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN; TERMINATING THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA AND ALL
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN; TERMINATING THE
DESIGNATION OF SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, LL.C. AS REDEVELOPER OF THE
BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN AND ALL
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREAS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN; AND
TERMINATING THE TIF CONTRACT BETWEEN SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C. AND THE
CITY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN.

WHEREAS, the Tax Increment Financing Commission of Belton, Missouri
("Commission"), was created pursuant to the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act, Sections 99.800 to 99.865 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended
("Act"), and by Ordinance No. 95-2305 of the Board of Aldermen of Belton, Missouri adopted

on May 5, 1995; and

WHEREAS, on January 12, 2009, the Commission approved the Boardwalk at Belton
Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Plan ("TIF Plan"); and

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2009 the City Council of Belton, Missouri ("City Council"),
upon recommendation of the Commission, the City Council approved the Boardwalk at Belton

TIF Plan; and

_ WHEREAS, on April 21, 2009 the City of Belton and Southview Plaza, L.L.C.
("Redeveloper") entered into a contract to implement the TIF Plan (the "TIF Contract"); and

WHEREAS, no action has been taken by Redeveloper to implement the TIF Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper has failed to comply with the elements within the TIF
Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper has failed to comply with the requirements within the TIF
Contract; and

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2016, a Notice of Default (the "Notice of Default"),
attached hereto as Exhibit A was mailed to Redeveloper and whereby Redeveloper was provided
60 days to cure all of the defaults set out in the Notice of Default; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the affected school and other taxing districts were
notified of their right to designate representatives to sit as members of the Commission for the

47
{10480 / 64401; 708371.4 }



purpose of conducting a public hearing (the "Public Hearing") and making recommendations
with respect to the TIF Plan to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 99.830 R.S.Mo., notice of the June 15, 2016 Public
Hearing was given as follows:

Mailed notice to the taxing jurisdictions, not less than 45 days prior to the Public
Hearing, was given on April 27, 2016; and

First publication notice, not more than 30 days prior to the Public Hearing, was given
on May 20, 2016; and

Mailed notice to affected property owners, not less than 10 days prior to the Public
Hearing, was given on May 25, 2016; and

Second publication notice, not more than 10 days prior to the Public Hearing, was given
on June 10, 2016; and

WHEREAS, as of June 15, 2016, the date of the Commission hearing, no response had
been received from the Redeveloper; and

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2016, the Commission conducted the Public Hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper did not appear at the Public Hearing nor did Redeveloper
communicate in any way with the Commission or the City; and

WHEREAS, the Public Hearing was closed by the Commission on June 15, 2016; and

WHEREAS, after closing the Public Hearing on June 15, 2016, and after due
deliberation, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 06-15-16-1 ("Resolution") recommending
that the City Council of Belton, Missouri: declare the Redeveloper, Southview Plaza, L.L.C., in
default of its obligations; terminate the Boardwalk at Belton Tax Increment Financing
Redevelopment Plan; terminate the Redevelopment Area and all Redevelopment Projects
contemplated by the Plan; terminate the designation of Southview Plaza, L.L.C. as Redeveloper
of the Boardwalk at Belton Tax Increment Financing Plan and all Redevelopment Project Areas
contemplated by the Plan; and terminate the TIF contract between Southview Plaza, L.L.C. and
the City for the implementation of the Boardwalk at Belton Tax Increment Financing
Redevelopment Plan; and

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2016, the Redeveloper was given notice that the City Council
would take up and consider the recommendation of the Commission and invited Redeveloper to
attend its meeting of July 12, 2016. A copy of the July 1 notice ("Second Notice of Default") is
attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

{10480 / 64401; 708371.4 ) 48



WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Redeveloper is in default of its obligations
and that Redeveloper taken no actions to cure its default.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BELTON,
MISSOURI, as follows:

SECTION 1. That the recommendations of the Commission as set forth in the
Resolution concerning the TIF Plan, a copy of which Resolution is attached hereto as Exhibit C,

are hereby accepted.

SECTION 2. That the Council hereby finds that The Redeveloper is in default of its
obligations in the TIF Contract and has not met the goals of the TIF Plan.

SECTION 3. That the Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan, approved by Ordinance No. 2009-
3534 on April 21, 2009 is hereby terminated.

SECTION 4. That the designation of the Redevelopment Area and all Redevelopment
Projects contemplated by the plan are hereby terminated.

SECTION 5. That the designation of Southview Plaza, L.L.C. as the Redeveloper of the
Boardwalk at Belton TIF Redevelopment Plan is hereby terminated.

SECTION 6. That the TIF Contract between Southview Plaza, L.L.C. and the City for
the implementation of the Boardwalk at Belton TIF Redevelopment Plan is hereby terminated.

SECTION 7. All terms used in this Ordinance not otherwise defined herein shall be
construed as defined in the Act.

SECTION 8. That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this
Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and
such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

SECTION 9. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance
are hereby repealed.

SECTION 10. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date
of its passage and approval.

49
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



Passed by the City Council this day of July, 2016.

Approved as to form and legality.

City Attorney

Duly first read the_12th day of July, 2016.

Duly read the second time and passed this day of July, 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis

Approved this day of July, 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis

ATTEST:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk

STATE OF MISSOURI )
CITY OF BELTON ) ss.
COUNTY OF CASS )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced
at a meeting of the City Council held on the 12th day of July 2016, thereafter first read at a

meeting of the City Council held on the __ day of July 2016 and thereafter adopted as
Ordinance No. of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council
heldonthe _ day of July 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit:
AYES: COUNCILMEN:
NOES: COUNCILMEN:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk

50
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



EXHIBIT A to ORDINANCE NO.

NOTICE OF DEFAULT

See attached

51
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



EXHIBIT B to ORDINANCE NO.

SECOND NOTICE OF DEFAULT

See attached

{10480 / 64401; 708371.4 } 52



July 1, 2016

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL

Mr. Allen Kipper
6429 NW 70" Street, #14
Kansas City, MO 64151

Re:  Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan ("Plan")

Second Notice of Default

Dear Mr. Kipper:

This Second Notice of Default is a courtesy notice to make you aware of the TIF
Commission's recommendation, as seen in the attached resolution, concerning the Boardwalk at
Belton TIF Plan. The City Council will consider the TIF Commission's recommendation at 7:00
pm July 12, 2016 at the City Hall Annex Council Chambers. You are welcome to attend the July

12, 2016 City Council meeting, and to speak to this matter.

As detailed in my February 11, 2016 Notice of Default letter, a copy of which is attached,
the City of Belton intends to consider, among other things, the termination of the Boardwalk at

Belton TIF Plan and the TIF Contract.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,
Ron Trivitt
cc: Charles Miller
Megan McGuire
Brad Foster
Jay Leipzig
enclosure
53

{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



EXHIBIT C to ORDINANCE NO.

TIF COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 06-15-16-1

See attached

54
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



_ WHEREAS, the school district, the county, and the other taxing districts appointed their
representatives to serve as members of the Commission until the approval of the TIF Plan; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 99.830 R.S.Mo., notice of a June 15, 2016 public
hearing was given as follows:

Mailed notice to the taxing jurisdictions not less than 45 days prior to the public hearing
pursuant to Section 99.830.2 R.S.Mo. was given on April 27, 2016; and

First publication notice not more than 30 days prior to the public hearing pursuant to
Section 99.830.1 R.S.Mo. was given on May 20, 2016; and

Second publication notice not more than 10 days prior to the public hearing pursuant to
Section 99.830.1 R.S.Mo. was given on June 10, 2016; and

Mailed notice to affected property owners not less than 10 days prior to the public
hearing pursuant to Section 99.830.1 R.S.Mo. was given on May 25, 2016; and

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2016, a Notice of Default was mailed to Redeveloper and
was provided 60 days to cure all of the defaults set out in the notice; and

WHEREAS, as of June 15, 2016 no response has been received from the Redeveloper;
and

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2016, after due notice, the Commission so constituted held a
public hearing at which all interested persons and taxing districts affected by the TIF Plan were
afforded an opportunity to file written objections, protests, and be heard orally; and

WHEREAS, said hearing was closed on June 15, 2016.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission that:

1. The Commission recommends that the City Council find that the Redeveloper is
in default of its obligations in the TIF Contract and has not met the goals of the TIF Plan; and

2 The Commission recommends to the City Council that the City Council pass one
or more ordinances terminating the TIF Plan approved by Ordinance No. 2009-3534 on April 21,

2009; and

ot The Commission recommends to the City Council termination of the
redevelopment area and all redevelopment projects contemplated by the plan; and

{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 } 55



_ _ RESOLUTION NO. 06-15-16-1

RESOLUTION OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING COMMISSION OF BELTON,
MISSOURI, RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF BELTON, MISSOURI:
DECLARE THE REDEVELOPER, SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C., IN DEFAULT OF ITS
OBLIGATIONS; TERMINATE THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT
FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN; TERMINATE THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA
AND ALL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN;
TERMINATE THE DESIGNATION OF SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C. AS REDEVELOPER
OF THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN AND ALL
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREAS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN; AND
TERMINATE THE TIF CONTRACT BETWEEN SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C. AND THE
CITY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN.

WHEREAS, the Tax Increment Financing Commission of Belton, Missouri
("Commission"), was created pursuant to the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act, Sections 99.800 to 99.865 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended
("Act"), and by Ordinance No. 95-2305 of the Board of Aldermen of Belton, Missouri adopted
on May 5, 1995; and

WHEREAS, on the 12" day of January 2009 the City Council of Belton, Missouri ("City
Council"), upon recommendation of the Commission, the City Council approved the Boardwalk
at Belton Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Plan ("TIF Plan"); and

WHEREAS, on the 21* day of April 2009 the City of Belton and Southview Plaza,
L.L.C. ("Redeveloper") entered into a contract to carry out the TIF Plan (the "TIF Contract"),
and

WHEREAS, no action has been taken by Redeveloper to implement the TIF Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper has failed to comply with the elements within the TIF Plan;
and

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper has failed to comply with the requirements within the TIF
Contract; and

WHEREAS, the termination of the TIF Plan has been presented to the Commission for
consideration; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws and By-Laws of the Commission, the Board of
Commissioners caused the affected school and other taxing districts to be notified of their right
to designate representatives to sit as members of the Commission for the purpose of conducting a
public hearing and making recommendations with respect to the TIF Plan to the City Council;
and

56
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



4. The Commission does hereby recommend termination of the designation of
Southview Plaza, L.L.C. as the Redeveloper of the Boardwalk at Belton Tax Increment

Financing Redevelopment Plan; and

5. The Commission does hereby recommend termination of the TIF Contract between
Southview Plaza, L.L.C. and the City for thc implementation of the Boardwalk at Belton Tax

Increment Financing Redevelopment Plan.

Passed this 15™ day of June, 2016.

Fred Hastie, Chairman

ATTEST:

, Secretary

Approved as to form and legality

Aaron G. March, Special Counsel to the Commission

57
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



91 7199 9991 7?03k 1900 5854

CITY OF BELTON EXHIBIT
506 Main Street
PO. Box 230 p(
' Belton, MO 64012 -
(816) 331-4331

Fax (816) 322-4620

February 11, 2016

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN
RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Allen Kipper
6429 N. W. 70" Street, #14
Kansas City, MO 64151

Re: Redevelopment Contract between City of Belton ("City'") and Southview
Plaza, L.L.C. ("Developer") dated May 6, 2009 ("Contract") for
Implementation of Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan ('"Plan")

Notice of Defaunlt

Dear Mr. Kipper:

Pursuant to Section 35 of the Contract, notice is hereby given that the Developer is not in
compliance with the provisions of the Contract, in that the Developer, inter alia, has failed to
implement the Plan within the time limits and in the manner for the completion of the
Redevelopment Projects as stated within the Plan and the Contract. While not intended to be a
complete list, specific example of how the Developer is in default are as follows (all capitalized
terms here refer to the definitions as set forward in the Plan and ‘Contract):

1. Developer has not commenced or completed construction of the Private Project
Improvements and Public Project Improvements, as required under Section 5 of the
Contract. Specifically, Developer has not commenced construction of:

A. Phase 1 Private Project Improvements- a hotel containing approximately 250,000
square feet and 240 rooms, retail space in six buildings containing approximately
116,000 square feet, three freestanding restaurants totalinig approximately 18,900
square feet, a drug store containing approximately 16,000 square feet, a motel
containing approximately 50,000 square feet, together with all necessary support
facilities such as utilities, parking lots, street improvements, storm water
detention and drainage and other infrastructure improvements appurtenant thereto
necessary to remove the Blighting Factors described in the Plan.

5 8 ;"I
{10480 / 64401; 679359.3 }



February 11, 2016
Page 2

B. Phase 2 Private Projecct Improvements- a life-style retail center containing
approximately 128,200 square feet that will be built in two phases with each
phase containing 64,100 square feet, a mega-plex theatre containing
approximately 50,000 square feet and sixteen movie screens and a branch bank
containing approximately 9,000 square feet, together with all necessary support
facilities such as utilities, parking lots, street improvements, storm water
detention and drainage and other infrastructure improvements appurtenant thereto
necessary to remove the Blighting Factors described in the Plan.

C. Phase 3 Private Project Improvements- an approximately 430,000 square foot
shopping center Construction of an approximately 430,000 square foot shopping
center which is to be built in two phases with 220,000 square feet being
constructed in Phase 1 and 210,000 square feet being constructed in Phase 2, and
a freestanding restaurant containing approximately 8,500 square feet, together
with all necessary support facilities such as utilities, parking lots, street
improvements (not including those described as a part of the Public Project
Improvements), storm water detention and drainage and other infrastructure
improvements appurtenant thereto necessary to remove the Blighting Factors

described in the Plan.

D. Phase 4 Private Project Improvements- approximately 285,200 square feet of flex
office/warehouse space, which are to be constructed in three phases with Phase 1
containing approximately 68,420 square feet, Phase 2 containing approximately
110,485 square feet and Phase 3 containing approximately 106,295 square feet,
together with all necessary support facilities such as utilities, parking lots, street
improvements (not including those described as a part of the Public Project
Improvements), storm water detention and drainage and other infrastructure
improvements appurtenant thereto necessary to remove the Blighting Factors

described in the Plan.

E. Phase 5 Private Project Improvements- approximately 72,000 square feet of office
condominiums which are to be constructed in three phases with approxirmately
36,000 square feet being constructed in Phase 1, approximately 24,000 square feet
being constructed in Phase 2 and approximately 12,000 square feet being
constructed in Phase 3, together with all necessary support facilities such as
utilities, parking lots, street improvements (not including those described as a part
of the Public Project Improvements), storm water detention and drainage and
other infrastructure improvements appurtenant thereto necessary to remove the

Blighting Factors described in the Plan.

F. The Public Project Improvements and specifically:

(1)  Boardwalk Boulevard through the center of the Redevelopment Area from
163 Street to 155 Street in the following two phases:

a. From 163 Street to 162% Street (to be completed simultaneously

with Redevelopment Project Area 1)
59

{10480 / 64401; 679359.3 }



February 11, 2016
Page 3

)

®)

b. From 162" Street to 155™ Street (to be completed simultaneously
with Redevelopment Project Area2)

162" Street from the Eastern boundary of the Redevelopment Area to the
E. Outer Road (to be completed simultancously with Redevelopment

Project Area 1)
E. Outer Road from 163" Street to 155% Street:

a.  Traffic signal at intersection of 155" Street and Boardwalk
Boulevard.

b. 250" west-bound left turn lane from 155% Street on to Boardwalk
Boulevard .

c. 200 east-bound right-turn lane from 155% Street on to Boardwalk
Boulevard

2. As set out in Section 6 of the Contract, Developer is in default of its obligation to
comply with the Redevelopment Schedule as set out below: (Contract Section 6. and

ExhibitF) — — -
Redevelopment Project Area 1
Commence Complete
Property Acquisition April 2009 September 2009
Blight Removal/Demolition October 2009 January 2010
Construction February 2010 June 2013
Redevelopment Project Area 2
Commence Complete
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition January 2011 May 2011
Construction June 2011 December 2014
Redevelopment Project Area 3
Commence Complete
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition November 2012 May 2013
Construction June 2013 December 2016
Redevelopment Project Area 4 _
Commence Complete
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition November 2012 May 2013
Construction June 2013 December 2016

{10480/ 64401; 679359.3 }

60



February 11, 2016

Page 4

Redevelopment Project Area 5

Commence Complete
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition January 2011 May 2011
Construction June 2011 December 2014

Public Project Improvements See Exhibit E and Section 9.C. to Contract

3.

In accordance with Section 6.C. of the Contract, Developer’s development rights are
subject to termination for failure to receive the following:

A. Certificate of Completion and Compliance for Redevelopment Project 1 by
December 31, 2013.

B. Certificate of Completion and Compliance for Redevelopment Project 2 by
December 31, 2015.

C. Certificate of Completion and Compliance for Redevelopment Project 5 by
December 31, 2015.

Pursuant to Section 7.A. of the Contract, Developer has failed to:

A. Develop a schedule for the design, engineering, and construction of the Public
Project Improvements;

B. Regularly meet with City regarding design of the Public Project Improvements;
C. Provide copies of all design documents to City for review and comment.

Pursuant to Section 7.B. of the Contract, Developer has failed to acquire the
necessary right of way for the construction of the Public Project Improvements

Pursuant to Section 9.D. of the Contract, Developer has failed to properly maintain
the Developer Controlled Property.

Pursuant to Sections 12.A. and 12.B. of the Contract, Developer has not provided a
Financing Plan by November 2, 2009.

Pursuant to Sections 15.A., 15.B., and 15.C. of the Contract, Developer has not
submitted a petition with the City to form the Boardwalk at Belton CID by August 4,
2009. As a result, Developer has not entered into a CID Contract with the City and
has not imposed a CID Sales Tax and CID Special Assessmént on the Property.

61

{10480 / 64401; 679359.3 }



February 11, 2016
Page 5

9. Pursuant to Section 30 of the Contract Developer has failed each and every year to

Redevelopment ] Projects 1dent1fy1ng the items below:
A. List of Project Improvements completed;
B. Status of Project Improvements in progress but not yet completed;

C. Actual assessed value of the Redevelopment Area before and after the completion
of the Project Improvements as compared to Plan estimates;

D. Actual Redevelopment Project Costs in the Redevelopment Area compared to
Plan estimates;

E. Actual start and completion dates of Project Improvements in the Redevelopment
Area compared to Plan estimates; and

F. Estimated start date of Project Improvements no yet commenced at date of report.

Pursuant to Section 36.C. of the Contract, the Developer's obligations under the Contract are not
excused because of a lack of funds or inability to obtain financing. Furthermore; Developer has
not requested any extension of time or other amendment to the Plan or Contract. Accordingly,
the Developer is in default of its obligations under the Contract and such default cannot be

excused.

Therefore, pursuant to Section 35 of the Contract, you have sixty (60) days from the date hereof
to cure all of the defaults set out above. In the event all of the defaults sei out above are not
cured, the City intends, in addition to any other rights under the Contract, to take all actions
necessary to terminate the Plan and the Developer's rights thereunder and under the Contract.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

Foralll) 27

Ronald D. Trivitt
City Manager

cc: Charles Miller, Attorney
Megan McGuire, City Attorney
Brad Foster, Assistant City Attorney
Jay Leipzig, Director of Economic Development

62
{10480/ 64401; 679359.3 }



EXHIBIT B to ORDINANCE NO.

SECOND NOTICE OF DEFAULT

See attached

{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 } 63



( ExHIBIT |

July 1, 2016 _L

VIA CERTIFIED-MAIL

Mr. Allen Kipper
6429 NW 70" Street, #14
Kansas City, MO 64151

Re:  Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan ("Plan")
Second Notice of Default
Dear Mr. Kipper:

This Second Notice of Default is a courtesy notice to make you aware of the TIF
Commission's recommendation, as seen in the attached resolution, concerning the Boardwalk at
Belton TIF Plan. The City Council will consider the TIF Commission's recommendation at 7:00
pm July 12, 2016 at the City Hall Annex Council Chambers. You are welcome to attend the July
12, 2016 City Council meeting, and to speak to this matter.

As detailed in my February 11, 2016 Notice of Default letter, a copy of which is attached,
the City of Belton intends to consider, among other things, the termination of the Boardwalk at

Belton TIF Plan and the TIF Contract.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,
Ron Trivitt
cc: Charles Miller
Megan McGuire
Brad Foster
Jay Leipzig
enclasure
64

{10480 / 64401; 708371.4 }



EXHIBIT C to ORDINANCE NO.

TIF COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 06-15-16-1

See attached

{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 } 65



EXHIBIT

c

s —— et

_ RESOLUTION NO. 06-15-16-1

0 WEIIT

RESOLUTION OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING COMMISSION OF BELTON,
MISSOURI, RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF BELTON, MISSQURI:
DECLARE THE REDEVELOPER, SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C., IN DEFAULT OF ITS
OBLIGATIONS; TERMINATE THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT
FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN; TERMINATE THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA
AND ALL REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN;
TERMINATE THE DESIGNATION OF SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C. AS REDEVELOPER
OF THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN AND ALL
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREAS CONTEMPLATED BY THE PLAN; AND
TERMINATE THE TIF CONTRACT BETWEEN SOUTHVIEW PLAZA, L.L.C. AND THE
CITY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN.

WHEREAS, the Tax Increment Financing Commission of Belton, Missouri
("Commission"), was created pursuant to the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act, Sections 99.800 to 99.865 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended
("Act"), and by Ordinance No. 95-2305 of the Board of Aldermen of Belton, Missouri adopted
on May 5, 1995; and

WHEREAS, on the 12" day of J anuary 2009 the City Couneil of Belton, Missouri ("City
Council"), upon recommendation of the Commission, the City Council approved the Boardwalk
at Belton Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Plan ("TIF Plan"); and

WHEREAS, on the 21* day of April 2009 the City of Belton and Southview Plaza,
L.L.C. ("Redeveloper") entered into a contract to carry out the TIF Plan (the "TIF Contract");
and

WHEREAS, no action has been taken by Redeveloper to implement the TIF Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper has failed to comply with the elements within the TIF Plan;
and

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper has failed to comply with the requirements within the TIF
Contract; and

WHEREAS, the termination of the TIF Plan has been presented to the Commission for
consideration; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the laws and By-Laws of the Commission, the Board of
Commissioners caused the affected school and other taxing districts to be notified of their right
to designate representatives to sit as members of the Commission for the purpose of conducting a
public hearing and making recommendations with respect to the TIF Plan to the City Council;
and

66
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



WHEREAS, the school district, the county, and the other taxing districts appointed their
representatives to serve as members of the Commission until the approval of the TIF Plan; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 99.830 R.S.Mo., notice of a June 15, 2016 public
hearing was given as follows:

Mailed notice to the taxing jurisdictions not less than 45 days prior to the public hearing
pursuant to Section 99.830.2 R.S.Mo. was given on April 27, 2016; and

First publication notice not more than 30 days prior to the public hearing pursuant to
Section 99.830.1 R.S.Mo. was given on May 20, 2016; and

Second publication notice not more than 10 days prior to the public hearing pursuant to
Section 99.830.1 R.S.Mo. was given on June 10, 2016; and

Mailed notice to affected property owners not less than 10 days prior to the public
hearing pursuant to Section 99.830.1 R.S.Mo. was given on May 25, 2016; and

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2016, a Notice of Default was mailed to Redeveloper and
was provided 60 days to cure all of the defaults set out in the notice; and

WHEREAS, as of June 15, 2016 no response has been received from the Redeveloper;
and

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2016, after due notice, the Commission so constituted held a
public hearing at which all interested persons and taxing districts affected by the TIF Plan were
afforded an opportunity to file written objections, protests, and be heard orally; and

WHEREAS, said hearing was closed on June 15, 2016.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission that;

L. The Commission recommends that the City Council find that the Redeveloper is
in default of its obligations in the TIF Contract and has not met the goals of the TIF Plan; and

2. The Commission recommends to the City Council that the City Council pass one
or more ordinances terminating the TIF Plan approved by Ordinance No. 2009-3534 on April 21,

2009; and

3. The Commission recommends to the City Council termination of the
redevelopment area and all redevelopment projects contemplated by the plan; and

67
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



4. The Commission does hereby recommend termination of the designation of
Southview Plaza, L.L.C. as the Redeveloper of the Boardwalk at Belton Tax Increment

Financing Redevelopment Plan; and

5. The Commission does hereby recommend termination of the TIF Contract between
Southview Plaza, L.L.C. and the City for the implementation of the Boardwalk at Belton Tax

Increment Financing Redevelopment Plan.

Passed this 15 day of June, 2016.

Fred Hastie, Chairman

ATTEST:

, Secretary

Approved as to form and legality

Aaron G. March, Special Counsel to the Commission

68
{10480/ 64401; 708371.4 }



CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI

Wednesday, June 15, 2016
7:00 P.M.
City Hall Annex, 520 Main Street, Belton, Missouri

STAFF REPORT
BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT
PLAN

TIF Commission Public Hearing Date: June 15, 2016

1. Public Notice

In accordance with Section 99.830 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, Staff prepared
and delivered all required notices of this public hearing to propose termination of the
Redevelopment Plan, Redevelopment Area and all Redevelopment Projects contemplated by the
TIF Plan. In addition to the required statutory notices, a Notice of Default was sent from the City
Administrator to the Redeveloper, with specific references to areas of default with regards to the

TIF Plan and TIF Contract.

2. Introduction

The purpose of this hearing is for the Commission to consider the proposed termination
of the Boardwalk at Belton Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Plan (“TIF Plan”). After
this hearing, the City Council will consider whether to: 1) declare the Redeveloper in default of
its obligations; 2) terminate the Plan; 3) terminate the Redevelopment Area and all
Redevelopment Projects contemplated by the Plan; 4) terminate the designation of Southview
Plaza, L.L.C. ("Redeveloper") as Redeveloper of the Plan's Redevelopment Project Areas
("Project Areas"); and 5) terminate the TIF Contract between Southview Plaza, L.L.C. and the

City of Belton, Missouri ("City") for the implementation of the TIF Plan.

Resolution 01-12-09-1 was approved on January 12, 2009 by the TIF Commission to
recommend approval of the Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan, designate Southview Plaza, L.L.C. as
Redeveloper and execution of the TIF Contract between Southview Plaza, L.L.C. and the City
for implementation of the TIF Plan. Ordinance No. 2009-3534 was approved on April 21, 2009
by City Council adopting the Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan, designating Southview Plaza,
L.L.C. as the Developer and authorizing a TIF Contract with Southview Plaza, L.L.C.

A Notice of Default was mailed to Redeveloper on February 11, 2016, which provided 60
days to cure all of the defaults set out in the notice. No response has been received by the
Redeveloper and the default remains uncured. A copy of the Notice of Default letter is attached

for your reference.

69

{10480/ 64401; 704617.3 } 1



3. Redevelopment Area

The Redevelopment Area consists of approximately 187 acres of property generally
located at the northeast corner of U.S. Highway 71 and 163" Street (Y Highway) extending
north to 155™ Street, as more fully described in the TIF Plan as Exhibit 2A.

4. General Description of the TIF Plan and Redevelopment Project
A. Redevelopment Plan

The Plan proposed the development of approximately 726,600 square feet of retail

use, approximately 285,200 square feet of flex office/warehouse space, approximately

72,000 square feet of office condominiums, an approximately 250,000 square foot

convention center including an approximately 240 room hotel, an approximately 50,000

square feet motel with 80 rooms, an approximately 50,000 square foot theatre, an

approximately 50,000 square foot entertainment center, and related streets and
~infrastructure. . =

B. Redevelopment Project

The Redevelopment Area contains five (5) Redevelopment Projects and five (5)
corresponding Redevelopment Project Areas.

{10480/ 64401; 704617.3 } 2
70 Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan
City Staff Report, June 15, 2016



5. Redevelopment Schedule

The TIF Plan proposed the Redevelopment Project Areas be substantially commenced
and completed on or before the following dates:

Redevelopment Project Area 1

Commenced Completed
Property Acquisition April 2009 September 2009
Blight Removal/Demolition October 2009 January 2010
Construction February 2010 June 2013
Redevelopment Project Area 2

Commenced Completed
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition January 2011 May 2011
Construction June 2011 December 2014
Redevelopment Project Area 3

Commenced Completed
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition November 2012 May 2013
Construction June 2013 December 2016
Redevelopment Project Area 4

Commenced Completed
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition November 2012 May 2013
Construction June 2013 December 2016
Redevelopment Project Area 5

Commenced Completed
Property Acquisition July 2008 July 2008
Blight Removal/Demolition January 2011 May 2011
Construction June 2011 December 2014

Public Project Improvements

See Exhibit E and Section 9.C. to TIF

Contract

Developer has not commenced or completed construction of the Private Project
Improvements or Public Project Improvements as those terms are defined in the TIF Plan.

{10480/ 64401; 704617.3 } 3
Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan

71 City Staff Report, June 15,2016



6. TIF Contract Requirements Not Met

In accordance with Section 6.C. of the TIF Contract, the Redeveloper's development
rights are subject to termination for failure to receive a Certificate of Completion and
Compliance for Redevelopment Project 1 by December 31, 2013, subject to termination for
failure to receive the Certificate of Completion and Compliance for Redevelopment Project 2 by
December 31, 2015, and subject to termination for failure to receive the Certificate of
Completion and Compliance for Redevelopment Project 5 by December 31, 2015.

ACTIONS RECOMMENDED:

A. CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING THE TERMINATION
OF BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN. (Do not close public hearing if the hearing is to be
continued. If hearing is continued, Commission must do so by motion, second and
vote to a specific time, place and date)

B. ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 6-15-16-1, which makes the following
recommendations to the City Council:

L. DECLARE THAT THE REDEVELOPER, SOUTHVIEW
PLAZA, L.L.C.,IS IN DEFAULT OF ITS OBLIGATIONS IN THE TIF
CONTRACT AND HAS NOT MET THE GOALS OF THE TIF PLAN ; AND

2. TERMINATE THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX
INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND

3. TERMINATE THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA AND ALL
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECTS CONTEMPLATED BY THE TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN ; AND

4. TERMINATE THE DESIGNATION OF SOUTHVIEW PLAZA,
L.L.C. AS THE REDEVELOPER OF THE BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND

5. TERMINATE THE TIF CONTRACT BETWEEN SOUTHVIEW
PLAZA, L.L.C. AND THE CITY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
BOARDWALK AT BELTON TAX INCREMENT FINANCING
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN.

{10480 / 64401; 704617.3 ) 4
72 Boardwalk at Belton TIF Plan
City Staff Report, June 15, 2016



SECTION Vil
E



74



BILL NO. 2016-80 ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 8
~ COURTS AND JAILS, ARTICLE II — MUNICIPAL COURT, SECTION 8-88 - JURY
TRIALS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELTON. MISSOURI.

WHEREAS, RSMo 479.150 provides the Municipal Court with the provisions for right to a
jury trial for a defendant accused of a municipal code violation; and

WHEREAS, the current code of Ordinance states as follows:

“Sec. 8-88. - Jury trials.

Any person charged with a violation of a city ordinance of the city shall be entitled to
a trial by jury, as in prosecutions for misdemeanors before an associate circuit judge.
Whenever a defendant accused of a violation of a city ordinance demands trial by
jury, the municipal court shall certify the case to the presiding judge of the circuit for
reassignment, as provided in RSMo 517.520(2).”

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment will bring the city code more in-line with the state
statute parameters for judicial efficiency.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That section 8-88 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Belton, Missouri is hereby

amended to read as follows:

“Any person charged with a violation of an ordinance of this city shall be entitled
to a trial by jury as provided by law.”

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage

and approval.

SECTION 3.That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are

hereby repealed.

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 12, 2016

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:

75



Mayor Jeff Davis

Approved this day of , 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis
ATTEST:

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk
City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI )
CITY OF BELTON ) SS
COUNTY OF CASS )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a

meeting of the City Council held on the 12th day of _ July , 2016, and thereafter
adopted as Ordinance No. 2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of
the City Council held on the day of , 2016, after the second reading

thereof by the following vote, to-wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:
NAYES: COUNCILMEN:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

76



SECTION ViII
F



78



BILL NO. 2016-81 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 19 — STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND OTHER
PUBLIC PLACES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES AND CHAPTER 34 - STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE TO CREATE A
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPLETE CHAPTER 19 - STREETS, SIDEWALKS, RIGHTS-
OF-WAY AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE

CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI.

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Missouri Code of Ordinances was recodified in October
2011; and

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Missouri adopted the Unified Development Code (UDC)
December 13, 2011; and

WHEREAS, these amendments bring the City’s right-of-way management code in
compliance with state law under RSMO 67.1830 to 67.1846; and

WHEREAS, the City Attorney, Public Works Director, City Engineer, Engineering
Division and Transportation Division reviewed Chapter 19 — Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public
Places of the Code of Ordinances and Chapter 34 - Streets and Sidewalks of the UDC of the City
of Belton, Missouri and determined the code and guidance on management of the right-of-way to

be deficient and in need of revisions; and

WHEREAS, the amendments reorganize and consolidate the two chapters into one new
chapter for clarity, titled Chapter 19 - Streets, Sidewalks, Rights-of-way and Other Public Places.
Chapter 34 has been incorporated into the new Chapter 19 with minor revisions because of some
duplication. The amended code focuses on the management of the right-of-way and it was
determined to be most appropriate to be located in the City of Belton’s Code of Ordinances

rather than the UDC, where planning standards are the focus; and

WHEREAS, an ordinance amending Chapter 36 - Subdivision Regulations and Appendix
A - Schedule of Fees and Values, Part II. — Unified Development Code of the UDC and the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Belton Missouri should be passed in conjunction with and

complementary to this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Regular Session City Council Meeting
on July 26, 2016 to receive input concerning the amendments to Chapter 19 of the Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 34, and 36 of the UDC and Appendix A of the UDC and Code of

Ordinances upon proper notice advertised in the Friday, July 8, 2016 edition of Cass County
Democrat Missourian, a weekly/daily newspaper of general circulation in the County of Cass,

State of Missouri; and

79



WHEREAS, staff recommends to amend and update Chapter 19 - Streets, Sidewalks, and
Other Public Places of the Code of Ordinances and Chapter 34 - Streets and Sidewalks of the
UDC of the City of Belton, Missouri to create Chapter 19 - Streets, Sidewalks, Rights-of-way
and Other Public Place of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Belton, Missouri.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the title Chapter 19 — Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places of the
Belton Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and revised with the addition of the
highlighted text to read as follows and as provided in Exhibit A:

Cha_pter 19 — Streets, Sidewalks, Rights-of-way and Other Public Places.

Section 2. That Chapter 19, Article I — In General, Sections 19-1 — Obstructing public ways
through Sections 19-7 — Dumping prohibited of the Belton Code of Ordinances is hereby
amended to read as follows with the deletion of the stricken text and the addition of the
highlighted text; these sections are modified and incorporated into the new code as

provided in Exhibit A.

Code of Ordinances
Chapter 19 — Streets, Sidewalks, Rights-of-way and Other Public Places

ARTICLE I - IN GENERAL

Sec. 19-1. - Obstructing public ways.

(Code 1976, § 19-1; Ord. No. 67-308, § 6.63, 8-31-1867)

Sec. 19-2. - Obstructing drainage facilities.

80



(Code 1976, § 19-2; Ord. No. 78-884, §§ 1, 2, 3-27-1879; Ord. No. 88-1857, § 1, 12-13-
1988)

Sec. 19-3. - Foliage encroaching upon right-of-way; city authorized to remedy.

(Code 1976, § 19-3; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1883; Ord. No. 2009-3520, § 4, 2-24-
2009)

Sec. 19-4. - Notice of intent to trim or remove.

(Code 1976, § 19-4; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1983; Ord. No. 2009-3520, § 2, 2-24-
2000)

Sec. 19-5. - Requirements for private driveways along certain roads and streets.

81



(Code 1976, § 19-5; Ord. No. 85-1550, §§ 1, 2, 6-13-1985; Ord. No. 89-1952, § 1, 12-
19-1989; Ord. No. 2015-4139, § 3, 10-27-2015)

Sec. 19-6. - Use of skateboards and other like instruments; limitation, penaity for
violation.

82



(Code 1978, § 19-6; Ord. No. 89-1897, §§ 1-—5, 6-6-1989)

Sec. 19-7. - Dumping prohibited.

(Code 1976, § 19-7: Ord. No. 98-2576, § 1, 10-27-1998)

Secs. 19-8—19-32. - Reserved.

Section 3. That Chapter 19, Article IT — Abandoned Vehicles and Other Personal Property,
Section 19-33 Definitions through Section 19-43 Appeal remain unchanged; these sections

are illustrated in Exhibit A.
Section 4. That Chapter 19 is hereby amended and revised with the addition of the
following new articles and sections, highlighted, as provided in Exhibit A.

Code of Ordinances

Chapter 19 — Streéts, Sidewalks, Rights-of-way and Other Public Places

83



Article IV - Obstructions, Encroachments, Ba eaning, and Management,
Section 19-111 through Section 19-121

st :.:__.‘_ ﬁﬁé’ 5

e, Construction, Reconstruction,

1174 'f'.-é;

Section 5. That Chapter 34 — Streets and Sidewalks, Article I — In General through Article
IV — Vehicles and Property Left on Streets or Public Property is hereby amended and
revised to read as follows with the deletion of the stricken text and the addition of the
highlighted text; these sections are modified and incorporated into the new code as

provided in Exhibit A and the revisions to Chapter 34 are illustrated in Exhibit B, . . .
Chapter 34 - STREETS AND SIDEWALKS

ARTICLE L. - IN GENERAL

Sec. 34-1. - Obstructing public ways.

- v BON-_an

84



(UDC 2010, § 9.1; Ord. No. 67-308, § 6.63, 8-31-1967)

Sec. 34-2. - Obstructing drainage facilities.

(UDC 2010, § 9.2; Ord. No. 78-984, §§ 1, 2, 3-27-1979; Ord. No. 88-1857, § 1, 12-13-
1988)

Sec. 34-3. - Foliage encroaching upon right-of-way; city authorized to remedy.

(UDC 2010, § 9.3; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1983; Ord. No. 2009-3520, § 4, 2-24-
2009)

Sec. 34-4. - Notice of intent to trim or remove.

85



(UDC 2010, § 9.4; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1983; Ord. No. 2009-3520, § 2, 2-24-
2009)

Sec. 34-5. - Requirements for private driveways along roads and streets.

REaT~Iu¥ OR-£ allila LA S ael=talaladaal=Va al-Ta - LR

(UDC 2010, § 9.5; Ord. No. 85-1550, §§ 1, 2, 6-13-1985: Ord. No. 89-1952, § 1, 12-19-
1989)

Editor's note— Inasmuch as Ord. No. 85-1550, §§ 1, 2, adopted June 13, 1985, did not
specify manner of codification, such provisions have been designated by the editor as §
9.5.

Sec. 34-6. - Use of skateboards and other like instruments; limitation, penalty for
violation.

86



1989)

8

16-

5

Ord. No. 89-1897, §§ 1

?

6

uDC 2010, § S.

(

ted

Dumping prohibi

Sec. 34-7.

87



(UDC 2010, § 9.7; Ord. No. 98-2578, § 1, 10-27-1998; Ord. No. 2012-3879, § 2, 12-11-
2012) | =

Secs. 34-8—34-32. - Reserved.

ARTICLE II. - VACATING PUBLIC WAYS

Sec. 34-33. - Petition required.

(UDC 2010,

A~ =

2013)

©
wn
©
-——
(o))

Sec. 34-34. - Hearing on petition.

(UDC 2010, § 9.17; Ord. No. 66-249, § 1, 6-10-1966; Ord. No. 2013-3892, § 2, 3-26-
2013)

88



Sec. 34-35. - Action on petition.

(UDC 2010, § 9.18; Ord. No. 66-249, § 2, 6-10-1966)

Sec. 34-36. - Reverter.

AMheneveaer-anyv-nub

(UDC 2010, § 9.19; Ord. No. 66-249, § 3, 6-10-1966)

Secs. 34-37—34-60. - Reserved.

ARTICLE Ill. - EXCAVATIONS

Sec. 34-61. - Provisions declared supplemental.

Py . . . .
he nroisicns—o - ticia-ah Da-ln-acdcition =

Sec. 34-62. - Permit required; exception.

Sec. 34-63. - Application for permit, fee.

al= alallfal-kdTaTa ) a2 RAarmiitrao P -

89



Sec. 34-65. - Bond required for excavation of right-of-way.

90



Sec. 34-68. - Work to be inspected.

Secs. 34-71—34-98. - Reserved.

ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES AND PROPERTY LEFT ON STREETS OR PUBLIC
PROPERTY

Sec. 34-99. - Definitions.

91



~(UDC 2010, § 8.50; Ord. No. 78-1004, §.1, 8-26-1979).

Sec. 34-100. - Reserved.

Editor's note— Ord. No. 92-2090, § 2, adopted January 14, 1992, repealed § 34-100
(formerly § 9.51) which pertained to abandonment of motor vehicies or other personal
property derived from Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, adopted May 1, 1967 and Ord. No. 68-
388, § 1, adopted January 22, 1988.

Sec. 34-101. - Authority to remove and store generally; cost of removal and
storage.

(UDC 2010, § 9.52; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord. No. 91-2055, §1,6-11-1991)

Sec. 34-102. - Enumeration of circumstances authorizing remaval from streets and
highways.

92



(UDC 2010, § 9.53; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968;
Ord. No. 79-1004, § 2, 6-26-1979)

Sec. 34-103. - Notice to owner of removed vehicle.

(UDC 2010, § 9.54; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 3, 6-26-1979)

93



Sec. 34-104. - Notice to state when vehicle owner unknown.

(UDC 2010, § 9.55; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 4, 6-26-
1979)

Sec. 34-105. - Redemption before sale authorized; owner may claim proceeds of
sale.

:"::-:;-'. he-paid ::.:e--. ec
{U4DC 2010, § 9.56; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.87, 5-1-1867: Ord. No. 85-1544, § 34, 5-29-
1985)

Sec. 34-106. - Procedure for redemption before sale.

94



(UDC 2010, § 9.57: Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.88, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 35, 5-29-
1985)

Sec. 34-107. - Sale of unredeemed property required.

(UDC 2010, § 9.58; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.86, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 36, 5-29-
1985)

Sec. 34-108. - Procedure for sale.

(UDC 2010, § 9.59; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 37, 5-29-
1985)

Sec. 34-109. - Advertisement of sale.

(UDC 2010, § 9.60; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.90, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 38, 5-29-
1985)

95



(UDC 2010, § 9.61; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.87, 5-1-1967)

Secs. 34-111—34-130. - Reserved.

Section 6. That Chapter 34, Article V — Arterial Street Improvements Impact Fee remain
unchanged; these sections are illnstrated im Exhibit B.

Section 7. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force after passage and approval.

Section 8. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME:

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:

Mayor Jeff Davis

Approved this __dayof , 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis

ATTEST:

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk
City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI )
CITY OF BELTON ) $S
COUNTY OF CASS )

96



I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a

meeting of the City Council held on the day of , 2016, and thereafter
adopted as Ordinance No. 2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of
the City Council held on the day of , 2016, after the second reading

thereof by the following vote, to-wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:
NAYES: COUNCILMEN:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

917



CITY OF BELTON
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM

AGENDA DATE:  July 12, 2016 DIVISION: Engineering
COUNCIL: X Regular Meeting [J Wark Session L1 Special Session
Ordinance [J Resolution O Consent Item | [J Change Order | 1 Motion

L] Agreement U] Discussion L] FYI/Update [ Presentation [] Both Readings

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has been working with the City Attorney to make amendments to Chapter 19 — Streets, Sidewalks
and Other Public Places of the Code of Ordinances and Chapters 34 - Streets and Sidewalks of the
Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri. The existing right-of-way (ROW)
management code is deficient and dispersed between two chapters. Staff has attempted to apply in a
consistent manner, but little written guidance causes some difficulties. In addition, the ROW
management code is not updated to current state law under RSMO 67.1830 to 67.1846.

The recommended amendments reorganize and consolidate for clarity both Chapter 19 and Chapter 34
into a new Chapter 19 titled Streets, Sidewalks, Rights-of-Way and Other Public Places. Chapter 34 has
been incorporated into Chapter 19 with minor revisions because of some duplication. The revised code
focuses on management of the ROW and it was determined to be most appropriate to be located in the
City of Belton’s Code of Ordinances rather than the Unified Development Code, where planning
standards are the focus. It is standard for Missouri cities in the Kansas City metro to have a
comprehensive ROW ordinance and the changes presented in these revisions have been benchmarked
and pulled from other Missouri cities including Lee’s Summit, Liberty, Boonville, and Creve Coeur.

In conjunction with and complementary to this Council Item are code changes to the Schedule of Fees
and Charges and Chapter 36 to reflect the appropriate Public Works Engineering fees and charges in

relation to right-of-way permitting, sanitary sewer impact fees, and engineering review fees.

In the July 8, 2016 issue of the Cass County Democrat Missourian, a Notice of Public Hearing for the
code changes was advertised. The Public hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall Annex at the start
of the July 26, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting.

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:

At the July 12, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading amending
Chapter 19 - Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public Spaces of the Code of Ordinances and Chapter 34 -
Streets and Sidewalks of the Unified Development Code to create a consolidated and complete Chapter
19 - Streets, Sidewalks, Rights-of-way and Other Public Places of the Code of Ordinances of the City of

Belton, Missouri.

BACKGROUND:
As the City of Belton progresses and grows with development, amendments to the code are necessary in

order to provide means to administer and manage activity and work within the City in a consistent and
fair manner in compliance with state law. Nearly all properties and citizens within the City of Belton are
effected by activity and work within the City’s ROW and it is important to local residents, businesses,

98



contractors and service providers that people are held responsible for their work within the ROW for the
good of the community. ) B

IMPACT/ANALYSIS:
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:

At the July 12, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading amending
~———Chapter-19-=Streets; Sidewalks and Other Public Places of the Code of Ordinances and Chapter 34 =
Streets and Sidewalks of the Unified Development Code to create a consolidated and complete Chapter

19 - Streets; Sidewalks, Rights-of-way and-Other Public Places-of the Code-of Ordinanees of the City of

Belton, Missouri.

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:
Ordinance

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - -

New ROW Permit

New ROW Traffic Control Permit

99



EXHIBIT A

Code of Ordinances, Belton, Missouri

Chapter 19 - STREETS, SIDEWALKS,
RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND OTHER
PUBLIC PLACES-

Sec. 19-1. — Obstructing public Ways. [F@PEAIEA] ... . vveeresieermesesmesssersesssesseesessseessesesssseeeesnes 5
Sec. 19-2. — Obstructing drainage facilities. [repealed]............coreoeroreerrrrconnsreonions B TR 5
Sec. 19-3. — Foliage encroaching upon right-of-way; city authorized to remedy. [repealed]......5
Sec. 19-4. — Notice of intent to trim or remove. [rePaIB] ..............evvvceeesserseissseosssseeeee s eosons 6

Sec. 19-5. — Requirements for private driveways along certain roads and streets. [repealed]..6
Sec. 19-6. — Use of skateboards and other like instruments; limitation, penalty for violation.

[TEPRAIEA]. ...ttt msese e e s e ettt et eeseeesees e eees 6
Sec. 19-7. — Dumping prohibited. [repealed]........cc.cucwemwrrommrrsemeemmesesiressorssseesssseeeeeeeeeoeeeeseee oo 7
SECS. 19-8—19-32. - ReSEIVET. isususiitssissieisisniss isiissssssibiesisiiiinioemmrensmmmsesassonmmmrssssormsossaseesmesseemsastecs 7
ARTICLE Il. ~ ABANDONED VEHICLES AND OTHER PERSONAL PROPERTY? ... 8
S€C. 19-33. = DEFINIIONS. ...couvurririirersieesites e sesoeeseseeseeeeseeessess s e s s e s e eesseeesse s oo s 8
Sec. 19-34. — Authority to remove and store generally; cost of removal and storage................ 8
Sec. 19-35. — Enumeration of circumstances authorizing removal from streets and highways.9
Sec. 19-36. — Notice to owner of removed VEICIE. ..........cooeueiioeereoeeoeeeeoeoeoeeeoeeoeeeoeoeeoeooeoo 9
Sec. 19-37. - Notice to state when vehicle OWNEr UNKNOWN. «....ocoovvoooeoeoeoeeoeeooo 10
Sec. 19-38. — Redemption before sale authorized: owner may claim proceeds of sale. .......... 10
Sec. 19-39. — Procedure for redemption Dfore SAlE. ...........o..evvveoeveeeesoeeeoseooeooeoeeoeeoeeo 10
Sec. 19-40. — Sale of unredeemed Property rEQUIrEd. ....o..ooovvoeveeesoeeeseeoeeeeeeeeoeoeeoeeeeeeeoeeoee 10
SEC. 19-41. — Proceaure fOr SAIE. ................ovuevireeeeeeesesseesssiesses e e e eeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeee oo 11
Sec. 19-42. — AdvertiSeMENt Of SAIE. ............coiiuuiieeeieeeeeeteeeeeeeeeee e 11
SEC. 1943, = APDEAI. ..ceurummiieieieieeeeeee et 11
ARTICLE ML = INGENERAL............ooooooovvecovorseeeeeseseeessssssssssssseseessssssssseseseeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseeeeeeeseeo 12

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined ~ City Council Reulali%e'@sion 07.12.16 Page 1 of 52



Sec. 19—499 Uaamwmwfwmmmmm s 19
Sec. 19-110. Pmmuomfsignmmﬂ" -

MWGLE IV. - 0BS]
MANAGEMENT

Sec. 19-111. -"'_'_j._""?'_"

Sec. 19-112. - Obstructing ¢
Sec. 19-113. — Water over public sidewalks.
Sec 19-114. - Playuﬁg inthe Streets R OPOPPRROOORN: . |
Sec 19-115. — Use of skateboards or other like instruments; limitation penalty for violation.
Sec. 19-116. —'mnmm and vegetation along streets and si
Sec. 19-117. - Right of utility providers to mmm shrubs

Sec. 19-118. - Yard wastes: leaves, grass clippings, yard and gard

s 19
... 19
19

staessvanie 22
22
22
w22
2
ynney @3
wal3

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regui‘ai%eision 07.12.16 Page 2 of 52



899 mtﬁpwmmm T Sy L
Sec. 19:132. + PEIMIE CONAIIONS. ..............cocooeeeeeveeseseseseeeeeseeeessosesssssessseeee s eoeeessons 28
Sec 1&-134 wﬂmwlww e ———— T ————— |
Bae ﬁdﬁ? -Ins S R R ARV ST oA A AP AR S A S
Sec. 19-138. - Pamitgsmll i e /|
Sec. 19-139. — Emergency work.

Sec. 19-140. - ﬁmiggggmgﬂgm R O S R 35

DW@H - __m ”@  USE AND PACILITV LOCATIONS

Sm 19-%45 -c;mamatm e Ao e S BN —1
$¢e 19-!1&6 ﬁ;eiliw @Nmaubn ................................................................................................... 38

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Reguiaal"gefsion 07.12.16 Page 3 of 52



mmﬁs mmm R ..

ch. 19—”!61 Ammwtoéuycaumii Y.
DMS!GN 9 - RIGHT-'EJF-WAY INSURANCE, BONDING AND LIABILITY .....cccooovvvvvoer. 45

ﬁen 19-163 -B
Sec. 19-164. -lnaemamcum S T
Sec. 19-165. —Indumnﬁlm furcunlmctuamreaananic Ios&damagau ........................... 47

305. 19»1&6 —ln :

E‘& ﬁiﬂ&w}ﬂelﬁaa@ SRSV SRR

Sec. 34-33&@@ Petition reqwred ............................................................................................
Sec. Mm ~ Hearing on patition................

Footnotes:

S .

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Counci! Regulag gegsion 07.12.16 Page 4 of 52



State Law reference— State highway system, RSMo 227.010; establishment and vacation of roads,
public roads generally, RSMo 228.010 et seq.; private roads, RSMo 228.342 et seq.; construction and
regulation of public roads, RSMo 229.010 et seq.; permits to move buildings across roads, RSMo
229.230 et seq.; railroad, road, and street crossings, RSMo 229.380 et seq.; removal of plants from
highways and roadways prohibited, RSMo 229.475 et seq.; maintenance of public roads, RSMo 231.010
et seq., procedure for vacation of city streets, RSMo 71.240; streets in subdivisions outside corporate
limits of city, RSMo 71.270; annual municipal appropriations for construction and repair of public roads,
RSMo 71.340; sidewalk wheelchair ramps, RSMo 71.365; authority for ordinances requiring conspicuous
posting of street addresses for fire protection and emergency services purposes, RSMo 67.318; control of

streets and sidewalks, RSMo 77.520.

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL
Sec. 19-1. ~ Obstructing public ways. [repealed]

alaleTala

Sec. 19-2. - Obstructing drainage facilities. [repealed]

.....

(Code 1976, § 19-2; Ord. No. 78-984, §§ 1, 2, 3-27-1979; Ord. No. 88-1857, § 1, 12-13-1988)

e — T At 4 T g el W

Sec. 19-3. - Foliage encroaching upon right-of-way; city authorized to
remedy. [repealed

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Reguiaii%eision 07.12.16 Page 5 of 52



Repealed.
(Code 1976, § 19-3; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1983; Ord. No. 2009-3520, § 4, 2-24-2009)

—Sec. 194, = Notice of intent to trimorremove. [repealed]

{Code 1976, § 19-4; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1983; Ord. No. 2009-35260, § 2, 2-24-2009)

Sec. 19-5. — Requirements for private driveways along certain roads and
streets. [repealed]

(Code 1976, § 19-5; Ord. No. 85-1550, §§ 1, 2, 6-13-1985; Ord. No. 89-1952, § 1, 12-19-1989;
Ord. No. 2015-4139, § 3, 10-27-2015)

Sec. 19-6. - Use of skateboards and other like instruments; limitation,
penalty for violation. [repealed]

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulay gpgston 07.12.16 Page 6 of 52




(Code 1976, § 19-7, Ord. No. 98-2576, § 1, 10-27-1998) e

Secs. 19-8—19-32. - Reserved.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai %esssion 07.12.16 Page 7 of 52



ARTICLE Il. - ABANDONED VEHICLES AND OTHER PERSONAL
PROPERTY2

Foothotes———— -

-2 o i

State Law reference— Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act, RSMo 447.500 et seq.; removal
of abandoned motor vehicles on public property, RSMo 304.155; removal and disposition of vehicles left
unattended or improperly parked on private praperty, RSMo 304.157; abandonment of motor vehicles
prohibited, RSMo 577.080; authority of municipality to remove derelict vehicles as nuisance, RSMo
67.398; possession of derelict vehicles as public nuisance, RSMo 82.291.

Sec. 19-33. — Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed

to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Street or highway means the entire width between the right-of-way lines of every way publicly

maintained when any part thereof is open to the use of the public for purposes of vehicular travel.

Vehicle means every device in, upon, or by which any person or property is or may be transported,

hauled or drawn upon a highway or street, including, but not limited to, trailers and mobile homes,
excepting devices moved by human power or used exclusively upon stationary rails or tracks.

(Code 1976, § 19-50; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 1, 6-26-1979)

Sec. 19-34. — Authority to remove and store generally; cost of removal and

storage.
(a) The police department is hereby authorized in its discretion, in addition to any penalty that may be

provided therefor, to remove any stolen, wrecked or abandoned motor vehicle or any other vehicle
parked in violation of any provision of this Code or other personai property found upon any public
street or other public property in the city and shall keep the same in its custody and control at such
place as may be designated by said police department until redeemed by the owner thereof, as
hereinafter provided; and all such stolen, wrecked or abandoned motor vehicles or other personal
property which now is in the possession and custody of said police department or which may
hereafter come into its possession shall be subject to the actual cost of removal or tow-in from the
public place, and a storage charge cost per day in the amount provided in the city schedule of fees
and charges as long as the same is in the possession and custody of said department or the city.

The storage charge is limited to the charge for storage by the city and does not apply to storage by
any private tow agency duly authorized by the city to provide tow services to vehicles which may be

impounded by authority of the city.

(Code 1976, § 19-52; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord. No. 91-2055, § 1, 6-11-1991)

State Law reference— Municipal authority to remove abandoned motor vehicles on public
property, RSMo 304.155.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulary {ggsion 07.12.16

Page 8 of 52



Sec. 19-35. — Enumeration of circumstances authorizing removal from
streets and highways.

Members of the police department are authorized to have removed at the owner's or occupier's
expense a vehicle or other personat property from a street or highway to a garage, storage yard or other
place of safety under the circumstances hersinafter enumerated:

(1) When any vehicle is left unattended upon any bridge, street, viaduct or causeway, or in any
tube or tunnel where stich vehicle constitutes an obstruction to traffic.

(2) When a vehicle upon a highway or street is so disabled as to constitute an obstruction to traffic
and the person in charge of the vehicle is by reason of physical injury incapacitated to such an
extent as to be unable to provide for its custody or removal.

(3) When any vehicle is left unattended upon a street and is so parked illegally as to constitute a
definite hazard or obstruction to the normal movement of traffic.

(4) Upon the failure of the owner or operator of a vehicle left upon any street or highway to have
same removed or caused to be removed from said street or highway upon the request of a
police officer when said vehicle constitutes a definite hazard or obstruction to the normal
movement of traffic upon said street or highway.

(5) When a vehicle is parked on the streets in the same place continuously for 48 hours and a ticket
summons has been affixed to the vehicle or presented to the owner or operator.

(6) When the driver of any vehicle is taken into custody by the police department and such vehicle
would thereby be left unattended upon a street.

(7) When any vehicle is found being driven on the streets that is not in proper condition to be
driven.

(8) When any vehicle is found being on the street, and the driver, owner or person in charge of
such vehicle, while driving or in charge of such vehicle, or while such vehicle was parked or
stopped, has received a summons to answer to a charge against him or her for violation of a
traffic ordinance, and such driver, owner or person in charge has failed to appear and answer to
such charge within the specified fime.

(9) When any vehicle or personal property is directly interfering with the maintenance and care or
the emergency use of the streets by any proper department of the city.

(10) When a stolen, wrecked or abandoned motor vehicle or other personal property is found on a
public street or highway.

(11) When removal is necessary in the interest of public safety because of fire, flood, storm or other
SMergengy.reason. .

(Code 1976, § 19-53; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord.
No. 79-1004, § 2, 6-26-1979)

Sec. 19-36. — Notice to owner of removed vehicle.

Whenever an officer removes a vehicle from a street or highway as authorized in this article and the
officer knows or is able to ascertain from the registration records in the vehicle the name and address of
the owner thereof, such officer shatt immediately give or cause to be given notice in writing to such owner
of the fact of such removal and the reasons therefor and of the place to which such vehicle has been
removed unless said owner is present at the time of towing. In the event any such vehicle is stored in a
public garage, a copy of such notice shall be given to the proprietor of such garage.

(Code 1976, § 19-54; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 3, 6-26-1979)

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai (S)egssion 07.12.16 Page 9 0f 52



Sec. 19-37. — Notice to state when vehicle owner unknown.
Whenever an officer removes a vehicle from a street under this article-and-dees not know and-is-not
able to ascertain the name of the owner, or for any other reason is unable to give the notice to the owner
as hereinbefore provided, and in the event the vehicle is not returned to the owner within a period of ten
days, then the officer shall immediately send or cause to be sent a written report of such removal by mail
—— — ———to the state department whose-duty-it is-to-register-metor-vehicles-and-shall-file-a-copy-of such-notice-with—————
the proprietor of any public garage in which the vehicle may be stored. Such notice shall include a
complete description of the vehicle, the date, time and place from which removed, the reasons for such
removal, andthe name of the garage or place where the vehicle is stored.

(Code 1976, § 19-55; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 4, 6-26-1979)

State Law reference— Report of towing to state highway patrol and notice to owner, RSMo
304.155.

Sec. 19-38. — Redemption before sale authorized; owner may claim

proceeds of sale.

Any person claiming to be the owner of any impounded property, as in this article provided, shall
make written application therefor to the police department on forms furnished by the department of
finance and shall furnish to said police department such additional proof as may be required to establish
said ownership. If he or she shall present to said police department said proof of his or her ownership of
said impounded property prior to the date of actual sale thereof pursuant to the provisions of this article,
then the property itself shall be delivered to said owner under the conditions herein provided; but if said
property has been sold, then said department shall endorse its findings of ownership with a copy of the
written application addressed to the director of finance and said owner may present said application and
findings to the director of finance and if presented within one year after said sale, then such balance of
the proceeds of sale, after deductions as in this article provided, shall be paid to said owner.

(Code 1976, § 19-56; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.87, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 34, 5-29-1985)

Sec. 19-39. — Procedure for redemption before sale.

In accepting payment for removal and storage charges as provided in the foregoing sections, after
proof of ownership and before sale, the police department shall give the person applying for the motor
vehicle a receipt showing the amount paid. The collections of each day shall be paid to the city collector
on or before the close of his or her office on the following day. For the purpose of collecting redemption
payments, issuing receipts therefor and accounting for the proceeds thereof, the police department shall
appoint one or more of their officers or employees as impounding officers or employees as any others
shall be to receive such payments, issue receipts therefor, and account for said proceeds, to the
exclusion of all other officers or employees. A bond in favor of the city and covering all of said impounding
officers, in the amount as designated in the discretion of the city council, shall be provided by the police
department, subject to the approval of the director of finance as to its terms and its surety, and after
execution said bond shall be deposited with the department of finance, division of the treasury.

(Code 1976, § 19-57; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.88, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 35, 5-29-1985)

Sec. 19-40. — Sale of unredeemed property required.

All motor vehicles and other personal property impounded by the police department pursuant to the
provisions of this article and unredeemed by owner thereof for a period of 30 days shall thereafter be
subject to sale by the department of finance, division of the treasury, to the highest bidder for each or at
public auction and the proceeds of said sale shall be applied first to all removal and storage charges

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulay §egsion 07.12.16 Page 10 of 52



accumulated against each article which shall be deposited with the department of finance, division of the
treasury, and the balance of said sum, if any, shall be deposited with the finance director and shall be
kept in a separate fund for @ period of one year from the date of the receipt, and if at the end of said year
the former owner of said property has not made satisfactory proof of claim as hereinafter provided, then
the balance of said proceeds of sale shall be credited to the general fund of the elty.

(Code 1976, § 19-58; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.86, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 36, 5-29-1985)

Sec. 19-41. — Procedure for sale.

On the first day of each month the police department shall forward to the department of finance,
division of the treasury, a copy of its official description and all other pertinent information which may be
required by the department of finance concerning each motor vehicle or other personal property which
has been impounded under the provisions of this article and held for a period of 30 days unredeemed by
its owner, and thereafter at such interval as the department of finance may determine, public sale shall be
held as hereinafter required, but immediately before the actual making of any sales, the finance director
shall submit his or her list to the police department of properties to be sold, for the elimination of any
impounded articles redeemed and returned to their owners but included within the published
advertisement for sale, and immediately after said sale, the department of finance shall report to the
police department a complete list of all the property sold, including the sale price, all charges as herein
provided and the balance, if any, available to the owner.

(Code 1976, § 19-59; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 37, 5-29-1985)

Sec. 19-42. — Advertisement of sale.

Whenever the director of finance, under his or her direction, shall decide to offer impounded
properties for sale, he or she shall publish said sale at least once in a newspaper of general circulation
within the city, at least five days before said sale. Such publication shall briefly describe the property and,
where motor vehicles are to be sold, shall give the manufacturer's name, model and motor number.

(Code 1976, § 19-60; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.90, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 38, 5-29-1985)

Sec. 19-43. — Appeal.
Any appeal from the removal, storage and publications costs, if any have been assessed by the
police department, shali be to the city council.

(Code.1976,.§.19-61;.0rd. No..67-281,.§.5.87,.5-1-1967)

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regularle?)sion 07.12.16 Page 11 of 52



ARTICLE Il — IN GENERAL

Abandoned equipment o facilities means any equipment, materials
that are:

1. nmmmw the owner of such equipment or fac lities;
' ed from a portion of the operating facility or any

3. mm tﬁ!ﬂs in use or in service, and no longer capable of being used for the same or similar
rpose for which the equipment, apparatuses or facilities were installed.

Adjoining property owner means a person owning or legally occupying any land abutting a public
right-of-way.
Applicant means m pomn uquestlm pomﬂuin to mw or operate: facilities using the right-of-
way, or to work, excav e T a\

City means _the City of Belton, Missouri, a municipal aration and any dul

= ?W’
representative.

City Council means the City Council of the City of Befton, Mis:

inances of the City of Belton, Missour|

?amrﬁlssim.meéngﬂa_e;;:_iwissouri_. Public Ser,vigé_m:m.‘

Page 12 of 52

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulariﬁ_efsion 07.12.16



Emergency includes, but is not limited to, the following:

1. An unexpected or ullllllllned eum cut, rupture, leak or any other failure of a Service

Bravilsr mmmmm mwmmm to the public or a
material delay or hindrance to the provision of service to the public if the outage, cut, rupture,
leak orawfemusnﬂlmﬂmmrmmmer facilitles Is not

ilinae s umlamqeumwm

mmr mmamq lﬂlm
Excavate, excavating or mmans any act by whlch earth asphalt, concrete, sand, gravel,

rock or any other material in or on the ground is cut into, dug, uncovered, removed, tunneled into,
bored into, graded, or otherwise displaced, by means of any toals, equipment or explosives, except
that the following shall not be deemed excavation:

strian or vehicular

1. Any de minimis displacement or movement of ground caused b
traffic; _
2, mqplmmm eﬁmmﬂﬂmﬂ‘;_;; equipment at the existing general location that
ey T M o g i csndiions o 8% il
concrete, und,;ml.rulterllw"[ _‘malal in or on the ground.
Facility or facilities means lines, pipes, irrigation systems, wires, cables, conduit facilities, poles,

towers, vaults ‘pedestals, boxes, appllances, antennas, transmilhrs, gates, meters, appurtenances, or

other equipment used for or related to providir

Governmental entity means;anymoil’ﬁt?‘sto&f”'hipi'élty town vmgu s‘éﬁw districts ubfa‘ry district,

==

g

AR GRE mmmﬁmﬁu ited States. :

dural requirements for excavation and utility safety established by

apiat

Missouri One Cali means the pro
RSMo 319.010; et seq.

sometumes called boulev‘ards ﬁge-sli“elves_orqsnow-shelves

——t

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulaisleision 07.12.16 Page 13 of 52



=TTy T ry ey Sy

W T YRS R YW W, e

way in’

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council RegularlSles?)sion 07.12.16

Page 14 of 52



Routine service operation means excavation or work that makes no material change to the facilities
and does not disrupt traific.

user means a person, its successors and assigns, who uses the right-of-way for purposes of work,
emvatlon. provision of services, or to install, construct, maintain, repair facilities, eqmt, or
structures thereon or adjacent to, for which a right-of-way permit and/or a temporary traffic control
permit is required, including but not limited to landowners and service providers. A ROW-user shall

not include ordinary vehicular or pedestrian traffic.

Service means a commodity provided to a person by means of a dellvety system that is comprised of
facilities located or to be located in the right-of-way, lndudlns, but not limited to, ps, telephone,
cable television, internet services, open video systems, alarm systems, steam, electric, water,
telegraph, data transmission, petroleum pipelines, or sanitary sewerage.

Service provider means any person who is a provider of a service for or without a fee that has the
requisite certifications and authorizations from applhble  governmental entities, lmludln; the FCC, to
provide such service, including, but not Ilmitol to, every cable television service provider, pipeline
corporation, gas corporation, electrical corporation, rural electric cooperative, telecommunications
company, water corparation, heating or refrigerating corporation or sewer corporation under the
jurisdiction of the public service: commission; every municipally owned or,operated:utility pursuant to
RSMq,Chapter 91, or pursuant to'a charter form.ofzgovemment or,ecooperativelysowned or aperated
utility pursuant to RSMo Chapter : 394; every street light maintenance district; every privately owned
utility; and every other entity, regardless of its form alomnimlnn or governance, whether for profit
or not, which in providing a public utility type of service for members of the general publlc, utilizes
pipes, cables, oondmts wires, optical cables, .pnles, or other means of transmlssion, collection or
exchange of communications, information, substances, data, or electronic or electrieel currentfor
impulses, in the collection, exchange or dissemination of its product or services through the public
rights-of-way Servioe provider includes both facility based service providers and reseller service

providers.

C'n'ln means :m’: nhi.n t, device Jiegla o
display, or attract attention toan object person, inshtution organizatlo business, product serwce,

event, arlomhq Iwmmn,lnelumgmm mu,mm.fmm ymbals, fixtures, col
illumination, or projected images. The term "sign" shall not include the following:

}his'i’e*ric slgniﬂ%ngetorlgateways;ror o

—'\u— e

trae 'aameand address number of the

Br g % ; - : ¥
property to ﬁhich itis affixed provided that the sign consists of Iettering no larger than three
(3)inchesona mailbox.
Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 15 of 52

114



C. ‘Sandwich Boar

In criteria,

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulaiiegsion 07.12.16

Page 16 0of 52



Sec. 19-104. - Public right-of-way in general.
A Ho pemnshallconstruct, repair, damage, deface or obstruct any street, alley, sidewalk,
avement, gutter, hrltlﬁe,m siwer,dl‘iln,mlurt,llnmt.orsuﬂtshn or post without

permission of the City Engineer and in conformity with specifications promulgated by him or
her and approved by the City Council.

B. No person shall in any way drive upon any sidewalk, pedestrhn trail, or curb and gutter
system and shall notjumptlueurherplm a vehidauponanvsur&mdescrlbedheuln.

C. Ali'street closing procedures shalii be done in conformance with Article V of this Chapter.

Sec. 19-105. — Requirements for private driveways along certain roads and

streets.

A. S_upervislon by the Department of Public Works. The Puhlic Works Director, City Enxlnm or
other employee designated by the cny Manager shall inspect the eonsuuctlon of all drlveways
l!efose lﬁiprwements are eommeneed wlfhln the publle rl;ht-of-my, a nlglrt-of-wav pennit
must be issued by the City Englneer

B. Mamtenance The owner of the property served by a drlmy is responsible for the

dnveway plpe .th' collapses clogs or othemise fails rm lts purpose shallfbe repalred or
replaoed within a reasonahle time after such failure by the property owner or other
responsible person.

Sec. 19-106. — Construction of sidewalks.

A. All sidewalks constructed upon right-of-way and public sidewalk easements shall be
constructed in accordance with the Design and Construction Manual (sldewalks outside of
ﬁiut-o:mway or punuc smewallt easements are prlvate)

B. Any person or entity conMng a new building, a building addition, major renovations to an
existing bulldlng (major lmpmemenu means Immmm exceed 50% of fair market value
of | renovated structure), or significant site lmprovemenls qliill be required to construct a
public sidewalk, where no sidewalk exists, along the puhllc stuet fromue ln cenfounmee
with the D.e gn and -c'S‘rr’st'r'u?ﬁB‘:T’m al"""l‘héfﬁty g e ‘

and construction methods and matenals oflsu . 'l'hl applicatlon shall be ln the form
ofa right-ofdway permit ‘and shall conform tovthe requirements of such .permit.

Sec. 19-107. - Maintenance of sidewalks.
A. Rtshall be ‘the duty of all persons. ‘owning or ogsypyimfany real property, fronting upon any
street to keep the sidewalks in front and alongside of such property and on' the same side of
the street, in good repair and order and clean the same and remove from any such sidewalk

allice, snow, earth or other subst ""':thatluamkemornndersﬂaesame

dangerous, inconvenient or unsafe to any person.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council RegularlSlegsion 07.12.16 Page 17 of 52



Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined ~ City Council Regular]_Sf%sion 07.12.16

Page 18 of 52



ARTICLE V. - OBSTRUCTIONS; ENCROACHMENTS, BARRIERES,
Sec. 19-111. - Obstructions prohibited; exceptions for merchants, etc.
No person shall place or throw, or cause tnteq:laud wmﬁ mmﬁﬁﬁm,w mmmm

of any kind whatsoever upon the streeg nglxey, avenue, pubiic square, pavement, curb and gutter or
sidmkwhnthe_r dec alk or not. Nothing in this section shgll be so construed as to

clared a public sidewa
prevent any merchan 'mcﬁermfmm placing any articles or boxes on the sidewalks whiles
receiving or dallvemng;ood: or l"nmardlm the same, or reoelving fuel, not to remain in the street
more than one day; or building materials, during the erection of any building, or improvement;

provided, that such materials shall not occupy more than one-half (1/2) of the street.

Sec. 19-112. - Obstructmg drainage facilities.
A. It shall be un forany person to alter, change or obstruct any drainage facility, including

detention or uuntlon ponds, streams, waterways, culverts, intakes, curbs, etc., without prior
approval of RWMM

: . _ . dit ﬂjﬂlﬂ“‘tﬂldm« roadwav
C. it shall be unbﬂfnl for any'owner or. oceupner;{fofimal;pr&perty»to alter, change or obstruct or

permit or allow the continued alteration, dmummmoﬁm drainage facility,
mcludmg;dm“rretentnon pondh culverts, intakes, curbs, etc. .» Without prior approval of

the City Engineer.

Sec. 19-113. - Water over publlc sidelnlks
No water from any dowi _ or drain from any building or premises shall be
permitted by the Wner of anv premlses to draln or mn onta the surface. of;any sidewalk, nor. across
the same, unless it be made to pass through conduits, drains, or pipes placed beneath the surface of
the sidewalk.

Sec-19: 114. - EPIaymg_m the Streets
No persan sh _IlIthrow snowbalis or engasg\in}anvm sport, or actnnty Iikely to' in;ure, frighten or

impede mmafwm upon any street, alley or pt

Sec 19-115. — Use of skateboards or other like | instruments; limitation

penalty for vnoliﬁn

A. m“ibmhwmm No person shall use, operate or permit the use or operation of
any skateboard or fike instrument on any sidewalk, street, parking lot or other public place in

any busmess mﬁn the erty as detemil“‘” by the eitvizonmg ordinance map, as the same

in sabsectloh (Il)-af this sectmn |; herebym on'all othe_ﬂgldewaiks_ streels and ‘other

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai ?_egsion 07.12.16 Page 19 of 52



Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulaljﬁegsion 07.12.16

Page 20 of 52



rmittees, and any damage which the landowner r sting facllities on
s RO, T AR e T e . ] 3

iditional code pertaining to pre

EXE s o
nances for ad

- - s —— —— - T e

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulaig%ssion 07.12.16 Page 21 of 52



ARWC&V% WRIGHT&QF%VIWWAGEMEJ@F ﬂSE C@NS‘T 'RUCTION,

rce that mmﬂiﬁm‘ﬁmﬁ R f; _' *’f- fff'“??_ | i
partlcufa"ﬁ’f’tﬁk article is enacted to:
A. Manage the right-of-way to alfow efficient location of facilities and maximize services to the

citizens of the city.
B. Allow for the maximum utilization of the City's right-of-way to meet the increasing d
*ﬂhmnnla:iealmm
C. _-miﬂ lmmpmmmﬁ“m , .-_I. jide _’ _"_

:P.,.

mm

£

2 ]

S -

i <ih
|

: Ii'if_'” i-zﬁ-_g _d" a _. '
DIVISION 2. - RIGHT -@FWA?M NISTRATION AND AUTHORITY

Sec 19-123. ~ Citqungmeer

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council RegularSggsion 07.12.16 Page 22 of 52



DIVISION 3. ~ RIGHT-OF-WAY SERVICE PROVIDER REGISTRATION

Sec. 19-125. - Persons who must register.
Alf Service Providers must register in accordance with this code. Individual property owners and
contractors are not required to register.

Sec. 19-126. - Service provider registration. _
All existing Service Providers must register within thirty. (30) days of the effective date of this article.

A. Any person who s not a Service Provider prior to the effective date of this article and who
wishes to become a Service Provider must first regrster wrth the Clty

B. No Service Provider shall be authorlzed to use the nght-of-way in any. capadtyor manner
without registering with the city and obtaining any necessary right-of-way permit or
temporary traffic control permit from the City Engineer.

€. The Service Provider shall be responsible for ali costs incurred by the City due to the failure to

provide any information to the City required for registration.

Sec. 19-127. - Registration requirements.
A. Requirements and Processing

1.

2.

Registration shall be accomplished in the form of a letter to the City filed with the City
Clerk.

To be valid the, the registration letter must be signed by an authorized representative
eHhe Nwﬂﬁ&mmm ry eentain alrwquired‘ Tﬂfﬂ’l‘nﬁﬂoﬁ and be

Charges

At any time the City Engineer determmes a registratwn letter does not eompiy with
this code, the City Engmeer may returnittoa pomt of contact |denuﬁed therein with a
wiitten’ exp-aﬁatuaﬁ uu f the rease‘n(s) for such return. Filing fees snaumot be refunded.
Failure to return a reglstratlon Ietter shall not validate an incomplete or otherwise

invalid or void registration fetter.

B. Contents of Registration Letter. A registration letter shalf contain or be 'accompanied by the
mformatlon requured herem Al such mformauon received by the Cltv shall be pubhc. uniess

iy, Wi

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regula

S ay, week).
Descrlptmn of the‘generalruses made orto be made of the facilities located within the
rights-of-way by the registering person, eq”mmmefmﬁﬂnﬂd,&ndhwhne
of facilities {or portion thereof, includmgﬁbandwidth)\to another pemn, use of the
facilities to transverse the City, construction of facilities to be used at a later date, etc.;
Description of all sesvices provided or to be provided by the registering person to any
person located in the City through facilities located within the rights-of-way and an

r Session 07.12.16 Page 23 of 52
122



Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regu.larl%%sion 07.12.16

Page 24 of 52



Sec. 19-128. — Transferability.

Except as provided in this article, or as otherwise required by law, no registration may be transferred
without the written consent of the City. Any person not named on a valid registration, including any
affiliates or successors in interest to a registered Service' Pro\'hder, mu's't' ‘register in accordance with
this article or receive: written authorization to transfer the registration. Written authorization to
transfer a registration shall be granted according to the same standards for a registration. The City
shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to transfer as provided herein.

DIVISION 4. - RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMITS

Sec. 19-129. - Permits required.

A.

Ext_:__ept,as-ot—heMisej_pro.vid_ed herein, no person, Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall
perform excavation or work, as those terms are defined in Section 19-101 hereof, in the right-
of-way without a right-of-way permit.

No adjoining property owner shail construct, maintain, or permit in or on the portion of the

public right-of-way to which such land is adjacent, any fixed structure, material or object
without having obtained the appropriate right-of-way permit.

The, application'for a;right-of-wav permit shall be submitted to the City Engineer either by the
reglstered Serwce Provider andlor ROW-user or an authorized agent of the Service Provider
and/or RGW-user who will do the work and/or excavation in the right-of-way

if the WWMWMW has satisfied the requirements of this article,
the City Engineer shall issue a righ

Any person who is found to;be wmﬂl‘ or. excavating.imthe public right-of-way without a
rlght-of-way perrmt wull be directed to stop the excavation or work until a right-of-way permit
is acquired and available at the excavation or work site, thepermit fee shall double and will
result in a violation pursuant to Article Vi of this Chapter.

E)'(cep'f as otherwise provided herein, no person; Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall
narrow, close, alter, affect, orMmpactatheu normal'.ﬂow of vehicular traffic or
pedestrian traffic. in‘theungh -of-way without a temporary traffic contro! permit.

The appliminn fora mempnmv Mpomit -shall be submitted to the City Engineer
either by the reglstered Senm:e Meraand/owkew-user or an authorized agent of the

Service Provider andforRe will do-the temporary traffic control!
If: the Githngmeer determmes that ﬂ:eranhntthas,satrsﬂedtthe ‘requirements of this article,
the City Engil ary traffic control permit.

Any person who is found rrarrownt, dﬁng, altering, 'affectmgror othenmsel lmpactmg the

trafﬂccontrol permlt will be dlreched to slnp the eauselfor tempolary trzfﬁc control remove
all~temporary traffic control devices, restoremonnalbtraﬁ‘ eccondltlons anddeave ‘the site until a
temporary trafﬂc controlupermitals‘ _' (o _'e.rsihe thespermlt :fee shall
double and will resultina \violation pursuant ﬁofAmcle VI ofrthls |Chapter.

Sec. 19-130. — Permit form.

A,

The right-of-way permit application shall be on the current form provided by the City Engineer
and at a minimum shall include the following:

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regularleision 07.12.16 Page 25 of 52



1. Compliance with all of the necessary registration requiréiiténts-fof'thisi'_art'i'd"e',i
incluing: __
257 HWappllcantuya:person___ ther than th

et i

i by mﬁ Rnwlﬂar andlor
f the:pr&"p‘o“s‘é‘dﬂpmject and the location of
ocatlon, whlch documents shaII be

ﬂ*ﬂsﬂngranﬂhgngﬂosediﬁsiﬂtﬁ?#
nﬂﬂeﬂhalandmotd-sdosedlmhl :

' _'_"'___" City, unless the
asﬂilled-hereafter, and,
9. Cemﬁcateszoﬂmsurance*and performance‘and: maintenance bonds as provided in this

ey w_“

‘ln a-fonn‘a'bteptab e )the

mwmamm amd

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regularlegsion 07.12.16 Page 26 of 52



Sec. 19-131. — Permit fees.
A. The right-of-way permit fee, temporary traffic controi permit fee, street cut fee, and re-
inspection fee shail be recommended by the City Engineer, approved by the City Council and
Iisted in the Schedule of Fees and Gharges maintalnnll in the City Clerk's office.
B. Fees assoclated with managing the right-of-wayishall be:

1.

2.

3.
4.

Based on the actual, substantiated costs reasonably incurred by the City in managing
the:rlght-of-wor

Based on an allocation among all users of the right-of-way, including the City, which
shall reflect the proportionate costs imposed on the: City by each of the various types

of uses of the right-of-way;
Imposed on a competitively neutral and nondiscriminatory. basis; and

-imposed in a manner so that aboveground uses of the right-of-way do not bear costs

incurred by the City to regulate underground uses of the right-of-way.

C. In determming the actual costs reasonably incurred by the Cityin managing the right-of-way,
the City may include the following:

1.

. The cost of revoking right-of-wa

D. Fees paidlforaright-of-wavpermitor i ernporary bafﬁc control perrnlt whlch is

The cost of issuing, processing and verifying right-of-way permit.and temporary traffic
control permit. applicattons
The cost of inspecting job sites, traffic control installations and conditions, and

restoration pmjem

: The cost. oﬁMng or moving Service Providers and/or. Row-users ‘construction

equipment and materials after reasonable notification to'the Service Provider and/or
ROW-user;

- The cost of determining the adequacy of public nght-of-wav restoration.

The cost of restoring temporary traffic control excavation or work inadequately
perferrneﬁaﬂer prwiillngmee:and the nppnuunfw to correct the temporary traffic
control, excavation or work, lnnludlru re-lnmcﬂanfew am.i

subsequently revoked lzylhe City Engmeer, are not refundable
E. The right-of-way permit fee shall bedim:osed based ontlafollewing, as determined to be

ppropriste andﬁemnnau Engineer:

er ol '
inspection of‘ﬂln ﬂork, and locatmg City utllities
Additional work fees. Addmonal work‘fees< indude costs to recover work on linear

faCllltIES‘ and street cuts
(1) I.mear Wﬁy recoverv costs include the time spent mspectlng the work and

pecting the work.

rvice Provider and/or
OW:-uses pared for ; _e-‘mspectlon or work
is not compliarrt, as determmed'-by'thetinspector, therefore requrring an additional
inspection(s).

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council RegularlSéesésion 07.12.16 Page 27 of 52



' @tﬁ_’-‘;&:ontm'f"é‘ﬁ?tﬁ"

— o

ap -'5\-%‘1 All completed

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai Ee;sion 07.12.16 Page 28 of 52



6. All safety practices required by law shall be used during ROW work, including
commonly accepted methods.and devices toprevent fatlures and accidents that are
likely to cause damage, injury or nuisance to the public.

7. Any Service Provider and/or ROW-user performing work within the right-of-way must
be property licensed under laﬂlofuthezsutefandwllrapplicable local ordinances and
shalf be held to the responsibilities of this code. Any person performing work in the
ROW:

a) Must ensure that contractors, subcontractors and all employees performing
ROW work are trained and have pertinent experience related to the work
performed,

bj Shall be responsible for ensuring that all worlk is performed consistent with
the ROW permit and applicable law;

¢} Shail be fully responsible for all:acts or omissions of contractors or
subcontractors,

d} Shali be resp‘qh‘s_ible‘fou promptly correcting acts or omissions by any
contractor or subcontractor, and

e) Shall implement a quality control program to ensure that the work is
properly performed.

8. Itshall be the dutw of any person making an excavation in the ROW to properly
backfill such excavations'zand}properlyarestoresthensurfaoezm fits | proper condition.
Refer to mvision L7<of(Artlcteanof this: Chapter.,forirequirem on restoration

9. Exceptincasesofan: emergency ‘or with approval of theﬁr&dneer, no right-of-way
excavation or work may be done in violation of a thp work order issued by the City
Engineer if in his. or her determinatlomconditionsmre unreasonahleforfsuch

tion practices.

ay such that the

10. Any Service Provider and/orrROW-user«‘shall" not disrupt a right
Iﬂhﬂd“ﬁﬂi’ﬂwﬂw ummﬂﬁ_ s or _
interfered with. Nolperson ‘may park privatewehicles wrthin or next to the work or
excavation area, except: for‘such areas which' may“bé‘ ﬂes‘ignated and marked as safe
areas for vehicle parking in accordance with an appmwtunmuaﬁlc control

penmt.

any ofits fa'eimies, limit. aurexesva“ﬁfér} or work'to that neces'safyfor efficient
operation.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular; %@smn 07.12.16 Page 29 of 52



Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council RegularySggsion 07.12.16 Page 30 of 52



3. The thinﬂneermaymﬂnmation of temporary traffic control approved by
Suchinenmigitiinthe coinisaist the City Engineer, based o standard engineering and
construction practice, conditions are unreasonable for the continuation of such
temporary. traffic control. Except in cases of an emergency. onwith the approval of the
City Engineer, there shall be no, mterruption of nommal traffic in violation of a stop
work order issued by the City Engineer

4. No person may: park private vehicles within or next to the temporary traffic control
area, except for such areas which may be designated and marked as safe areas for
vehicle parking in accordance with an approved plan and areas where parking is
legally permitted under normal conditions.

5. Iftemporary traffic control is being done for the Service Provider and/or ROW-user by
a third person, such as a subcontractor, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall be
responsible for ensuring that the temporary traffic control of said third person is
performed consistent with the-temp_orar-y traffic control permit and applicable law
and the permit holder shall be responsible for promptly correcting any wrongful or
erroneous acts or omissions by sald third person.

6. The City Engineer may establish in the temporary traffic control permit limitations the
extent to which of traffic maywbe impactedoat any one (1) time.

7. The Service Provider and/or Row-user shall limit all temporary traffic control to that
which is. approved through!the permit.

8. 'I’he Service Provlder and/or Row-user shall not impact normal traffic flow longer than
is! necessamto,ycomplete the;projet:t*u ind in no event may the impact to traffic exceed

the expiration of the umpqruym:fmw m«any amvodeextension
9. Non-ernergency temporary traffic control on artenal and eollector streets may not be

T

perf' : med before 9'00 a .m. and after 4 00 p m. A thm Friday, nor anytime on
c / ays obs ' I on_The City Engineer

C. ereless Transmission Pt'a'ﬂder In.ad _ on;to:the‘*foregmng and'm addition to any other
standards or requlrements lmposed by this code wnth regard toan appllcation filed by a
wireless mnsmlsslbn provider, the City Engineer shall ensure compliance with the following

provisnons
i. aineudosian,mmrezofsalhfaciliu«ﬂbe:subjeetrtoathenrewew and

fie mntml pormif

or ' m are :incompatlole wrtn the proposed facilitles or would be
rendered unsafe or unstable by the installation, and

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 31 of 52
130



Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regularlsfision 07.12.16

Page 32 of 52



! st di _‘mdﬂmmumm.w ofwnporm trafﬂc
m in t!uat gwater area:

_ Mwﬂl nccur. and

b. Pay;all additlonalnfees required;.thereby |

b L

B. Aﬂghmmmma mmuw mmxmmbemmm (60) days.
1. NoSer r and/or ROW-user m , on or work before the
mpmmmm s Pre ._._immmnnﬂnul excavation
or work after the end date, If a ROW-user does not complete the excavation or work
byﬂ;nght-of-wawpermitiendldaﬁe the)RGw user,must%applwfomnd*recelve anew

2. No Servwe Provuder and/or Row-user may performxtemporary thfﬂ&control before
the,temporarv traffic control permit start date or, except as. pmided herein, continue
tempomryptrafﬂgcontrolgafterm!etend*datevspeciﬂ' g 'ﬁeupenllf:-.'- if a Service
Provider and/ rr orary traffic control beyond the temporary
trafﬁcjeonml;pemit;eng,gg_ " or ROW-user must apply for
andureoeive)amew;temborary.-trafﬁmcmo!1permitmnea.~temporarv traffic control

e

byFthe Se_rvice-;’rovlder an d/ Q,W;usef _“tadditior@lirigh&,o_-\gavgpermit or
temporarwtrafﬂc;co,n_tr.thermnt fees To qualify for an extension, a supplementary

application must be submitted to the City p&bﬁwiﬂu ‘permit end date.

Sec. 19-1. 35 Pmmsplgyed

ight-c orary 1 . shall be available by the Service
Provider and/or Rew-user at all tlmes at the indu:ataed prOject site and shall be avaiiable for
inspection by the City Engineer, other City employees and the public.

-436.-C
Sec. 19 Completed work

Do e g e
The ServicejProv «; ndlo;?@ﬂ-user shall notify the oﬁiceg‘oﬂthe Cithngineen upon completion of

y?at;a

requireme E;E;;!'-_:;-:-_f_- d rig ary traffi MI«permit are
being met by the Service Prowic

B.

or work m poses a serious threat to the hfe;' heaith, safety, or wellbeing of the public.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council RegulaIiS?)essiou 07.12.16 Page 33 of 52
2



ems of the temporan

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai §e§sion 07.12.16 Page 34 of 52



3. The City has provided the Service Provider and/or ROW-user with a reasonable,
competitivelv neutral, and nondiscriminatory justification for requiring an
alternative method for, performing the temporary traffic control, excavation or
work identified in the respective rlght-of-way permitor temporary traffic control
permit applicationora reasonable alternative route that: willrresult inneither
additional installatlon expense up to ten (10) percent to the Service Provider
and/or ROW-user nor a declination of service quality.

4, The City determines thatthe denial is necessary to protect the public health and
safety, provided that the authority of the City does not extend to those items
under the jurisdiction of the public service.commission, such denial shall not
interfere with a Service Providers and/or ROW-users right of eminent domain of
private property, and such denials shall only. be imposed on a competitively
neutral and nondiscriminatory basis. in determining whether denial of a right-of-
way permit or a temporary traffic control permit application is necessary to
protect the public health and safety, the City Engineer may consider one (1) or
more of the following factors:

a) The extent to which the right-of-way space where the right-of-way permit or
temporary traffic control permit is sought is available, including the
consrderatlon of competing demands for the partlcular space in the right-of-
way, or other. general conditlons of the rlght-of-way.

b) The applicablllty of any ordlnance, Code provlslon, or other regulations that
affect the location of facrlrtles and publlc travel in the rlght-of-way

c) The degree of dlsruptlon to surroundmg communitles and businesses that
will result from: the use of that part of the right-of-way, including whether
the issuance of a ﬂght-of-way permlt ora temporary trafﬂc control permit
for the particular dates and/or times requested would cause a conflict or
interfere with an exhibition, celebration, festival, or any other event.

d) The area is environmentally sensitive as defined by state statute or federal
law or is a historic district defined by local ordinance.

Sec. 19-139. - Emergency work.

A right-of-way permit and temporary traffic control permit are required for emergency situations. if,
however, due to an emergency itiis necessary for the ROW-user to immediately perform temporary
traffic control, excavation or work!in the right-of-way, and it is impractical for the ROW-user to first
get a right-of-way permit ora temporary traffic control permit, the temporary traffic control,
excavationor work may be performed, and the required permit shallibe obtained as soon as
reasonably possible, butinot later than three (3) business days after the temporary traffic control,
excavation or work is begun. The ROW-user shall notify the City's Public Works Department if
emergency temporary traffic control, excavation or work is necessary as soon as possible.

Sec. 19-140. — Permit exemptions.
A. Service Providers and/or ROW-users performing routine maintenance which does not require
excavation or work In the right-ofiway, which doas not dicrupt traffic, and which does not

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 35 of 52
134



Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined ~ City Council Regulan Session 07.12.16

Page 36 of 52



other local, state or federal agency having jurisdiction over the Service Provider and/or ROW-
user.

F. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall cooperate promptly and fully with the City and
take ali reasonable measures necessary to provide accurate and complete on-site information
regarding the nature and location of its facilities within the right-of-way, both underground
and overhead, when requested by the City or its authorized agent for apublic improvement.
Such location and identification shall be at the sole expense of the Service Provider and/or
ROW-user without any expense to the City, its employees, agents, or authorized contractors.

G. Unless otherwise agreed to by the City and the Service Provider and/or ROW-user by license,
agreement or permit, the City shall not be liable for any damage to or loss of any of the ROW-
users' facilities within the right-of-way unless the damage is the result of the sole negligence,
or willful, intentional, or maliclous acts or omissions of the City.

Sec. 19-142. - Sale, transfer, lease or sublease of facilities.

A. Inthe event that the Service Provider and/or ROWeuser shall sell, lease, assign, sublet or
dispose of its facilities, or any portion thereof, that are located i in the right-of-way, or any
right, title or interest in the same, or transfer any rights granted by the City to any person
either by forced or involuntary sale, or by ordinary sale, consolidatron or otherwise, Service
Provider and/or ROW-user shall notify the City of the same. In such case, the buyer,
transferee, lessee or assignee shall be subject to all provisions. of this: artlcle, including the
requirement to reglster. This provuslon shall not. apply to the sale of property or. equlpment in
the normal course of business orto  the. sale or lease of facilities to' reseller Service Provider
and/or ROW-user. No notice to t_he City shall be required fora transf_er_in trust, mortgage, or
other similar instrument, in. whole or in part, to secure an indebtedness; or for a pro forma
transfer to a corporation, partnership, or other entity controlling, controlled by or under
common control with the ROW-user.

B. A Service Provider and/or ROW-user may permit and has the authority to sell, sul_:let or lease
any use of excess capacity and sefl services for resale to any.reseller service provider providing
service within the City, including -th_e-Semjice:l?.rovlders-.a_ndlorR_Ow-:users-subsidiary or
affiliate. The reseller service provider shall first register and obtain any necessary permit,
license, certification, grant, reglstra_ti_o_n_. franchise agreement or any other authorization
required.by..any,appmpniatmsou_er.-nmental;a_ntit;y;ein_cluding,\sbu.tqnot»limitedeto;.thes_eity-,;the
FCC or the Commission. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall also; iprovide the City, on
atleasta seml-annual basis, the identity of entities: with which the! Row-user has entered into
an mterconnection and/or resale agreement withln.the City This notice will not relieve the
reseller service provider from its own, obligation to: reglster and obtain any necessary franchise
wrthrthe City. Nothing';in:thls»artlclelshall preventamfacilltyrbased service provider from
provudmg to any reseller service provider, the use of the facllityrbased service provider's
facilities in the right-of-way as authorized by federal or state law.

Sec. 19-143. - Facility corridors.
The City Engineer may designate speciﬂc utility corridors by assigning specific locations for each type

of facility thatic currantly ar "l'““’ stheiGityiE .gineer expects will someday b&, ru_uu_ed withiiv the Tight-

of-way. All right-of-way permits issued by the City Engineer shall indicate the proper location for the

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulaigegsion 07.12.16 Page 37 of 52



Service Providers and/or ROW-users facilities. Specific locations shall be specified in the City's Design
and Construction Manual and can include reservation of space for any planned or future anticipated
uses of the City, in its sole discretlnn

] Sec 19-144. - Conduits.

Iif, in the preparatlon and planning ofa pubilc improvement the Gity Engineer deems It apprpprlate
for a conduit to be constructed by the City along, across or under the right-of-way, the City Engineer
shalt contact all appropriate Service Providers and/or ROW-users for their input on the planning and
design of such conduit. If a Service Provider and/or ROW-user desires to construct, maintain or
operate facilities along such right-of-way concurrently, the City Engineer may allow the Service
Provider and/or ROW-user to use such conduit if the Service Provider and/or ROW-user agrees to
contribute to the expense of such conduit.

Sec. 19-145. — Coordination.

A. Applicants may apply jointly for right-of-way permits to excavate the rlght-of-way at the same
time and place. Applicants who apply jointly fora nght—of-way permit may share in the
payment of the right-of-wav permit fee. Applicants must agree among themselves as to the
portioneach shall pay.

B. Thes Service Provider and/or Row-user shall partlcnpate in any ]oint planning, construction and
advance notification of exavatlon or work, including cootdmation and consolldation of
excavation or work as requlred by the Cltv Engineer. In addition, the Service Provider and/or
ROW.user shall cooperate with other Service Providers andfor ROW-users and the City for the
best, most efficient, most aesthetic, and least obtrusive use of the right-of-way.

Sec. 19-146. — Facility relocation.

A. A Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall promptly relocate or adjust any facilities located in
the right-of-way as directed by the City for a»public improvement. The Service Provider and/or
ROW-user shall promptiy ‘remove, relocate or adjust any facilities located in»the rlght-of-wav
as directed by .t_he_.C‘ ty which create a threat to public safety. Such rer_no.val relocation or
adjustment shall be performed by the Service Provider:andfor ROW-user at the Service
Provrders and/or ROW-users sole expense without expense'to the City, iits' employees, agents,
or authorized contractors and shall be specif' cally subiect to mles, regulations-and schedules
of the Ctty pertaining‘to such. The Service Provider andlor Row-user*shall‘proceed with the
remaval, relocation;, or admsﬁﬁer‘it-:of facilities! withdue dillgence upon notice by'the City to
begin removal,treloatron, onadjustment.

B. The Service Provider and/or Rew-user shall: promptly relocate orfadjust any facilities located
in private easements#or-ﬂ:ei”construction ofa publlc impmvement at the cost of the Service

2. The City ha§‘ ‘é'omp'm’satedithe Servlce Provider and/or ROW-user, through the
condemnation, purchase process, or other means of compensation, for: the cost of
relocation of the Service Providers and/or ROW-users facilities.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulag $egsion 07.12.16 Page 38 of 52



E.

As soon as City prepared working drawings are available for public improvements that will
require the Service Provider and/or ROW-user to relocate or adjust its facilities, the City shall
provide the Service Provider and/or ROW-user with written notice of required relocations or
adjustments, the anticipated bid letting date of the public improvement, and notice of the
deadline for completion of the relocations or adjustments. The Service Provider and/or ROW-
user shall respond with any. conflicts and'a proposed construction schedule within thisty (30)
days, subject to.approval by the City Engineer.

Following delivery of final design plans for such public improvements, the Service Provider
andlor ROW.-user shall relocate or adjust its facilities in accordance with the schedule set by
the City Engineer, provided the project is not delayed by adverse weather conditions and
other factors beyond the control of the Service Provider and/or ROW-user. The Service
Provider and/or ROW-user shall certify to the City, in writing, that its facilities have been
relocated or adjusted in accordance with project plans provided by the City so as to allow the
City, and its contractors, to proceed with the public improvement.

If any facilities are not relocated In accordance with this section, the City or its contractors
may relocate the facilities. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user and its surety shall be liable
to the City for any and all costs incurred by the City.

In the event the Service Provider and/or ROW-user is required to: m'ove its facllltles in
accordance with this section, any ordinary right-of=way permit fee shall be waived.

it is the intent of this section for both the City' and the Service Provider and/or ROW-user to
cooperate wlth one another so that the need for facllity relocation Is minimized and, when

‘required and. feasible, relocations may be completed prlor to receipt of bids' by the City for a

public improvement .
Failure to comply with the relocation schedule set by the City Engineer will subject the Service

Provider and/or ROW-user to penalties as provided in Article Vi of this Chapter.

Sec. 19-147. — Unused and abandoned facllities,

A.

A Service Provider and/or ROW-user owning abandoned facilities in the right-of-way must
notify the City of its intent to abandon the facilities and must either:

1. Remove its facilities and replace or restore any damage or disturbance caused by the
removal at its own expense. The City Engineer may allow underground facilities, or
portions thereof, to remain. m.place ltthe City Engineer.determines that it is inthe
best interest of public safety to do so At such tlme, the Clty may take ownership and
responsrbilrty of such abandoned facilitles Ieft in place,

2. Provide information satisfactory to the City that the Service Providers and/or ROW-
users obligations for its facilities in the right-of-way have been lawfully : assumed by
another authorized Service Provlder and/or Row-user, or

3. Submit to the City a proposal and' instruments for transfernng-__ownership of its
facilities to the City. If themService'Provider and/or RQ er roceeds under this
subsection, the City may, at its option, pu_ th ent, require the Service
Provider and/or ROW-user, at its own expense, toaremove it, or r _ulre the Service
Provider and/or ROW-user to post a bond'in an amount~sufﬂcie it to reimburse the
City for reasonabie anticipated costs to be incurred to remove the facilities, except as

otherwise provided herein.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regularls3e§sion 07.12.16 Page 39 of 52



B. If the City discovers abandoned facilities in its right-of-way and the owner of the abandoned
facilities fails to respond within thirty (30) days to a written!notice sent. by the Gity stating that
the City considers the facilities abandoned, or the Cityis unable to locate the owner of the
abandoned ladlities after reasonable attempts, the City. shall deem the facilities to be

e City receives confirmation that the Service Provider and/or ROW-user

lmmmwmwlmu. ‘Abandoned facilities are deemed to be a nuisance. The City may

exercise any remedies or rights it has at law or in equity, including, but not limited to,
1. 'AbatingT'-the:'nuls-ancej;
2. 'l‘al('ing posse'ssion and ownership of the facility and restoring itto a useable function;
or
3. 'Requiring the ‘removal of the facility by the Service Provider and/or ROW-user.

Sec. 19-148. - Facilities and vacation of nght-of-way
if the City vacates a rsght-ofsway which contains the facilities of a Service Provider and/or ROW-user,

A. The City, at its sole discretion, may reserve a utlllty easement or other easements necessary in
the City's name to allow the existing facillrties to remain
B. If the vacation requires the, relocatlon of hcilit!es, then:
1. if vacation proceedings are initiated by the Service Provider and/or ROW-user, then
the Service Provuder and/or ROW-user must pay the relocation costs; or
2. If vacatlon proceedings are initiated by the City, then the Servioe Provider and/or
Row-user must -pay the relocation costs’ unless otherwise agreed to by the City and
the Service Provider and/or ROW-user; or
3. If vacation proceedings are initiated by a person other than the Service Provider
and/or ROW—user or the City, then sudl other person must pay the relocat:on costs,

unless otherwise agreed to.
DIVISION 6. — RIGHT-OF-WAY TRAFFIC CONTROL AND STREET
CLOSURES

Sec. 19-149, - Traffic control.
AEI traff_ic control permanent and temporary, shall be properly installed and mamtained at the Service

conformance with the iatest edltion of the Manual on:Uniform Trafﬂc Control.ﬂeﬂhl. When able, all
traffic control devices shall be set .up 24-hoursii in advance of a: closure to notify nearby stakeholders.
Sec. 19-150. — Notice of closure.
The Servlce Provnder andlor Row-user shall notrfy the Clty no Iess than ten (10) Mng days in

i the full closur direction of vehicle
¢ that will disrupt vehicular or
'S less radvance--  any temporary traffic
control Except m the event of an emergency*as mmy determ

ned by the Service Provider and/or
l_iQw-.H.m,and.Cl_tv; Engineer, no such closure shall take place without notice and prior authorization
from the City.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai%sion 07.12.16 Page 40 of 52



Sec. 19:151. = Coordination.

A. An applicant may apply jointly for a right-of-way permit anditemporary traffic.control permit
to perform temporary traffic control, excavate or work in the right-of-way at the same time
andiplace:

B. Applicants may apply jointly:for temporary traffic control permit for temporary. traffic control
at the sameitime and place. Applicants who apply jointly for a temporary traffic control permit
may share in the payment of the temporary traffic control permit fee. Applicants must agree
among themselves as to the portion each shall pay.

€. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall participate in any joint planning, construction and
advance notification of temporary trafflc control, including coordination and consolidation of
temporary traffic control as required by the City-:Engin_eer. In addition, the Service Provider
and/or ROW-user shall cooperate with other Service Providers and/or ROW-users and the City
for the best, most efficient, most aesthetic, and least obtrusive use of the right-of-way.

Sec. 19-152. - Traffic control plian.
All safety and traffic control measures must be implemented according to any approved traffic control

pian required by the temporary traffic control permit.
DIVISION 7. = RIGHT-OF-WAY EXCAVATION PROCEDURES

Sec. 19-153. - Location of existing facilities. |
The Service Provider and/or RQWW-SMI-identify and locate any underground facilities in
conformance with the "Missouri One Call" system.

Sec. 19-154. - Service Provider and/or ROW-user responslbllltles'

A. The Service Provider and/or ROW—user shall be Ilable for. any damages to facllities due to
excavation or work performed prior to obtaining the location of all facilities in the area in
which the excavation or work is to be performed, or for any damage to facilities that have
been properly identified prior to excavation or work. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user
shall not make or attempt to make repairs, relocation or replacement of damaged or

disturbed facilities without the approval of the owner of the facilities.

8. Whenever there is excavahon or wnrlphv i'hﬂ Qn:}n_lra_ ?Jr::ri_ﬁlnr:::lfn:ﬁr‘“_l-i_i‘;s_%—’ t"%_'er_..;ce
Provider and/or ROW-user shall. be responsible for acquiring all necTe‘ss:ary temmraﬁ?ra??c
control permits and providing adequate temporary traffic control to the surroundmg area as
provided in this article. in the event the. excavation or work is not completed ina reasonable
period of time, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user may be liable for actual damages to the
City for delay caused by the Service Provider and/or ROW-user pursuant to Division 9 of
Artlcie V.of this Chapter

C. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user responsible for the excavation: of work who leaves any
debris in the right-of-way shall be responsible for. providlng all necessary temporary traffic
control and safety protection in: ‘accordance with! the temporary trafﬁc control:_-permit and any
applicable federal or state requirement. The Service Provider and/or »80: V. ser_sha!l also be
responsible for removinz said. debris from the right-gf-wav lf 'ghp Snmira pmume,- and/ar
ROW-user fails to comply with the temporary traffic control permit or fails to remove debris
from the right-of-way, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall be responsible for damages

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined ~ City Council Regulai S4865i0n 07.12.16 Page 41 of 52



to the City, or its contractors, resulting from said failures and shall indemnify the City and its
contractors as provided in Division 9 of Article V. of this Chapter.
D. Inthe event the Service Provider and/or ROW-user severely disturbs or damages the root
structure of any tree in the right-of-way to the detriment of the health and safety of the tree,
the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall be. zeuiﬂmm remove and replace the tree at the
Service Providers and/or ROW-users cost. Further, in review of the Service Providers and/or
ROW-users: plan, the City Engineer, in his or her discretion, may requlre the Service Provider

and/or ROW-user to directionally bore around any tree in the right-of-way.

Sec. 19-155. - Standard of work:
All temporary traff' ic:control, excavatton or work performed in the nght-of-way shall be done in

conformance with the latest versions of the Gity's Design and Construction Manual and the Manual on
Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

Sec. 19-156. - Restoration.
A. After any temporary traffic control, excavation or work, the Service Provider and/or ROW-

user shall, at its expense, restore all portions of the right-of-way to the same condition or
better condition than it was prior to the temporary traffic control, excavation or work.

B. If excavation or work cannot be back-filied immediately and is left unattended, the Service
Provider and/or ROW-user shall securely and ‘adequately cover and mark the unfilled
excavationor work. The Suvir.l Provider and/orlRGw-user has'sole: responsibility for
maintainingnproper temporary traffic control barriers, safety fencmg, sngnage, and/or lights as
required, from the time of the opening of the' excavation or work until the excavation or work
is surfaced and opened for travel.

C In addition to repalring its mweet cuts the Service Provider and/or ROW-user must
restore any area within ﬂve(S) feet of the new street cut that has prevlously been excavated
;ncluding the paving and its m foundations.

D. Allearth, materials, sidewalks, paving, crossing, utiiities, public improvement or
improvements of any kind damaged or removed Iby the Service Provider and/or ROW-user
shall be fully repaired or replaced promptiy by the Service vaider and/or ROW-user at its
sole expense and to the nmmllle satisfaction of the Gity Engineer However, a Service
Prowder and/or R@W—user shall not make or attempt to' make repalrs, reiocation or
repiaoeme'nt of damaged orM?be"dmfaci‘lities withoutathe rapprovai of the owner of the
facilities

1. The City Engmeerllasﬂle authority*to ins ject t
damage, and if necessary, ton he!!
additional'and' nemry excavat on\or
and the deficiencies found will, vid
and a reasonable time not to exceed fifteen!
deficlencies‘*to be corrected.

2. Any/deficiencies not cotrected shall'be considered a "faflure to restore" and the City
shall proceed ammto this Gﬁa‘pter lpon: q 3} rmination by the Citnyngmeer that
the failure to repair or replace ereates ‘a threat—to pubiic safety, ail such repair or
replacement shail be corrected within twenty-four r(24) hours of notice from the City,

_of the unsatl actory restoration
rovlder""and/or ROW-user
v .ﬂllibe ‘provided to allow for the

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regula}iiefsion 07.12.16 Page 42 of 52



or the City Engineer may utilize City resources to make such repair or replacement at

pLEp b e e e e T s e

Sec. 19-157. - Failure to restore.

If the Service Provider and/or ROW-user fails to restore the right-of-way in the manner and to the
condition required by the City Engineer, or fails to satisfactorily and/timely complete all restoration,
the City may, at its option, serve written notice upon the Service Provider and/or ROW-user and its
surety that, unless within ten (10) days after serving of such notice, a satisfactory arrangement is
made for the proper restoration of the right-of-way, the City shall immediately serve notice of failure
to comply upon the surety and the Service Provider and/or ROW-user, and the surety shall have the
right to arrange for and complete the restoration excavation or work; provided, however, that if the
surety does not commence performance thereof within fourteen (14) days from the date of notice,
the City may perform its own restoration excavation or work and prosecute same to completion, by

contract or otherwise.

A. Upon determination by the City Engineer that the failure to repair, replace or restore creates a
threat to public safety, all such repair or replacement shall be corrected within twenty-four
(24) hours! of notice from the City, or the City will perform its own restoration excavation or
work and prosecute same to completion, by contract or otherwise.

B. Upon determination by the City Engineer that the failure to repair, replace or restore creates
an immedlate threat to public safety, all such repair or replacement shall be corrected within
one (1) hour of notice from the City, or the City will perform its own restoration excavation or
work and prosecute same to completion, by contract or otherwise

C. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user and its surety shall be Iiable to the City for its actual
costs of such restoration, including the value of any time or overtime incurred through the
labor of City employees, the value of the use of Clty equiprnent, and the cost of City materials
used in the restoration project.

Sec. 19-158. - Guarantee of restoration.

A. In restoring the right-of-way, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall guarantee its
excavation or work and shall maintain it for a period of forty-eight (48) months, or for the
maximum pericd of im re allowed, Gy daw, whichever is.greater, following iis completion.

1. During said guarantee period the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall, upon
notification from the City Engineer, correct all restoration excavation or work to the
extent necessary, usingeany method as' required by the City Engineer

2. Said excavation or work shall be completed within a reasonable time, not to exceed
thirty (30) calendar days, of the receipt of notice from the City' Engineer

3. In the event the Service Provrder and/orlR@W—userﬂis requlred*to perform new
restoration pursuant to the' foregoing: guarantee, the. City Engmeer shall have the
authority to extend the guarantee period for such new»restoration for up to an
additional forty-eight (48) months, or other greater period'allowed by law, from the
date of the new restoration, if the City Engineer determines there was action by the

Service:Providér and/oniROW user:not tolcomplywithithe conditions-ofithe right-of-

way permit and any restoration requirements.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Pegular1S4esésion 07.12.16 Page 43 of 52



B. Whenany required corrective actions have been completed and'inspected to the City
Engineer's satisfaction, the guarantee period will begin.
€. The guarantee period shall be applicable to failure of the pavement surface as well as failure

below the pavement surface.

‘Sec. 19-159. - Notice and inspection. ]
Upon completion of all right-of-way restoration activities, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall
notify the City's Public Works Department, which shall then schedule a closeout inspection.

DIVISION 8. —- RIGHT-OF-WAY APPEALS OR WAIVERS

Sec. 19-160. - Appeals.

Whenever a person has been denied a ﬂght-of-wav permit or a temporary traffic control permit, had
its right-of-way permit or temporary traffic control permit revoked, believes that the fees imposed on
the person by the City do not conform to the requirements of RSMo 67. 1840, asserts any issues
related to the use of the right-of-way, or deems themselves otherwise aggrieved by any decision or
action taken by the City or the City Engineer under this Chapter, the person may: file an appeal to the
City Manager or hislher designee by filing written notice of such appeal wuth the Gity Clerk’s office

within ten (10) calendar days of the date of notice of such decision or action,

A. The City Manager or his/her designee shall schedule an informal meeting with the aggrieved
person and shafl have the power to overrule such dec:slon or action taken bythe Cnty or the
City ‘Engineer, may extend the time Ilrnit of such declsmn or actlon, or may grant exceptlons
to, or waive res nents of, or m‘#ﬂ’ea variance from the sﬂﬂiﬁs' rovisions of this Chapter.

B. The Clty Manager or his/her desugnee shall issue the;r decision m Wi ng After the decision of
the City: Manager or. his/her designee is rendered the aggrleved person may appeal the
declsuon of the City Manager or hlslher desrgnee to the City Council by ﬁhng written notice of
such appeal with the City Clerk's office within ten (10) calendar days of the date of notice of

such decision or action.

Sec. 19-161. — Actions on appeal to City Council.

A. Such appeals to the City Council as provided for in Division 8 of Article V of this Chapter shall
be heard by the. Citv COum:ikon the record with evidence and testlmonv asa contested
hearing pursuant to RSMo Ghapteq 536

1. The Citv Mr and his/her designee shall deliver a transcript of the written record
and exhibits. along wrth.ft”sfw n recommendation for action to the Gity Council.

2. The GtvCouncll may overrule such deeisron or »nitaken by the‘Cily or the City
Engineer, rnay extend ),

the'reasdn"ableness of the declswn

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai%egsion 07.12.16 Page 44 of 52



B. Pending adecision by the City Council, the order of the City Engineer shall be stayed, unless
R e o S o o e e N e e e e e e e e e s lp Ut séfe"qi or the
integrity of the public infrastructure.

C. Inthe event the City Council affirms the prior decision of the.City.or the Clty Engineer, in
addition to all other remedies and if both parties agree, the aggrieved person shall have the
right to have the matter resolved by mediation or binding arbitratlon

1. Binding arbitration shall be before an arbitrator agreed to by both the City and the
aggrieved person.

2. The costs and fees of a single arbitrator shall be borne equally by the City and the
aggrieved person.

3. [f the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, the matter shali be resolved by a three-
person arbitration panel consisting of one (1) arbitrator selected by the City, one (1)
arbitrator selected by the aggrieved person, and'one (1) arbitrator selected by the
other two (2) arbitrators. In the event that a three-person arbitrator panel is
necessary, each party shall bear the expense of its own arbitrator and shall jointly
and equally bear with the other party the expense of the third arbitrator and of the
arbitration.

D. Each party to the arbitration shall pay its own costs, disbursements and attorney fees.

DIVISION 8. - RIGHT-OF-WAY INSURANCE, BONDING AND LIABILITY

Sec. 19-162. - Insurance.

A. Unless a Service Provider and/or ROW-user has twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000.00) in
net assets and does not have a history of noncompliance, or permitting noncompliance, within
the City, then the Service Provider and/or Row-user shall ﬁle with the City evudence of
liability insurance with an insurance company licensed to do business in Missouri.

1. The Service Provider and/or' ROW-user shall provide all’ lnformation to the ity

£ S T el an T I R Y oY V)

-ecessar,' ol eterminelthela Moy Ci e sasSets IO HIe SerViccI Plavider andy or ROV~

user.
2. The amount of insurance shall be in amounts sufficient to protect the City against all

liabilities not protected by the State of Missouri's soverelgn immunity statute. The
insurance will protect the City from and against all claims by any person whatsoever
mmumumo-mase;fromrpelsonal uuury,,miw,.lnjurv,ldeatnnor.propertyﬂdamage
arising out of or alleged to have arisen out of the negligent or willful acts or omissions
of the Servlce Provider and/or ROW-user.

3. If the ServiceJProvider and/or— Row-user is'self-insured, it shall provide the City proof
of compllance regardlng’its*abillty to self-insure andiproof of its ability to provide

nce Ceruﬁcate‘ must be on file with the City Clerk.
_d oftany residentral prope '_'owner'excavating or working

For purposes of this sectlon, *history of noncompilance,‘ or' permrtting noncompiiance, within
the City", shall mean the Service Provider and/or ROW-user, or any persons acting on the

(e

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 45 of 52
144



hehalf of the Service Provider and/or ROW-user, including contractors or subcontractors, has
failed to return the public right-of-way to its previous condition under a previous right-of-way

permit or temporary traffic control permit.

Sec. 19-163. Bonding

A. tf a2 Service Provider and/or ROW-user has twenty~f' ve miiilon dollars ($25 000, 000 00) in net
assets and does not have a hlstory of noncompllance, or permitﬁng noncompliance, within the
City, then the Service Provider and]or ROW-user shall not be requrred‘to maintain a
perfonnance or maintenance bond.

1. The Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall provide ali information to the City
necessary to determine the amount of net assets of the Service Provider and/or ROW-
user.

2. For purposes of this section, "history of noncompliance, or permitting noncompliance,
within the City," shallimean the Service Provider and/or ROW-user, or any persons
acting on the behalf of the Service Provider and/or ROW-user, including contractors or
subcontractors, has failed to return the: pubilcright-of-waivto its previous condition
under a previous right-of-way permit or temporary traftic control permit.

B. Ifitis determined pursuant to subsection A of this section that a Service Provider and/or
ROW-user does not have twentv-ﬁve million dollars ($25,000,000.00) in net assets or does
have a history of noncompliance, or permnttmg noncompliance, within the City, then the
Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall:

1. Maintain a performance bond in a form approved by the City Attomey The amount of

the bond will be five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) or the value of the restoratlon,
: whlchever ls}greater, as determined by the City Ergmeer fora term consistent with
‘the _a; pllcabl ghtof-way,. ermit or ter Mry trafﬁc control permit,

2. Malntam a maintenance bond in a form approved bytlll City Attorney. The amount of
the bond: will be five thousand dollarS*($5 ,000. 00) or the value of the restoration,
whlchever is greater, as determlned by theCity. [Engineer, for a term consistent with
the term of the apphcabie right-of-way permnt or temporary. traffic control permit plus
four (4)iaddit|onali,years, conditioned ponithe Sennoe Pmder’s»and/or ROW-user's
faithful perf"'rmance ofthe::prdvusnons, terms and. oond'mons conferred by this article.

C. inthe event the Cityshall exercise. its right to. revok the my permit.or the temporary

traffic control permitia;p mltted herein, then the 'shall be entltled to. recover under the
ned. A copy of the malntenance and

terms of sald bonds the fuil ‘amount of any ioss 0CCasi
performance bonds must»bgm;ﬁie wnh-the Clty rk. No, ggainmrmem performance bond
esiden Ci um_orMng in the _ght-of-way

work and who does,not requ:re 3 temporary traff' ic controi perrmt.,

Sec. 1 9-1M Z lnd'emmﬁcation.

empiovees, eiected officlals,,attorneys,.and agents, from and agamst any and aIi clalms,
demands, suits, proceedmgs, and actions, liability and judgment by other persons for

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai i@sion 07.12.16 Page 46 of 52



damages, losses, costs, and expenses, including attomey fees, to the extent caused by acts or
omwissions of the person, or its agents, contraciors, or subconiraciors, in the performance of
the permitted temporary traffic control, excavation or work.

B. Nothing herein shall be deemed to prevent the Clty, or any agent from partlclpatlng inthe
defense of any litigation by their own counse! at their own expense. Such partlclpation shall
not under any circumstances relieve the person from its duty to defend against liability or its
duty to pay any judgment ‘entered against the City, or its agents.

C. All Service Providers and/or ROW-tisers shall be responsible for promptly correcting acts or
omissions by any contractor or subcontractor performing permitted temporary traffic control,
excavation or work for such Service Provider and/or ROW-user hereunder.

Sec. 19-165. - Indemnification for contractual or economic loss damages.

Any person operating under the provisions of this Chapter or performing any temporary traffic
control, excavation or work in the right-of-way shall fuily indemnify, release, defend and hold
harmless the City and agents of the City when acting in their capacity as municipal officials,
employees, elected officials, attorneys, contractors, and agents, from and against any and ali claims,
demands, suits, proceedings, and' actions, liability and judgment by other persons for contractual or
economic losses, damages, losses, costs, and expenses, including attorney fees, to the extent caused
by failure of a ROquser, or its agents, contractors, or subcontractors, to relocate or adjust its

facilities pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter.

Sec. 19-166. — Indemnification for damage to facilities.

A. Any person operating under the provisions of this Chapter or performing any excavation or
work in the right-of-way shall be liable for any damages to facilities due to excavation or work
performed by the person; including: damage to undelground facilities that have been properly
identiﬁedhprior‘to commencement of excavation or: work

B. Anyperson: operating under the, \provisions of this Chapter or performing any excavation or
worlum the nght-of-way shall fully’ indemnify, release,.defend and hold harmless the City and
agents of the City when actlng in their capacity as municipal officials, employees, elected
ofﬁcials, attomeys, contractors, and agents, fromand against any and all claims, demands,
suits, proceedings, and actions, liability and judgment by other persons for damages, losses,

mincluding ‘attorney fees mage-to the facilities of other
ROW-users bv a person, or its agents, contractors, or subcontractors.

Any requirements thus satisﬁed shall be indicated on the Servrce Provider’s and/or ROW-
user's registration and shall not be req_urred for each right-of-way permit and temporary
trafﬁc-contml.pemllt.

_lt-.

user,*unless*the appllc‘aﬁt is llsted as an a’ddltl "nal lnsur nthe Servlce Provlder's and/or
ROW-user's insurance polrcv and is covered bv the surety. The. applicant must submit evidence
of the satisfaction of these requirements prior to issuance of a right-of-way permit or a
temporary traffic control permit.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 47 of 52
146



Article VI. - RIGHT-OF-WAY VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES

Sec. 19-168. — Violation.

A. No Person shall perform temporary traffic control, excavate or work in the right-of-way in
violation of the provisions of this Chapter. Any viofation of this Chapter shall resuitin the
immediate issuance of a citation to the person and enforcement action pursuant to Article Vi
of this Chapter.

B. Exceptas provided in subsection A. of this section, if the City Engineer determines that a
Service Provider and/or ROW-user has committed a violation of this Chapter, any law or
ordinance, or a condition placed on the nght-of-.w_ay_ permit or the temporary traffic control
permit, the City Engineer shal) make a written demand upon the Service Provider and/or
ROW-user to remedy such violation, which may include the issuance of a stop work order. The
demand shall state that the continued violation may be cause for revocation of the right-of-
way permit or the temporary traffic control permit as provided for herein, or legal action if
applicable. .

C. A violation will allow the City Engineer, at his or her discretion, to place additional or revised
conditions on the right-of-way permit or the temporary traffic control permit, specifically
refated to the manner in which the violation is cured by the Service Provider and/or ROW-
user.

1. Wlthm fourteen' (14) ‘calendar davs of mum notification of the violation, the
Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall contact the City Engineer with a iplan,
acceptable to the City Engineer, for correction of the violation.

2. Upon determination by'the City Engineer that the violation creates a threat to public
safety, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shatf mthm twenty-four (23) hours of
notice from the City contactithe. City Wneerunth a plan, acceptable toithe Gity
Engineer, for correction of the violation.

3. Upondetermination by the City Engineer that the violation creates an immediate
threat to publu: safety, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall within one (1)
hour of notice from the City: contactuthe Gity Engineer wrth a plan, acceptable to the
City/ Engineer, for correction of the: violation.

4. AService Providers and/or Rew-users falure to contact the City Engineer, failure to
subm|t~an acceptable plan, or’ failure tao Mbly‘in‘nplement the approved plan shall

be cause for immediate revocation of the r ay permit or the temporary traffic
controf‘permit.

Sec. 19-1 69 —Revocation of permits

) fterxreasonable notice and an opport
s :_-trafﬁa- affic control! perm t granted to a Service Provider and/or’ Rew-user,

wrthout fee refund if one (1) or more of' the hMocurn
1. A‘mateﬂalwidnﬁon of a provision of the right-of-way permit or temporary traffic

control permit;

tunity to cure,, revoke a nght-of-

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regularlslfgsion 07.12.16 Page 48 of 52



2. Anevasion or attempt to evade any material provision of the right-of-way permit or
temporary traffic control permit, or the perpetrationor attemptte perpetrate any
fraud or deceit upon the political subdivision or its citizens;

3. A material-misrepresentltlon of fact in the right-of-way permit or. temporary traffic

control permit application;
4. A failure to complete temporary traffic control, excavation or work by the date

specified in the associated right‘of-way permit or ternmrary traffic. ‘control permit,
unless a rlght-of-way permit or temporary traffic control permit extension is obtained
or unless the failure to complete the temporary traffic control, excavation or work is
due to reasons beyond the Service Providers and/or ROW-users controi;

5. A failure to correct, within the time specified by the City, temporary traffic control,
excavation or work that does not conform to appiicable engineering standards,
specifications, national safety codes, industry construction standards, or applicable
City Code provisions or safety codes that are no more stringent! than national safety
codes or provisions, upon’ mspection and notification by the City of the faulty
condition:

B. Iifa rllht-oimw permit or temporary traffic control permit is revoked, the Service Provider
and/or ROW-user shall also reimburse the City for the City's reasonable costs, including
administrative costs, restoration costs and the costs of collection and reasonable attorneys'
fees incurred in connection with such revocation.

Sec. 19-170. — Penality.

Any person wolatmg any provrsron of this Chapter is gulity of a public offense, and upon conviction
thereof shall be fined inasum of not less than two hundred dolilars {5200 00) nor more than five
hundred dollars ($500.00). Every day that this Chapter is violated shlﬂcomﬂtuh a separate offense.
The Gity sha!l have the authorrty to mein’tcln civill suits or actions ln anv court of competent

remedies, the City Attorney may in_stituu injunc_tion, man_damus or other appropriate actions or
proceedings to prevent violations of this Chapter.

Articie Vii.
Sec. 19-171. — Federal, State and City Jurisdiction.
wsmpw shall be construed ina manner consistent with all applicable federal, state, and
localllaws. Nomithstandln' any other provisions of this Chapter tothe. contrary, the
construction, operation and maintenance of the Senﬂm Providers. andlor ROW-users facilities
shaii be in accordance with ali laws and régulations of: the United States, the sm lnll any
political subdivision thereof, or any administrative agency thereof, having jurisdict
B. Inaddition, the Service Provider and/or ROW-user shall meet or exceed thnmmnt
Wl'standards setby ‘regulatory bodies, including the Glty, now or hereafter having

jurisdiction.
The Service Providers and/or ROW-users rights are subject to the police powers of the City to

adopt and enforce ordinances necessary to the health, safety, and' welfare of the public. The

N

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 49 of 52
148



mw;mmmmmmmmmmm ordinances

emllmanmo..that-,power
vi . -user to comply with:any applicable law or
: forfaiture offanv perrnit lreglstratlonfor -authorization granted in
=" WMthismﬁn e e
Sec. 19-172. — City's failure to enforce.
The City's fallure to enforce or remedy any of the terms and conditions of this Chapter

or ciamm?mﬂmwmnm&annwkcmﬁumn not
constitute a waiver of the City's rig . . _lﬁiﬂonﬁﬁiriﬁl provided.

Sec 119-»1173 Resgmatmmefgﬁahh

o et o the City by this Chapter, the City reserves unto
if every right and power v uired __bmﬂnmwhyimpmﬂslhn of any ordinance
under anv re‘gi§t?‘atlon, .permit‘lormmtiomgranted ‘under this Chapter.

B. The City Council shall have the rﬁht to waive any provision of thleChapter orany registration,
sreunder, except those required by federal or state

z. That the enforcement of anlr srovisi '_williimposelannundue hardship;on*the person

Tobe effectivé such‘ waive“r shall; be evidence: '_.bv aifstatement in writing signed by a duly

of the City. Further, { by _'.....;E&imnmud

18 ' ere ior 'iﬁ»ﬁkﬁﬁiﬂhrw

not imupomthewrights of any person;pursuant*to any applicable sute or federal statutes,
including, but not limited to the right to occupy the right-of-way.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regulai iegsion 07.12.16 Page 50 of 52



Article ViIl. - VACATING PUBLIC WAYS
Sec. 34-33 19-174. — Petition required.

Whenever any person, persons or entity's desire to have vacated any public squares, public parks,
streets, avenues, alleys, or other highways, or any part thereof, such persons, persons or entity shall
petition the city council, giving a distinct description of the property to be vacated, which petition shall be
filed with the city clerk for delivery to the city council at their next regular meeting.

(UDC 2010, § 9.16; Ord. No. 66-249, § 1, 6-10-1966; Ord. No. 2013-3892, § 2, 3-26-2013)

Sec. 34-34 19-175. - Hearing on petition.

Upon any request, the city council may instruct the planning commission to hold a public hearing to
consider the vacation of any public easement or right-of-way. Such public hearing shall be duly advertised
and all property owners abutting such easements or rights-of-way and all utility agencies or companies
using such easements shall be notified of such proposed vacation at least 14 days prior to the scheduled
hearing. The city council, after receiving a recommendation from the planning commission, vacate such
easements or rights-of-way; however, no easement may be vacated if any official protest is received from
any utility which has lines contained within such easement.

(UDC 2010, § 9.17; Ord. No. 66-249, § 1, 6-10-1966; Ord. No. 2013-3892, § 2, 3-26-2013)

Sec. 34-35 19-176. — Action on petition.
If no opposition is made to such petition at the hearing, the city council may vacate the same with
such restrictions and reservations as it deems in the best interest for the public good. If opposition shall

be made to the pefition by any person or persons owning property abutting on such square, park, street,
avenue, alley or highway, the city council may, if it deems advisable, overrule such objection and grant
the prayer of the petition or deny the petition or order further hearings into the matter.

(UDC 2010, § 9.18; Ord. No. 66-249, § 2, 6-10-1966)

Sec. 34-36 19-177. — Reverter.
Whenever any public square, street, avenue, alley or other highway shall be vacated in accordance
herewith, the same shall revert to the owners of the adjacent lots in proportion as it was taken from them.

(UDC 2010, § 9.19; Ord. No. 66-249, § 3, 6-10-1966)

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 51 of 532
150



This article is pending further review and evaluation by the Department of Public Works; Pubtic Warks
Committee and other Staff.

Exhibit A - Chapter 19 Redlined - ity Council Régu!a‘ijﬁswn 07.12.16 Page 52 of 82



EXHIBITB

Unified Development Code, Belton, Missouri

Chapter 34 - STREETS AND
SIDEWALKS

Sec. 34-1. - Obstructing public ways. [FePEAlEA] ........ccccerereecrerecreseeresnssssssssessssssssesssss s sesssseenns 3
Sec. 34-2. - Obstructing drainage facilities. [repealed].........ovuueueeruceeericeriessesessesseessesssessssssessssesesssens 3
Sec. 34-3. - Foliage encroaching upon right-of-way; city authorized to remedy. [repealed]........cuc....... 3
Sec. 34-4. - Notice of intent to trim or remove. [FePEAIEA] .. ..cuovoveeeevereeeeereereeseee oo e eee e e 4
Sec. 34-5. - Requirements for private driveways along roads and streets. [repealed].........coeovveen.... 4

Sec. 34-6. - Use of skateboards and other like instruments; limitation, penalty for violation. [repealed]
b

Sec. 34-7. - Dumping prohibited. [FePAled].........ccueeueeeeererrereresecriseerseseessesesssessresssesssssesssseessssesesssesssesss 3
SECS. 34-8-—34-32. - RESEIVEM........ccrsurmeramenmitisiiiviiativiiiss s s e A ebavetbonans 5
ARTICLE II. - VACATING PUBLIC WAYS .....ooooiieicerieiiiesniesessnaessssessssssssssssssesssessnsssssssessssessnsssssesssesssssssssesesns
Sec. 34-33. - Petition required. [rePealEd]........cc.ceuivcueeiremriiireeicceiaeeieeeesesessssersssesessessesesessssssesesesesns B
Sec. 34-34. - Hearing on petition. [FEPEAIEA].......ccceueeeriiercecrireseressseseesssssesessnsseseesssssssssesessssessssssessss 6
Sec. 34-35. - Action on petition. [FEPEAIE] ........couveueveererereetieeeseesessssseesesesssssesessessees e sss e oo et seesesesons 6
Sec. 34-36. - Reverter. [repealed] vuuwiiswmsisisisssssisssssisisimssmisiisimsssssiiiniamiiticiamnnn b
SECS. 34-37—34-60. - RESEIVEM. ....evevecurrreiierenererrieseesssessssssssssssesssssssnsssmsessessnsssssessnssssssssseessssssssssesessssss §
ARTICLE HI]. - EXCAVATIONS......cootrtritmcimmsanessasessassserssessesesesesesssssesasssessensesssssssessssssssssssssssssessssssesessssesees 7
Sec. 34-61. - Provisions declared supplemental. [repealed].........cceceeeeeemmeeeeeeeeeeeereeeenersereresseseesessssssns 7
Sec. 34-62. - Permit required; exception. [rePealed]............covuccrecreeereesreseseesesesessesseseessesssssssesssesesns 7
Sec. 34-63. - Application for permit, fee. [FePAIEA] ......ccereerrririeereesereesseseessesesssssesesssses s essens 7
Sec. 34-65. - Bond required for excavation of right-of-way. [repealed].......cooeeeveerreescersesesssesseseinns 7
Sec. 34-66. - Excessive repair work to be contracted out. [repealed] ......ccoveeeeeveervereoeeeessseisssnns 7

Sec. 34-67. - Traffic, safety requirements. [Fepealed] .........cvccirieueeeeiesrreseesessesseseseeseseeses e seeseenn 8

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regula{ E%ezssion 07.12.16 Page 1 of 21



Sec. 34-68. - Work to be inspected. [repealed] .....c.ccoceenvicrvriecinnnas ..8
Sec. 34-69. - Backfill and pavement repairs. [repealed] .......cccocvvevveeeieisicerescecsnenaes 8
Sec. 34-70. - Violations; penalty. [repealed] .........cccoecuerrrnrneruereerenressereeesens .8
= Secs. 34-71—34-98. ~ Reserved. s e L E T 8
ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES AND PROPERTY LEFT ON STREETS OR PUBLIC PROPERTY ......coeeurueerreirereneerncariins 9
Sec. 34-99. - Definitions. [rePealed].....cccccicreeeceececrrereessseseeaeseasessessessessesseeses ...9
SEC. 34-100. - RESEIVEM. ....coiiinirieiasiiitsiesisinsirasesesessessesssesansesessassassessssessesssassessessessnsasessssenssseiionmonsosesences 9
Sec. 34-101. - Authority to remove and store generally; cost of removal and storage. [repealed]......... 9
Sec. 34-102. - Enumeration of circumstances authorizing removal from streets and highways.
L] o 1T 1= | OSSOSO 9
Sec. 34-103. - Notice to owner of removed vehicle. [repealed] .........cccoeieiiiieiecccsinieseeeeeseresssssesneens 10
Sec. 34-104. - Notice to state when vehicle owner unknown. [repealed]...........ccoerereereerreeenseesrsrennnas 10
Sec. 34-105. - Redemption before sale authorized; owner may claim proceeds of sale. [repealed].....11
Sec. 34-106. - Procedure for redemption before sale. [repealed]..........ccceverieiiceiricsseeeeseseeeereseeenena 11
Sec. 34-107. - Sale of unredeemed property required. [Fepealed]........occvvvverecrrereeneeersessresesresnesseneesens 11
Sec. 34-108. - Procedure for sale. [repealed].....cuisaimasmssmsispsicsisnmmmsasssiisssiinsmnll
Sec. 34-109. - Advertisement of sale. [FePeAIEA].........ccvicuiiriciiiieeccrcrsisr e seeeeeeeeeeeeessssssseesssessesseens 12
Sec. 34-110. - Appeal. [rePAIEM] .....c.cvvtreereeee e erieriecie et ere s e sessesesae st erneaneesenresesstenerseensensessenseses 12
Secs. 34-111—34-130. - RESEIVEQ. ......cccrrmeesisiasisisb s s s R T renesapasn e 12
ARTICLE V. - ARTERIAL STREET IMPROVEMENTS IMPACT FEE.......cceeovieeirirreeerrennenriereeseeseseeseeseesesenenesann 13
.13

Sec. 34-131. - Arterial street improvements impact fee—Computation. ...........ccveveveereiieeeseneesesesns

Sec. 34-132. - Establishment of the citywide impact fee service area and adoption of the methodology

for calculating the arterial street improvement iMmpact fEe. .......ccovvvverereeereescerssnerssereenns
Sec. 34-133. - Applicability. ......couvvreeninerenreee e
Sec. 34-134. - Calculation of and collection of impact fee...........cccoceermrecrinnnne
SEC. 34-135. - Credits. ..uueurueeiieirisisisisresensssesnesassssssesaeseesssesseseessssesssasssssssssssssssssssensssssnas
Sec. 34-136. - Establishment of aCCOUNTS. ....c.cccoieeeiviiiiieineirisiescneniseeessasasnens
Sec. 34-137. - Use of proceeds of impact fee account.........cccceeveveermrevecrnserninnne
SEC. 34-138. - REFUNMS......ceoctrrenraneecerariereneeeeesiarereeseesnieresseessssasnssssessensessonssness
Sec: 34-139. - ApPeals. .. i e avin et oo e seses isis tewnss
Sec. 34-140. - Updates to planning and revision of fees.........cccoeverveivvernrirereenns

Sec. 34-141. - Agreement for capital improvements. ........cooceevvieeevercreresnreneenn.

Exhibit B — Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulai Ssegsion 07.12.16

.13
..................................... 13

.14

..................................... 17

..................................... 18

..................................... 20

Page 2 of 21



Sec. 34-142. - Use of other financing MECh@nisms. ... ....ocoiueeeeeeeeeeeee s oot 20
Sec. 34-143. - Impact fee as additional and supplemental regulation. .......cooooveeeeeeoeeeoeeooeeoon 20
Sec. 34-144. - SUpplemMEntal MAterials. ... et serssrsersensansesseresrsssersessesserons 20
Sec:34-245.~-Definitionsmrrmmnrmrmrninnnmss e e s 21

{UDC 2010, § 9.2; Ord. No. 78-984, §§ 1, 2, 3-27-1979; Ord. No. 881857, § 1, 12-13-1988)

Sec. 34-3. - Foliage encroaching upon right-of-way; city authorized to
remedy. [repealed]

= =oodEe—-g

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulari Sezsion 07.12.16 Page 3 of 21
5



(UDC 2010, § 9.3; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1983; Ord. No. 2009-3520, § 4, 2-24-2009)

Sec. 34-4. - Notice of intent to trim or remove.

Alhan = o intarfacing-—o neroaching cpc___hadae 3
2Fe -G CIOEC J—Hees; 2oge

[repealed]

T

(UDC 2010, § 9.4; Ord. No. 83-1347, § 1, 4-26-1983; Ord. No. 2009-3520, § 2, 2-24-2009)

Sec. 34-5. - Requirements for private driveways along roads and streets.
[repealed]

(UDC 2010, § 9.5; Ord. No. 85-1550, §§ 1, 2, 6-13-1985; Ord. No. 89-1952, § 1, 12-19-1989)

Editor's note— Inasmuch as Ord. No. 85-1550, §§ 1, 2, adopted June 13, 1985, did not specify
manner of codification, such provisions have been designated by the editor as § 9.5.

Sec. 34-8. - Use of skateboards and other like instruments; limitation,
penaity for violation. [repealed]

Page 4 of 21

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulali%esssi-on 07.12.16



(UDC 2010, § 9.7; Ord. No. 98-2576, § 1, 10-27-1998; Ord. No. 2012-3879, § 2,12-11-2012)

Secs. 34-8—34-32. - Reserved.

Exhibit B -~ Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 5 of 21
156



ARTICLE ll. - VACATING PUBLIC WAYS

Sec. 34-33. - Petition required. [repealed]

WWWWMM%
22 :-- AnlaBlalunm oy alal= - ) ) - ar=

(UDC 2010, § 9.16; Ord. No. 66-249, § 1, 6-10-1966; Ord. No. 2013-3892, § 2, 3-26-2013)

Sec. 34-34. - Hearing on petition. [repealed]

(UDC 2010, § 9.17; Ord. No. 66-249, § 1, 6-10-1966; Ord. No. 2013-3892, § 2, 3-26-2013)

Sec. 34-35. -Action on petrtion [repelled]

(UDC 2010, § 9.18; Ord. No. 66-249, § 2, 6-10-1966)
Sec. 34-36. - Reverter. [ropealed]
_L__ ‘.‘-“:: '-:.:...z..: e E = ..'.‘ Gen-t—!

(UDC 2010, § 9.19; Ord. No. 66-249, § 3, 6-10-1966)

Secs. 34-37—34-60. - Reserved.

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Reg-ulaai Sée7ssion 07.12.18 Page 6 0of 21



ARTICLE lil. - EXCAVATIONS

Sec. 34- 61 - Prowsions declared supplemental [repealed]

may—be-meveased—Mpﬂl.d Caanikaes

Sec. 34-66. - Excessive repair work to be contracted out. [repealed]

fees involvecRepealed,

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 7 of 21
158



Sec. 34-87. - Traffic, safety requirements. [repealed]

Secs. 34-71—34-98. - Reserved.

ExHhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 8 0of 21
159



ARTICLE IV. - VEHICLES AND PROPERTY LEFT ON STREETS OR
PUBLIC PROPERTY

Sec. 34-99. - Definitions. [repeated]

(UDC 2010, § 9.50; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 1, 6-26-1979)
Sec. 34-100. - Reserved.

Editor's note— Ord. No. 92-2090, § 2, adopted January 14, 1992, repealed § 34-100 (formerly §
9.51) which pertained to abandonment of motor vehicles or other personal property derived from
Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, adopted May 1, 1967 and Ord. No. 68-388, § 1, adopted January 22,
1968.

Sec. 34-101. - Authority to remove and store generally; cost of removal and

storage. [repealed]

(UDC 2010, § 9.52; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord. No. 91-2055, § 1, 6-11-1991)

Sec. 34-102. - Enumeration of circumstances authorizing removal from
streets and highways. [repealed]
Mermbers-of the-police-depar ihorized-to-hav o : e

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 67.12.16 Page 9 of 21
160



.......

ethewme;gens&qeasen—m_iiﬂa ‘

(UDC 2010, § 9.53; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord.
No. 79-1004, § 2, 6-26-1979)

Sec. 34-103. - Notice to owner of removed vehicle. [repealed]

(UDC 2010, § 9.54; Ord. No. 68-338, § 1, 1-22-1968; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 3, 6-26-1979)

Sec. 34-104 Notice to state when vehicle owner unknown [;epealed]

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Couneil Regulali%efsion 07.12.16 Page 10 of 21



(UDC 2010, § 9.55; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 79-1004, § 4, 6-26-1979)

Sec. 34-105. - Redemption before sale authorized: owner may claim
proceeds of sale. frepealed]

al= - - FRBoURded-Broparh

the-proceeds-of-sale-afte :-:.-':._ e'.v-- inthis-article-provided-shall-ba-paic 54
(UDC 2010, § 9.58: Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.87, 5-1-1967: Ord. No. 85-1 544, § 34, 5-29-1985)

Sec. 34-106. - Procedure for redemption before sale. [repealed]
Hmm d—and-storage _-..;:_- as—provided_in this art

_Repealéa.
(UDC 2010, § 9.57; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.88, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 35, 5-29-1985)

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 11 of 21
162



- (UDC 2010, § 9.59; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.85, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, 1§37, 5-29- 1985)

Sec. 34- 11‘)9 Advertisement of saie [repeaIea]

t&b&sa&d—shaﬂ—gwe%h&m&m@etwe#&nam&medetand—metepmmbe&ﬁqm]mi -
(UDC 2010, § 9.60; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.90, 5-1-1967; Ord. No. 85-1544, § 38, 5-29-1985)

SEeal=[=Ta

Sec. 34-110. Appeal [repealed]

storaae

peke&depaﬂment—shau—b &%%meune#— - lehﬂi o
(UDC 2010, § 9.61; Ord. No. 67-281, § 5.87, 5-1-1967)

Secs. 34-111—34-130. - Reserved.

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regu}ai Séeision 07.12.16 Page 12 of 21



ARTICLE V. - ARTERIAL STREET IMPROVEMENTS IMPACT FEE

Sec. 34-131. - Arterial street improvements impact fee—Computation.

(a) The impact fee per vehicle trip for the citywide impact fee service area ("citywide service area") shall
be computed by dividing total costs of arterial street network transportation facilities and facility
expansions (“arterial street network") necessitated by and attributable to the new development in the
citywide service area by the total number of vehicle trips anticipated within the citywide service area,
based upon the land use-assumptions for that service area.

(b) The impact fee per vehicle trip that is to be paid by each new development within the citywide
service area shall be the impact fee rate established by resolution of the city council initially upon
adoption of this section, as provided for in section 34-132, and thereafter as part of the update
provided for in subsection 34-140 or at such other times as deemed necessary by the city. If no
action is taken by the city council to amend the impact fee rate, the rate then in effect shall remain in

effect.
(Ord. No. 2011-3768, §1,11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-132. - Establishment of the citywide impact fee service area and
adoption of the methodology for calculating the arterial street improvement

impact fee.

In furtherance of the implementation of the arterial street improvements impact fee and upon
adoption of this section, the boundaries of the citywide service area shall be established by adoption of a
resolution by the city council showing the geographic boundaries of the service area and the methodology
for calculation of the impact fee shall be established. The city council may also adopt administrative
guidelines to facilitate implementation of the arterial street improvements impact fee.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-133. - Applicability.

(a) This section shall be applicable to all residential and nonresidential development on property within
the boundaries of the city. This section is applicable to an increase in demand for arterial street
network transportation facilities and the amount of the impact fee shall be based solely upon the
increase in demand for arterial street network improvements generated by the new development.
The impact fee is a condition of building permit approval.

(1) No building permit shall be issued within the city unless the applicant thereof has paid the
applicable impact fee pursuant to this section, except as otherwise specifically provided in this
section. The fee shall be collected prior to the issuance of a building permit for the development.
If the permit is for less than the entire development, the fee shall be computed separately for the
amount of development covered by the building permit.

(2) Any building permit issued without payment by the applicant and collection by the community
planning and development department of the required impact fee shall be null and void.

(b) This section shall not be applicable if a completed application for a building permit has been
submitted to the community planning and development department prior to the effective date of this
section, and if the construction proceeds according to the terms of the building permit. If said building
permit expires, application for a new building permit shall be subject to this section.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulai (Sse‘ission 07.12.16 Page 13 of 21



Sec. 34-134. - Calculation of and collection of impact fee.
(a) Upen receipt of an application for a building permit for a new development, the director of community
planning and development or his/her designee shall calculate the impact fee due by:

(1)

Verifying the number and type of dwelling units or square footage of nonresidential structures or

other applicable development unit that are proposed to be constructed as shown on the building -

)

3)

(4)

permit application.

Determining the impact fee that shall be applied for each dwelling unit or square footage of
nonresidential structure or other applicable development unit pursuant to the most current
edition of the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation manual applying the

most applicable land use classification.

Multiplying the number of dwelling units or square footage of nonresidential structures, stated in
terms of 1,000 square feet of gross floor area, or other applicable development unit by the
applicable impact fee.

The amount of each impact fee due shall be reduced by any allowable credits, in the manner
provided in section 34-135 of this article.

(b) Impact fees shall be collected at the time a building permit is issued by the city for a development
with respect to which this section is applicable.

(c) Payment over a period of years. For nonresidential development, any person subject to an impact
fee may arrange for payment of the impact fee over a period of three equal annual payments in
accordance with the following:

(1)

(@)

©)

(4)

Application for the payment over a period of years shall be made in writing to the director of
community planning and development or his/her designee on or before the time the impact fee

is due and payable. ) = .. e

Participation in the payment over a period of years program requires the person to enter into an
impact fee payment agreement with the city.

Upon execution of the impact fee payment agreement with the city, the person shall provide the
city with financial assurances in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit from a bank with
sufficient financial capacity as determined by the city administrator or his/her designee in a form
approved by the city attorney in the amount of impact fee owed and with a three-year term.

Throughout the three-year payment period the amount of the letter of credit may be reduced to
reflect the remaining balance of the impact fee owed as payments are made to the city.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-135. - Credits.

(a) Construction credits.

(1)

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulai %egsion 07.12.16

Any person subject to an impact fee pursuant to this section may apply for a credit against any

impact fee for any contribution, payment or construction accepted and received by the city for

any arterial street network improvement identified in the Snyder & Associates Analysis, as

amended, except that no credit shall be provided for the following:

i.  Dedication of rights-of-way, since land costs were not included in calculating the impact
fee.

ii. Improvements to city streets other than arterial streets, with the exception that
improvements to the intersections of city arterials and city non-arterials, shall be eligible if
they expand the capacity of the arterial and are included in the Snyder & Associates

Analysis, as amended.

Page 14 0of 21



ii. ~Any improvement that is primarily related to serving an individual development project,
such as acceleration-deceleration lanes, turn lanes or traffic signals that primarily serve
traffic entering or exiting the development project.

iv. Improvements for which reimbursement or direct funding are being provided for under an
approved city incentive financing plan.

v.  The city will not provide a credit when no impact fees for the new development can be
collected pursuant to this section or for any amount exceeding the total impact fee due for
the new development, unless otherwise agreed to by the city. - )

(2) - Credits shall be calculated as follows:

i.  No credit shall be provided under this section for contributions, payments or construction
made more than five years prior to the effective date of this section.

ii.  Credits for contributions, payments or construction received and accepted by the city prior
to the effective date of this section shall be provided if the development for which the
contribution, payment or construction was made has not been completed. The current
owner of the property or the individual making the contribution or improvement for which
such contribution, payment or construction was made as a condition of development
approval shall file an application for credit within one year of the effective date of this
section. If the application is not made within one year following the effective date of this
Section, no credit shall be provided. The application for credit shall be submitted and
reviewed as provided in this section. The amount of the credit for a contribution, payment
or construction made prior to the effective date of this section shall be the current value of
the contribution, payment or construction, less the total amount of arterial street impact
fees that would have been owed for the building permits already issued for the project. The
value of any construction shall not include costs for improvements that are in excess of city
standards, unless the city specifically required the higher standard construction. The
current value shall be determined using the engineering news-record construction cost
index, or an equivalent index if such index is discontinued.

iii. ~ Any contribution, payment or construction received and accepted by the city on or after the
effective date of this Section shall be credited in an amount equal to 100 percent of the
contribution or payment or the estimated cost of the construction for the required arterial
street network improvement that expands the capacity of the city's arterial street network
as described in the Snyder & Associates Analysis, as amended. The estimated cost shall
be based on the lowest responsive bid by a qualified bidder, which bid is approved by the
director of community planning and development; or, if no bid is available, the estimated
cost certified by a licensed engineer and approved by the director of community planning
and development.

iv. A construction credit may be applied against arterial street network impact fees that would
otherwise be due for building permits issued anywhere within the benefit district of the
development for which the arterial street network improvement or contribution was required
as a condition of development approval. The city shall maintain an accounting of the
amount of the credits held by an impact fee credit holder and shall reduce the amount of
the credits as authorized by the impact fee credit holder. After the credit balance is
exhausted, no additional credits shall be applied to subsequent building permits.

(b) Renovated and damaged structures credits. Any person subject to an impact fee pursuant to this
Section may apply for a credit against any impact fee for the following types of renovation or
restoration.

(1) Renovation. Room additions, remodeling, rehabilitation or other improvements to an existing
structure, provided that there is no increase in the number of dwelling units for residential use or
in the amount of square footage for nonresidential use.

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulali %egsion 07.12.16 Page 15 of 21



(2) Damage. Rebuilding or replacement of a damaged, destroyed, demolished or removed
structure, whether voluntary or mvquntary, provided that there is no increase in the number of
dwelling units for residential use or in the amount of square footage for nonresidential use.

(c) Redevelopment credits. Any person subject to an impact fee pursuant to this Section may apply for a
partial credit against any impact fee for the foIIowmg types of redevelopment

(1) Change of use. The change of an existing use within an existing building shall result in a full
credit. Any additional new vehicle trips created by the construction of additional building square
footage-for-the -change-in-use-will-be-subject-to-the -per-vehicle trip-impact-fee based-upon the
new land use category. If the change in use, including the additional square footage, results in a
total number of vehicle trips equal to or less than the previous use, a full credit will apply.

(2) Redevelopment of property. As used in this subsection "redevelopment" means the demolition
of one or more existing buildings and the subsequent construction of one or more new buildings
on the property. The redevelopment of property shall result in a full credit. Any additional new
vehicle trips created by the construction of additional building square footage in the
redevelopment will be subject to the per vehicle trip impact fee based upon the new land use
category of the redevelopment. If the redevelopment, including the additional square footage,
results in a total number of vehicle trips equal to or less than the previous use, a full credit will

apply.
(d) School district and tax exempt entity credits. The following categories shall be granted a full credit in
the amount of the impact fee imposed under this section.

(1) School districts. Development of structures for a school district of the state.

(2) Tax exempt entity. Development of structures for a person that is not subject to any federal,
state or local taxes, including federal, state and local sales, income, personal property, real
property, use, earnings or license taxes. The burden of proof shall be on the person claiming

~7 " this credit to demonstrate, by clear and convincing evidence, that the development being
constructed is exempt from all federal, state and local taxes as described in this subsection.

(e) An applicant must apply for a credit against impact fees due at the time of application for a building
permit unless the city agrees in writing to a different time. The applicant shall file a petition for credits
with the director of community planning and development or his/her designee on a form provided by

the city for this purpose.
The director of community planning and development or his/her designee shall provide the applicant, in
writing, with a decision on the credit request, including the reasons for the decision. The decision shall
specify the maximum value of the credit that may be applied against the impact fee.

The application for credit shall include the following information:

(1) If the proposed application for credit involves construction:

i.  The proposed plan of the specific construction prepared and certified by a duly qualified
and licensed engineer or contractor; and

ii. The lowest responsive bid by a qualified bidder, or, if no bid is available, projected costs for
the suggested capital improvement, which shall be based on local information for similar
improvements, along with the construction timetable for the completion thereof. Such
estimated costs shall include the cost of construction or reconstruction; the cost of plans
and specifications; the costs of professional services; and all other expenses necessary or

incident to such construction or reconstruction.
(2) If the proposed application for credit involves a credit for any contribution or payment:
i. A copy of the document in which the contribution or payment was agreed;
ii. If payment has been made, proof of payment; or

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulai %eision 07.12.16 Page 16 of 21




iii. 1f payment has not been made, the proposed method of payment.

(3) If the proposed application for credit involves any other type of development described above,
provide as applicable:

i.  Information regarding the current proposed use of the building, previous use of the
building, the time period it has been vacant or demolished, and information regarding the

tax exempt entity.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-136. - Establishment of accounts.

(@)
(b)

()

The city's finance department shall establish an account for the arterial street improvements impact
fee ("impact fee account"). All impact fees collected shall be deposited into the account.

Interest earned on the funds in the account shall be considered funds of the account and shall be
used only for the purposes authorized in section 34-137 of this article.

The city's finance department shall maintain and keep adequate financial records of the account that
shall show the source and disbursement of all funds placed in or expended from the account, and
that ensure that the impact fees expended from the account are used only for the purposes
authorized in section 34-137 of this article. Disbursement of funds shall be authorized by the city at
such times as are reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes and intent of this article.

The records of the account into which impact fees are deposited shall be open for public inspection
and copying during ordinary business hours. The fee for copying services shall be as established by
the city.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1,11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-137. - Use of proceeds of impact fee account.

(@)

(b)

The impact fees collected for the citywide service area pursuant to this article shall be used to
finance or to recoup arterial street network improvement costs. Impact fees may also be used to pay
the principal sum and interest and other finance costs on bonds, notes or other obligations issued by
or on behalf of the city to finance arteriai street network improvements,

Impact fees collected pursuant to this section shall not be used to pay for any of the following
expenses: (i) rights-of-way necessary for construction of the city's arterial street network; (ii)
individual development project required traffic improvements; (iii) construction, acquisition or
expansion of transportation facilities other than those identified in the Snyder & Associates Analysis,
as amended; (iv) repair, operation or maintenance of existing transportation facilities; (v) upgrade,
expansion or replacement of existing transportation facilities to serve existing developments at the
level of service established for arterial street network transportation facilities or facility expansions
necessary to serve new development; and (vi) the cost of construction, acquisition or expansion of
transportation facilities or transportation facility expansion necessary to accommodate trips with an
origin and destination outside the citywide service area.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-138. - Refunds.

(@)

Any impact fees collected shall be returned to the feepayer or his successor in interest if the impact
fees have not been spent within seven years from the date the building permit for the residential or
nonresidential development was issued, along with interest at the average annual rate earned by
funds in the impact fee account. impact fees shall be deemed to be spent on the basis that the first

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 17 of 21

168



fee collected shall be the first fee spent. The refund of the impact fees shall be undertaken through

the following process:

(1) The current owner of the property must petition the city for the refund within one year following
the seven-year period from the date on which the impact fee was paid. Within one month of the
end of the seven-year period from the date on which the unspent impact fee was paid, the

———director-oﬁ-commun-ity—pIanni-ng*and"devefopment—sharl—notiﬂrthE‘feepayer—of—e'lig'rbmty fora

refund at the address provided by the feepayer at the time of fee payment or at a new address
subsequently provided by the feepayer. It shall be the responsibility of the feepayer to keep the
address current.

(2) The petition must contain the following information:

i.  Anotarized sworn statement that the petitioner is the current owner of the property;
ii. A copy of the dated receipt issued for payment of the impact fee;

iii. A certified copy of the latest recorded deed for the property; and

iv. A copy of the most recent ad valorem tax bill for the property.

(3) Within one month from the date of receipt of a petition for refund, the director of community
planning and development shall review the petition and determine if it is complete. If the director
of community planning and development determines the petition is not complete, a written
statement specifying the deficiencies shall be sent to the petitioner by certified mail. Unless the
deficiencies are corrected, the director of community planning and development shall take no
further action on the petition. When the director of community planning and development
determines that the petition is complete, the petition shall be reviewed within one month. The
director of community planning and development shall approve the refund petition if it is
determined that the feepayer or his successor in interest has paid a fee which the city has not
spent_within the period .of time permitted under this section.-The-refund- shall include-the fee -

paid, plus interest.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-139. - Appeals.
(1) To the city manager.

(@) The applicant for a building permit may appeal the following decisions to the city manager: (i)
the appilicability of the impact fee to the new development; (i) the amount of the impact fee due
(including the land use classification of the development or the number of trips generated by the
new development); (iii) the applicability of a credit against an impact fee due and the amount of

a credit or (iv) the decision regarding a refund.

(b) The burden of proof shall be on the applicant to demonstrate that the amount of the impact fee
or the amount of the credit or refund was not calculated in accordance with the provisions of this

section or the administrative guidelines, if any.

(c) The applicant shall file a notice of appeal with the city clerk within ten days following notice of
the applicable impact fee calculation or refund decision. The notice of appeal shall specify the
grounds for the review. If applicable, the application for development approval with respect to
which the appeal is filed may be processed while the appeal is pending, provided that the notice
of appeal is accompanied by a bond or other sufficient surety satisfactory to the city attorney in
an amount equal to the original determination of the impact fee due.

(d) Within ten days of the notice of appeal, or by such date as shall be agreed upon in writing
between the applicant and city, applicant may submit to the city manager traffic engineering
studies containing documentation of trip generation rates for the new development, vehicle
miles at p.m. peak hour to be generated by the new development, and other trip or demand
data appropriate for determination of the impact fee rate for the new development and economic

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulali%egsion 07.12.16 Page 18 of 21



documentation studies containing documentation of the cost per lane per mile for roadway
construction appropriate for the new development and credits attributable to the new
development that can be expected to be available to replace the portion of the traffic demand
generated by the new development.

(e) Within 30 days after filing of the notice of appeal, the city manager shall render a final decision
in-writing to the applicant regarding the calculation of the impact fee or refund decision.

(2) To the city council.

(@) An applicant may appeal the final decision of the city manager by filing a notice of appeal with
the city clerk within ten days following issuance of the final written decision of the city manager
as specified in section 34-139(a)(e). If an applicant fails to appeal the final decision of the city
manager within ten days as set forth in this subsection, the calculation of the impact fee shall be

final and no appeal shall be heard.

(b) An applicant may appeal the following decisions of the city manager to the city council: (i) the
applicability of the impact fee to the new development; (i) the amount of the impact fee due
(including the land use classification of the new development or the number of trips generated
by the new development); (iii) the applicability of a credit against an impact fee due and the
amount of a credit; or (iv) the decision regarding a refund.

(c) Within ten days of receipt of the notice of appeal, or by such date as shall be agreed upon in
writing between the applicant and the city, the applicant shall submit to the city council copies of
all studies, calculations and other documentation appropriate to the determination of the impact

fee.

(d) The notice of appeal shall specify the grounds for the appeal. The notice of appeal shall be
forwarded to the city council along with a recommendation from the city staff, and the city
council shall conduct a hearing. The applicant shall receive notice of the hearing by certified
mail at least 15 days prior to the hearing.

(e) Within 30 days after the hearing before the city council, the city council shall render a final
decision. The applicant that submitted the notice of appeal shall receive written notice of the
decision

(3) Calculation of days. The number of days specified in this section shall include weekend days and
holidays. The last day of the period shall be inciuded in the computation, unless it is a Saturday,
Sunday or a legal holiday, and if it is, the period runs until the end of the next day which is not a
Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday. A half-holiday shall be considered as other days and not as a
holiday. "Legal holiday" includes any day designated as a holiday by the Congress of the United
States, Missouri legislature or the city council.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-140. - Updates to planning and revision of fees.

(@) The city shall update its land use assumptions and arterial street improvements impact fee
transportation facilities or facility expansion plans and shall recalculate its impact fee not less than
once every three years.

(b) From time to time it may become necessary for city staff to develop additional categories of land use
for a more precise trip generation rate for calculation of an impact fee. These categories are in
addition to the land use categories and related trip generation rates from the Institute of Traffic
Engineers, Trip Generation Manual. In those instances, the new land use category and related trip
generation rate will be incorporated into the city's transportation impact fee program and updated
accordingly.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulali $7e65ion 07.12.16 Page 19 of 21



- (Ord. No: 2011-3768;§1;11-22:2011) -

Sec. 34-141. - Agreement for capital improvements.

An applicant for development approval within the citywide service area may construct or finance
arterial street network transportation facilities or facility expansions if required or authorized by the city, by
entering into an agreement with the city prior to the issuance of any building permit for the new
development. The agreement shall be in a form approved by the city, and shall identify the estimated cost

—of-the-arterial-street-network-improvement,-the-schedule-for-initiation-and-completion-of-the-improvement.-

and contain a requirement that the improvement be designed and constructed to comply with city
standards and all other terms and conditions as deemed necessary by the city. The agreement shall
provide for the method to be used to determine the amount of the credit to be given against impact fees
due for the new development.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-142. - Use of other financing mechanisms.

(a) The city may finance arterial street network transportation facilities or facility expansions through the
issuance of bonds, through the formation of special, benefit, or improvement districts or other
assessment districts or through any other authorized mechanism, in the manner and subject to such
limitations as may be provided by law, in addition to the use of impact fees.

(b) Except as hereinafter provided, the assessment and collection of impact fees shall be additional and
supplemental to, and not in substitution of, any other tax, fee, charge or assessment that is lawfully
imposed on and due against the property.

(c) The city may pay all or part of impact fees due for a new development taking into account available
credits provided for in section 34-139 of this article.

Sec. 34-143. - Impact fee as additional and supplemental regulation.

Impact fees established by this section are additional and supplemental to, and not in substitution
for, any other requirement proposed by the city on the development of land or the issuance of building
permits. Impact fees are intended to be consistent with and implement the policies of the city's
comprehensive plan, the capital improvements plan, the zoning ordinance, subdivision regulations, and
other city policies, ordinances and resolutions by which the city seeks to ensure the provision of adequate

public facilities in conjunction with the development of land.
(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Sec. 34-144. - Supplemental materials.
The following supplemental materials should be consulted for additional information related to the
imposition and calculation of arterial street improvements impact fees:

(@) Arterial Street Improvements Impact Fee Administrative Guidelines (Adopted by Resolution
2008-10).
(b) Arterial Street Improvements Impact Fee Service Area (Adopted by Resolution 2005-50).

(c) Methodology and Rates for Calculating the Arterial Street Improvements Impact Fee (Adopted
by Resolution 2005-50).

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regulaxisieision 07.12.16 Page 20 of 21



Sec. 34-145. - Definitions.

As used in this article:

Arterial street network means arterial street network transportation facilities and facility expansions
as identified and discussed in the Arterial Street Improvement Impact Fee Analysis, prepared by Snyder
& Associates, dated August 10, 2005, as amended.

Building means any structure used or intended for supporting or sheltering any use or occupancy.
- Building permit means the permit required for new construction and additions pursuant to the City
Code of the City of Belton.
City manager means the city manager or his or her designee.
Developer means a person who engages in development.

Development means any man-made change to improved or unimproved land, including but not
limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavating or drilling
operations.

Dwelling unit means one or more rooms constituting all or part of a building and that are arranged,
designed, or used exclusively as a single housekeeping unit for one family, and that may include cooking,
living, sanitation, and sleeping facilities.

Impact fee means arterial street improvements impact fee.
Nonresidential means created or used for any purpose other than residential uses or purposes.

Person means any individual, partnership, corporation, trust, incorporated or unincorporated
association, marital community, joint venture, governmental entity, or other entity or group of persons
however organized.

Per trip, or vehicle trip means a single or one-direction vehicle movement with either the origin or the
destination (exiting or entering) at the subject building. For trip generation purposes, the total trip ends for
a building over a given period of time are the total of all trips entering plus all the trips exiting a site during
a designated time period.

P.M. peak hour means the hour between 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 p-m. during the weekdays, Monday
through and including Friday, at which the average traffic volume is highest.

Residential means primarily created or used for a dwelling for one or more persons.
School district means a public school district of the State of Missouri.

Structure means that which is built or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind, or any piece of
work artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner for either residential

or nenresidential purposes.

(Ord. No. 2011-3768, § 1, 11-22-2011)

Exhibit B - Chapter 34 Redlined - City Council Regular Session 07.12.16 Page 21 of 21
172



sweer  PERMIT FOR WORK ON CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY,

520 Main Street

Belton, MO 64012 C|TY EASEMENT, OR CITY PROPERTY

PUBLIC WORRS ToPewe"  (816)331-4331
DATE OF APPLICATION: 0 FAX O EMAIL | O WALKIN
PERMIT LOCATION/STREET ADDRESS:
MISSOURI ONE CALL TICKET NUMBER:
THE USE OF INDUSTRY STANDARD UTILITY MARKING AND COLOR CODES IS REQUIRED.
TYPE OF WORK
00 WATER 0 GAS 00 WASTEWATER O WATER/SEWER SERVICE
O CATV O ELECTRIC O COMMUNICATIONS 0 DRIVEWAY
O SIDEWALK O OTHER (please specify)
CONTACT INFORMATION
CONTRACTOR/APPLICANT:
CONTACT NAME:
ADDRESS:
CITY: STATE: 2IP;
TELEPHONE: CELL PHONE:
EMAIL:
FACILITY OWNER:
CONTACT NAME:
ADDRESS:
CITY: STATE: ZIP:
TELEPHONE: CELL PHONE;
EMAIL:
SUBCONTRACTOR (tF APPLICABLE):
CONTACT NAME:
ADDRESS:
CITY: STATE: ZIp:
TELEPHONE: CELL PHONE:
EMAIL:
173 City of Balton

Updated: June 10, 2016



PERMIT FOR WORK ON CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY, CITY EASEMENT, OR CITY PROPERTY
City of Belton, Missouri

DETAILS OF WORK
ESTIMATED START DATE ESTIMATED COMPLETION
DATE
O REPAIR O REPLACEMENT O NEW INSTALLATION
“PURPOSEOFWORK — = = = -
O OTHER (please specify)
O OPEN CUT | O TUNNELING/BORING
INSTALLATION METHOD
O OTHER (please specify)
O PAVEMENT O GRASS | O CURB | 01 AREIAL OR POLE CONNECTION
0J POTHOLES/SPOT HOLES
AFFECTED AREA O SIDEWALK 1 DRIVEWAY INRAVHENT
LI SERVICE CONNECTION | /e oF STREET CUT (LXW):
ACROSS STREET
LENGTH IN FT (IF LINEAR INSTALLATION): FROM TO |
OTHER DETAILS
TOTAL DISTURBED AREA*: sQ. FT ACRES
THE FOLLOWING ARE ACKNOWLEDGED AND/OR ATTACHED AND INCORPORATED INTO THIS PERMIT APPLICATION,
|-PER CITY’S ROW-ORDINANCE: . _ - R et |

O REGISTRATION

O TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL PERMIT, IF APPLICABLE

0 *LAND DISTURBANCE PERMIT, IF APPLICABLE

00 ENGINEERING DRAWINGS, CONSTRUCTION PLANS, ETC. SHOWING THE LOCATION AND AREA OF PROJECT AND
EXISTING AND PROPOSED FACILITIES AT SUCH LOCATION

O WORK PLAN AND SCHEDULE

00 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE BONDS, AS APPLICABLE

0 APPROPRIATE FEES WILL BE PAID UPON ISSUANCE OF PERMIT

This application is made under the terms of the Ordinance and Specifications of the City of Belton, Missouri, governing
excavation and/or construction within public right-of-way, to accomplish the work herein described. Applicant hereby
agrees to perform said work and restoration of right-of-way in strict accordance with the provisions of said City
Ordinances and Specifications and further agrees to satisfactorily repair any failure or damage within the right-of-way

resulting from the excavation or construction covered under this application within four years thereafter.
TO BE FILLED QUT BY CITY STAFF

SIGNATURE REQUIRED ROW PERMIT #:

PERMIT FEE CALCULATION:

PERMITTEE OR AUTHORIZED AGENT

TOTAL PERMIT FEE:

PERMIT ISSUE DATE:

CITY ENGINEER OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE

174

City of Belton



CITY OF BELTON
r_:"-lg'-.ul._-\'l‘_l._.’wa'z_,_r:‘_.l-i.l.!.llﬂ-‘=l--l-t.!',lor=llb_._I-l'-- l;_I‘-J-H=| Tmmeral
Belton, MO 64012
(816) 331-4331

PUBLIC WORKS opoge®

DATE OF APPLICATION: 0 WALK-IN

00 FAX O E-MAIL

STREET: FROM: TO!
STREET: FROM: TO:
£ FULE STREET CLOSURE I PARTIAL STREET CLOSURE I SIDEWALK O OTHER

REASON FOR TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL:

o = TIME CLOSED

CONTRACTOR/APPLICANT:

CONTACT NAME:

ADDRESS:
CiTy: STATE: ZIP:
CELL PHONE:

TELEPHONE:

EMAIL:

FACIITY OWNER (IF APPLICABLE):

CONTACT NAME:

ADDRESS:
CITY: STATE: ZIP:
CELL PHONE:

TELEPHONE:

EMAIL:
B TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN HAS BEEN SUBMITTED

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT: DATE:
0O TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN HAS BEEN SUBMITTED AND IS APPROVED BY STAFF

PERMIT #:
TOTAL PERMIT FEE:
fc',fi” ;\Eﬁﬁk APPROVAL
OR DESIGNEE) DATE:

PERMIT ISSUE DATE:
J APPROPRIATE CONTACTS HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED (POLICE, FIRE, SCHOOL DISTRICT — BUSES, MODOT, ETC.)

175
City of Belton

Updated: july 6, 2016




176



SECTION VIii
G



178



BILL NO. 2016-82 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPENDIX A — SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES,
PART II. — UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE
AND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES AND CHAPTER 36 — SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS
OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI TO
REFLECT THE CORRECT NOMENCLATURE, FEES AND CHARGES RELATED TO
PUBLIC WORKS ENGINEERING ITEMS INCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMITTING,
SANITARY SEWER IMPACT FEES, AND ENGINEERING REVIEW FEES.

WHEREAS, THE City of Belton, Missouri Code of Ordinances was recodified in
October 2011; and

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Missouri adopted the Unified Development Code (UDC)
December 13, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the City Attorney, Public Works Director, City Engineer, Engineering
Division and Transportation Division reviewed Chapter 19 — Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public
Places of the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 34 - Streets and Sidewalks of the UDC, Chapter 36 —
Subdivision Regulations of the UDC, and Appendix A — Schedule of Fees and Charges of the
UDC and the Code of Ordinances of the City of Belton, Missouri and determined the code, fees
and guidance on management of the right-of-way to be deficient and in need of amendments and

reorganization; and

WHEREAS, an ordinance amending Chapter 19 — Streets, Sidewalks, Rights-of-way, and
Other Public Places of the Code of Ordinances and Chapter 34 — Streets and Sidewalks of the
UDC of the City of Belton Missouri should be passed in conjunction with and complementary to

this ordinance effecting the fees; and

WHEREAS, the revisions in the aforementioned complementary ordinance provide new
and additional guidance on how right-of-way permitting fees should be calculated. These
revisions allow the City to recover actual costs associated with administering permits, reviewing
plans, coordinating about the permit, locating City utilities, and inspecting the permitted work;

and

WHEREAS, while reviewing the Schedule several errors were found and are hereby
submitted for correction. One error in relation to the sanitary sewer impact fees was found in the
Schedule. The Council Info Sheet and Staff Memo that were provided with Ordinance No. 2014-
4038 explained the appropriate charges for the sewer impact fees; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Regular Session City Council Meeting
on July 26, 2016 to receive input concerning the consideration amendments to Chapter 19 of the

179



Code of Ordinances, Chapter 34, and 36 of the UDC and Appendix A of the UDC and the Code
of Ordinances upon proper notice advertised in the Friday, July 8, 2016 edition of Cass County
Democrat Missourian, a weekly/daily newspaper of general circulation in the County of Cass,
State of Missouri; and

Charges, Part II. — Unified Development Code of the UDC and the Code of Ordinances and
Chapter 36 ~ Subdivision Regulations of the UDC of the City of Belton, Missouri to reflect the
correct nomenclature, fees and charges related to Public Works Engineering items including
right-of-way permitting, sanitary sewer impact fees, and engineering review fees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That Appendix A — Schedule of Fees and Charges, Part II. — Unified
Development Code of the UDC and the Code of Ordinances of the City of Belton, Missouri
is hereby amended and revised with the addition of the highlighted text and deletion of the
stricken text to read as follows:

Code of Ordinances and Unified Development Code
Appendix A — SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES
PART II. - UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE
Updated-May-2044 [Adopted September 9, 2014] Updated May 2014 and July 2016

Application Type Filing Fees

Subdivision—Plan Reviews

Prelim. residential $200.00 for first 20 lots + $10.00/lot thereafter

: I;inal regidéntial | l $200.00 for first 20 lots + $10.00/lot thereafter
Prelim. commercial $300.00 for first 40 acres + $10.00/acre thereafter
Final commercial $300.00 for first 40 acres + $10.00/acre thereafter

Planning/Zoning

Rezoning—Residential $150.00

—

180



Rezoning—Comm., Mfg, PUD

$200.00

Special use $150.00
Variance $150.00
| Lot split $150.00
i: Vacation $0.00

Building

Building permit fee (Based on valuation,
calculated as per section 10-52, Unified
Development Code)

Minimum fee $42.00

Valuation $2,001.00 to $25,000.00

$42.00 for first $3,000.00 plus $7.40 for each additional
$1,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $25,000.00

Valuation $25,001.00 to $50,000.00

$205.00 for first $25,000.00 plus $5.80 for each additional
$1,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including
$50,000.00.00

Valuation $50,001.00 to $100,000.00

$350.00 for first $50,000.00 plus $5.50 for each additional
$1,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including
$100,000.00

Valuation $100,001.00 to $500,000.00

$625.00 for first $100,000.00 plus $4.00 for each
additional $1,000.00 or fraction thereof

Valuation $500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00

$2,225.00 for first $500,000.00 plus $4.00 for each
additional $1,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including
$1,000,000

Valuation $1,000,001.00 and up

$4,225.00 for first $1,000,000.00 plus $4.00 for each
additional $1,000.00 or fraction thereof

Engineering

181




Arterial street impact fee

$620.00/PM peak hour traffic trip (table attached)

|
| Size displacement/turbine
3%".=$3,090.00— -
1" = $4,944.00 -
T 1.5" = $6,180.00/$9,888.00
| Water impact fee
2" =$12,360.00/$14,832.00
3" = $18,540.00/$33,867.00
4" = $24,670.00/561,800.00
| 6" = $61,800.00/5135,960.00
| $500:00-$1,600-00
L Sanitary sewer connection impact fee Minimum $1,200 residential and $2,000 commercial
' Dependent upon sewer district and meter size
Land disturbance permit No fee - except applicable public infrastructure fees
| Right-of-way permit $62
| Street cut charge $24
Linear work charge $0.07/LF (2,000 LF per permit)
Re-inspection $24/re-inspection
Temporary Traffic Control Permit - $10/day
|

182




Community Event

Temporary Traffic Control Permit - Arterial

S $24/lane/day
Tempora:d Tr;zml Permit - 818/lane/day
Temporary Tmfﬂcsz:ml Permit - Local $12/lane/day
$400.00 for %" meter
$482.00 for 1" meter
$540.00 for 1" tap w/dual %" meter
Water tap
$892.00 for 1.5" meter
$1,120.00 for 2" meter
Lafger méters at Eurrent material costs
Water deposit Buildér = $110.00

Public Infrastructure

Engineering review and inspection fee

3% of the construction cost

Performance and 2-yr maintenance bond

100% of the construction cost

Fire
Plan review fee Nong
Operational permit fee None
Construction permit fee See building fees

183




Blasting permit $300.00

NOTES: Last updated 4442044 07/2016

(Ord. No. 2014-4038, § 1, 9-9-2014)

Section 2. That Chapter 36 — Subdivision Regulations, Article V. — Public Improvements,
Section 36-113. ~ Improvement Procedure, subsection (p) Inspection of Public
Improvments of the Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri is hereby
amended to read as follows with the deletion of the stricken text and the addition of the
highlighted text; this section is modified as provided in Exhibit A.

(p) Inspection of public improvements. Unless otherwise approved by the city engineer, all
improvements shall be inspected by the City of Belton. The subdivider shall pay to the city a fee of
four two percent of the estimated cost of the required public improvements, as defined in subsection
(s) of this section, for construction inspection. The subdivider shall obtain a construction permit(s)
from the public works department; the fees shall be paid at the time of permit issuance. This fee may
be adjusted from time to time by the city council.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force after passage and approval.

Section 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME:

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:

Mayor Jeff Davis

Approved this day of , 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis

184



ATTEST:

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk
City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI )
CITY OF BELTON ) SS
COUNTY OF CASS )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a

meeting of the City Council held on the day of , 2016, and thereafter
adopted as Ordinance No. 2016- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of
the City Council held on the day of , 2016, after the second reading

thereof by the following vote, to-wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:
NAYES: COUNCILMEN:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

185



CITY OF BELTON
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM

PEBLIC WORKS

AGENDA DATE:  July 12,2016 DIVISION: Engineering
COUNCIL: X Regular Meeting [ Work Session L1 Special Session

X Ordinarnce {3 Resolution [ ConsentItem | [J Change Order | [0 Motion

[ Agreement [ Discussion (] FYI/Update (] Presentation (] Both Readings

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has been working with the City Attorney to make amendments to right-of-way (ROW)
management code which is presented in this same July 12, 2016 Council Packet. In conjunction with and
complementary to this ROW code changes are amendments to Appendix A — Schedule of Fees and
Charges, Part II. - Unified Development Code of the Unified Development Code (UDC) and the Code
of Ordinances and Chapter 36 — Subdivision Regulations of the UDC to reflect the appropriate Public
Works Engineering fees and charges associated with right-of-way permitting, sanitary sewer impact
fees, and engineering review fees.

ROW permits utilize significant staff time to administer, review plans, coordinate with the contractor
and/or service provider, locate City utilities and inspect the work. The current ROW permit fee is $5 and
requires a refundable $200 cash bond. This does not allow the City to recover the cost of staff time that
is spent on each permit. The newly recommended revisions to Chapter 19 explicitly state that the fees of
right-of-way permits should be set in order to recover the costs of the City in compliance with state law
under RSMO 67.1830 to 67.1846.

The base permit fee recommended in these revisions is $62. The permit fee of $62 is calculated by
applying an average of about 1 hour (at $38/hour) of staff’s time to administer and review the permit
application, % hour (at $24/hour) to inspect the work under the permit and % hour (at $24/hour) to locate
City utilities for the permit.

In addition to the base permit fee, staff recommends additional charges for work on linear facilities and
street cuts. Linear work on facilities require additional inspection and locating services averaging out to
about $0.07/LF. That figure was calculated by assuming for every 500 LF of work on linear facilities it
would require staff time equating to % hour (at $24/hour) of inspection and 1 hour (at $24/hour) of
locating: Street cuts ereate additional areas for failtre upon a roadway and staff recommends that the
City recover the depreciation rate of the pavement after street cuts are made by Service Providers and/or
ROW-users.

(Please keep in mind that these fees are only an illustration of the permit fees, there are additional costs
associated with the permit in relation to bonding requirements and insurance; these requirements can be

found in the recommended Chapter 19 code amendments.) Examples are provided below.

Permit Fee = Base Permit Fee + Linear Work Fee + Street Cut Fee
Permit Fee = $62 + (80.07/LF x LF) + (524/Street Cut)

1. Homeowner hires contractor to replace driveway
Permit fee = $62 + $0 + $0 = $62

186



2. Homeowner hires contractor to replace sanitary sewer service line to the City’s sewer main in

the middle of the street
Permit fee = $62 + $0 + ($24/Cut) = $62 +$0 + $24 = $86

Additional street cut charges

3. Service Provider hires contractor to install 1500 LF of a new service with five street cuts
Permit fee = $62 + ($0.07/LF x 1500 LF) + ($24/Cut x 5 cuts) = $62 + $105 + $120 = $287
Additional linear work charges and additional street cut charges

While making updates to the Schedule of Fees and Charges, staff reviewed other code and came across a
discrepancy in Chapter 36 — Subdivision Regulations of the Unified Development Code. In addition, a
minor text revision was made in relation to the sanitary sewer impact fee within the Schedule of Fees

and Charges.

In the July 8, 2016 issue of the Cass County Democrat Missourian, a Notice of Public Hearing for the
code changes was advertised. The Public hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall Annex at the start

of the July 26, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting.

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:
At the July 12, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading of an

ordinance amending Appendix A — Schedule of Fees and Charges, Part II. — Unified Development Code
of the Unified Development Code and the Code of Ordinances and Chapter 36 — Subdivision
Regulations of the Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri to reflect the correct
nomenclature, fees and charges related to Public Works Engineering items including right-of-way

permitting, sanitary sewer impact fees, and engineering review fees.

BACKGROUND:
As the City of Belton progresses and grows with development, amendments to the code are necessary in

order to provide means to administer and manage activity and work within the City in a consistent and

fair manner.

IMPACT/ANALYSIS:
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:
At the July 12, 2016 City Council Regular Session, authorize and approve the first reading of an

ordinance amending Appendix A — Schedule of Fees and Charges, Part II. — Unified Development Code
of the Unified Development Code and the Code of Ordinances and Chapter 36 — Subdivision
Regulations of the Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri to reflect the correct
nomenclature, fees and charges related to Public Works Engineering items including right-of-way

permitting, sanitary sewer impact fees, and engineering review fees.

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

Ordinance
Exhibit A — Chapter 36 Redlined

187



EXHIBIT A

Unified Development Code, Belton, Missouri

Chapter 36 — Subdivision Regulations

Article V. — Public Improvements

Sec. 36-110. - Improvement procedure.
(a) General.

(1)

()

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, all required improvements must be installed in
accordance with this Code; plans approved by the appropriate utitity company and all grading
work completed.

Physical improvements as mentioned in the preceding paragraph must be constructed before
the issuance of a building permit, except that the city council may, at the option of the
developer, accept one or a combination of the following issuance of a building permit. (The
plans must be completed and approved for the water and sewer lines in either area.)

a. A bond or other acceptable financial guarantee (Letter of credit, personal surety bond,
performance bond or other city council approved guarantee) in an amount equivalent or
larger than 100 percent the projected cost of the improvement at the date of the expiration
of the guarantee. The guarantee shall be in a form that can be executed by the city council
in the case that the required improvements are not constructed within two years or a lesser
period of time specified and approved by the city council. Such surety shall be properly
executed prior to any grading or construction and shall be released in segments upon
written approval of the city.

b. A petition presented to and approved by the city council having jurisdiction, properly
executed by the property owners, neighborhood improvement district, or voters of the city,
as provided by law. Said petition will be used for the construction of the improvements by
the city council and the costs of which will be assessed against the subdivided property.

(b) Land disturbance permit. After obtaining a Land Disturbance Permit, the subdivider may do the
grading and any drainage work that is required, all according to plans approved by the city engineer.
The minimum requirements of the permit shall include:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

S)

The final plat has been approved by the city council. (If the approval of the final plat is
contingent upon any conditions requiring further board review or action, the board must provide
specific approval to allow for the preliminary work to begin.)

A preliminary grading plan, inciuding existing contours (two foot max interval) and features; and
proposed improvements and contours (two foot max interval).

A preliminary stormwater management plan addressing both water quality and quantity is
approved by the city engineer. The plans shall indicate the necessary size, approximate
dimensions, and location of the detention and best management practices to be utilized.

A preliminary engineer's estimate (including contingencies) for the stormwater management
facilities shall be provided and the applicant or his or her contractor shall obtain a public works
construction permit according to sections 42-139 and 42-140.

An erosion control plan is approved by the city engineer.

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page10f12

188



(€)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16

(6) All other local, state, and federal permits applicable to grading are obtained. This may include,
but is not limited to an MDNR Land Disturbance Permit, 401 permit, and 404 permit.

(7) The applicant will bear the entire burden of risk and agrees to indemnify the city from any
expense that may occur due to beginning the project prior to final approval of all documents
including final site plans, stormwater management plans and public infrastructure plans. The
applicant shall meet all ordinances, regulations and code requirements regardless of the
changes that may be necessary to the preliminary plans and any construction that has already

occurred.

Mud deposit.

(1) Each builder working within the city limits of Belton must provide a mud deposit in accordance
with the adopted schedule of fees and charges at the time of issuing individual building permits.
The deposit will be a guarantee that the permit applicant and any subcontractors or employees
will keep streets and sidewalks in the area in which they are working free and clear of dirt,
gravel, rubbish or other construction debris. The director of public works may waive the deposit

required by this section when the applicant is an individual home owner.

(2) No person, firm or corporation may dump or deposit or cause to be dumped or deposited any
dirt, gravel, rubbish, leaves or other debris; including, but not limited to, lumber; paper; trash;
concrete or metal in any street, right-of-way, gutter, storm sewer, waterway or drainage way or
erosion of soil that flows onto any street, right-of-way, gutter, storm sewer, waterway or
drainage way abutting property from property before or during construction.

(3) If upon inspection by the director of public works or any of their designated representatives, it is
determined that dirt, gravel, rubbish, leaves or other debris has been dumped or deposited in
any street, right-of-way, gutter, storm sewer, waterway or drainage way in violation of the
provisions of this section, he or she will then notify the responsible permittee and establish a 24-
hour period to make the affected area free and clear of said dirt, gravel or debris. If the city's
representative cannot determine which permittee is responsible for cleaning the street's right-of-
way, the developer of the land will be given 24 hours' notice to make the affected area free of
said dirt, gravel or debris. If within the 24-hour period the said area is not clear, the director of
public works or his or her designate may authorize the city to take necessary action to clean up
the said area and assess all charges at an established hourly rate, but in no case will the
charges be less than two hours for labor, materials and equipment.

Building permits. Unless the required improvements have been installed or guaranteed by a bond for
a lot or tract, no building permits shall be issued for that lot or tract. Upon issuance of the building
permit, the building inspector shall notify the applicant that no structure shall be permitted to be
occupied until all required improvements are installed from existing streets and utility lines to that lot,
unless that lot was platted prior to August 1, 1984. The city council may require that building
construction be discontinued if construction of streets, sewers and other required improvements do

not progress in an orderly manner or are left unfinished.

Occupancy permits.

(1) No occupancy permit shall be issued for any structure within a subdivision until all
improvements, including sidewalks, have been installed within the platted boundaries of the lot
upon which the structure is located except that landscaping may be delayed for reasons as

outlined in the following:

(2) Placement of sidewalks in the common area(s) of a platted subdivision may be delayed until all
other improvements in the common area(s) have been completed. The cost of the required
sidewalks shall be included in the infrastructure bond required for the subdivision.

Certificate of insurance.

(1) The contractors performing work under a valid building permit issued by the city shall indemnify
the city, with certificate of insurance with the city named as co-insured. The certificate of
insurance shall be on a form furnished by the city. The contractor shall secure and maintain

Page 2 of 12
189



throughout the duration of construction, insurance of types and in amounts as may be
necessary to protect himself or herself and the interest of the city against all hazards or risk of
loss. The form and limits of such insurance together with each underwriter, shall be acceptable
to the city, but regardless of such acceptance it shall be the responsibility of the contractor to
maintain adequate insurance coverage at all times.

. The contractor may satisfy the liability limits_required. for each-type of insurance-by securing and

maintaining an umbrella excess liability type policy.

Satisfactory certificates of insurance shall be filed with the city before a construction permit will
be issued. The liability limits shall not be less than:

Workers Compensation Statutory

Automobile Liability—Bodily Injury $500,000.00 each person

$2,000,000.00 each

Bodily Inju
e occurrence
Property or Combined Single Limit $300,000.00 each occurrence
$2,000,000.00 each
occurrence

Comprehensive General Liability (including products and completed

$500,000.00 each occurrence

operations
. ) $2,000,000.00 aggregate

(9) Construction and maintenance of drainage facilities.

(h)

(1)

)

No building permits or occupancy permits shall be issued for any lots in the subdivision, unless
at the time of issuance the subdivision's drainage facilities and improvements, including but not
limited to culverts, detention ponds, ditching, etc., are operating as designed; or 90 percent of
all lots in the subdivision have been developed as platted.

If for any reason the city expends money to repair, maintain or improve the existing drainage
facilities and improvements including but not limited to detention ponds, ditching, culverts, etc.,
prior to 90 percent of the lots being developed as platted, no building permits shall be issued for
new construction on any lot until the amount expended has been reimbursed to the city.

Plans and specifications. During and upon the approval of the final plat, but prior to the issuance of
the building permit, the subdivider, applicant or developer shall have prepared by a licensed
professional engineer (which may be contracted for, with any governmental agency or utility),
engineering drawings for proposed required improvements containing the data and information
specified in subsection (i) of this section.

() Content of engineering drawings. Engineering drawings for required improvements shall contain the
following data and information:
Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 3 of 12

190




(1)

()
(8)

Plans, profiles, details, specifications and cost estimates for roadway and sidewalk construction,
including plans and profiles for each street with a typical cross section of the roadway. The
profiles of grade lines shall be shown to a scale of one inch equals 50 feet horizontal, and one
inch equals five feet vertical. This information shall be shown on standard plan and profile

sheets unless otherwise required.

Plans, profiles, details, specifications and cost estimates of proposed storm drainage
improvements.

Plans, profiles, details, specifications and cost estimates of proposed water distribution systems
and proposed water supply facilities and hydrants, if any.

Plans, profiles, details, specifications and cost estimates of sewerage systems and of any
required sewage treatment facilities.

Grading plans for all lots and other sites in the subdivision.

When unusual site conditions exist, the city council may require such additional plans,
specifications and drawings as may be necessary for an adequate review of the improvements

to be installed.
All plans shall be based on city or U.S.G.S. datum for vertical control.

Plans, details, and specifications for all street name signs and traffic regulator signs.

(i) Soil erosion and sediment control.

(1)

(2)

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16

Introduction/purpose.
The purpose of this local regulation is to safeguard persons, protect property, prevent
damage to the environment and promote the public welfare by regulating land disturbance,
land fill and soil storage in connection with the clearing and grading of land for construction
related or other purposes and by effectively minimizing soil erosion and sedimentation
during land development or any other type of land disturbance in the City of Belton.
Further, it provides builders, developers and property owners with soil erosion and
sedimentation control standards and regulations.
b. Facilitation of the regulations and standards contained herein shall accomplish the
following:
1. Establish standards for soil erosion and sediment control.

2.  Minimize soil erosion and sedimentation during land development or other land
disturbing activities.

Minimize pollution of streams, ponds and lakes.

a.

Encourage management of natural resources.
Preserve the beauty of the community and the value of land.
Reduce maintenance costs of public and private improvements and services.

7. Promote and protect the public's health, safety, comfort and welfare.

I

Definitions.

Agricultural crop management practices means all land farming operations including
plowing or tilling of land for the purpose of crop production or the harvesting of crops.

Applicant means any person requesting approval of any application pursuant to this section
and the subdivision regulations.

APWA means American Public Works Association.

Page 4 of 12
191



APWA Erosion and Sediment Control Specifications and Design Criteria means sections
2100, 2150, 3100 and 5100 of the Kansas City Metropolitan Chapter of the APWA Standards,
Specifications and Design Criteria manual, adopted in 2003.

Army Corps means United States Department of the Army, Army Corps of Engineers.

Clearing means any activity which removes the vegetative surface cover including, but not
limited to, root removal or top soil removal.

CPESC means Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control.
Director means the director of public works of the City of Belton or his or her designee.
Drainageway means any channel that conveys surface runoff throughout the site.

Erosion means the wearing away of the land surface by the action of wind, water or gravity
or a combination thereof.

Erosion and sediment control plan means a set of plans prepared by or under the direction
of a licensed professional engineer or a certified professional in erosion and sediment control
indicating the specific measures and sequencing to be used to control runoff, sediment and
erosion on a development site before, during and after construction and after all permanent
improvements have been erected or installed. This is also sometimes referred to as the
"Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan" in the APWA Standards.

Erosion control means measures that prevent erosion.
FEMA means Federal Emergency Management Administration.
Governing body means the city council of the City of Belton.

Grading means excavation or fill of earth material, or combination thereof, including the
resulting conditions thereof.

MDNR means Missouri Department of Natural Resources.
Permanent vegetation means grass, sod or ground cover sufficient to prevent erosion.

Phasing means clearing a parcel of land in distinct phases, with the stabilization of each
phase before the clearing of the next,

Sediment means solid material moved by erosion and deposited away from its point of
origin.
Sediment control means measures that prevent eroded sediment from leaving the site.

Site means a parcel of land, or a contiguous combination thereof, where grading work is
performed as a single unified operation.

Site development means altering terrain, vegetation and/or constructing improvements.

Site development permit means a permit issued by the director or his or her designee for
the construction or alteration of ground, including improvements and structures for the control of
erosion, runoff and grading.

Stabilization means the use of practices that prevent exposed soil from eroding.

Start of construction means the first land-disturbing activity associated with a development,
including land preparation such as clearing, grading and filling; installation of streets and
walkways; excavation for basements, footings, piers or foundations; erection of temporary
forms; and installation of accessory buildings such as garages.

Stream bank means the top of the natural incline bordering a stream.

Stripping means any activity by which the vegetative cover is removed or significantly
disturbed, including tree removal, clearing, grubbing and storage, or removal of topsoil.

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 5 of 12
192



Vegetative cover means any grasses, shrubs, trees and other vegetation that protects and
stabilizes soils.

Watercourse means any body of water, including, but not limited to lakes, ponds, rivers,
streams, and bodies of water which are delineated by the director.

Waterway means a channel that directs surface runoff to a watercourse, or to the public
storm drain.

(3) Permits - Regulated activities. No person, firm or corporation may develop or disturb land,
including clearing, grading, excavating, filling, storing or disposing of soil and earth materials or
perform any other land disturbing activity, without first obtaining a site development permit and
the approval of an erosion and sediment control plan by the director or his or her assignee
except as noted in subsection (j)(4) of this section. The following permits shall be required:

a. All sites one acre or more shall have a Missouri Department of Natural Resources permit
and a City of Belton permit.
b. Al subdivision and commercial lots less than one acre shall have a City of Belton permit.

(4) Exemptions. Persons performing land disturbance activities that meet any of the criteria below
are not required to apply for a site development permit pursuant to this chapter:

a. Land disturbance activities by city departments. In those cases, the department is required
to comply with the requirements of the city's general permit, if applicable, the city's adopted
standards and the city's building code;

b. Home gardens/landscaping. Home gardening and landscaping operations on residential
lots including plowing or tilling of land for the purpose of growing flowers, trees, shrubs
and/or vegetables and removal of trees and/or shrubs;

c.  Work to correct or remedy emergencies. This includes situations that pose an immediate
danger to life or property, or substantial flood or fire hazards; and

d. Routine agricultural crop management practices;
e. Land disturbance activities less than or equal to 300 square feet.

(5) Site development permit application and issuance.

a. Each application shall bear the name(s) and address(es) of the owner or developer of the
site, and of any consulting firm retained by the applicant together with the name of the
applicant's principal contact at such firm, including the name and phone of the grading or
earth moving contractor and shall be accompanied by an application fee if any fee has
been established at the time of the submission of the application.. The council may

establish application fees by resolution.

b.  The issuance of a permit shall constitute authorization to do only that work described or
shown on the approved plan. Each application shall include a statement that any land
clearing, construction, or development involving the movement of earth shall be in
accordance with the applicant's approved erosion and sediment control plan.

The permit shall be valid from the time that it is issued until a final certificate of occupancy
or completion certificate has been issued for the site. A completion certificate will not be
issued until the site is stabilized and erosion and sediment-control measures are no longer
necessary. A site will be considered finally stabilized when all soil disturbing activities at
the site have been completed and a uniform perennial vegetative cover for the unpaved
areas and areas not covered by permanent structures has been established or equivalent
permanent stabilization measures have been employed. Prior to issuance of a completion
certificate or occupancy permit the site will be inspected by the public works or community
development director to determine if the site has been stabilized and all erosion control

measures have been removed.

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 6 of 12

193



c. If the permittee sells the property before the expiration of the permit, the permit may be
assigned to the new owner of the site if the assignment is approved in writing by the
director.

d. If the permittee sells any portion of the property before the expiration of the permit, the
permittee will remain responsible for that portion of the property until the new owners of the
property, with respect to property covered by a-permit, make all submissions required to
obtain a new site development permit or an approved assignment of the permit or any
portion thereof.

e. Clearing and grading.

1. Clearing and grading of natural resources, such as forests and wetlands, shall not be
permitted, unless proper permits have been obtained from MDNR, Corps of Engineer
or FEMA.

2. Clearing, except that necessary to establish sediment control devices, shall not begin
until all sediment control devices have been instailed and have been stabilized.

f. Areas that have been cleared and graded but will not be constructed on for more than 14
days must be stabilized with temporary vegetation or mulch. (APWA Standard 5100.7)

g. Review and approval.

1. The director or assignee will review each application for a site development permit to
determine its conformance with the provisions of this chapter. Within 30 days after
receiving an application, the director shall, in writing:

()  Approve the permit application;

(i) Approve the permit application subject to such reasonable conditions as may be
necessary to secure substantially the objectives of this regulation, and issue the
permit subject to these conditions; or

(iii) Disapprove the permit application, indicating the deficiencies and the procedure
for submitting a revised application and/or submission.

h.  Application fee. The city council may establish application fees by resolution adopted by
the council. This fee shall be for the application processing and administration of this
chapter.

(6) Erosion and sediment control plan.

a. The erosion and sediment control plan must be prepared and certified by a professional
engineer or a certified professional in erosion and sediment control (CPESC) on behalf of
the applicant and must outline the measures he or she will take to ensure soil and
sediment is contained on the development site.

b.  The erosion and sediment control plan for areas that are one acre or greater shall include:
1. The property owner's name, address and telephone number.

2. A natural resources map, at a scale no smaller than one inch equals 100 feet,
identifying the location; soils; forest cover; the surrounding area's watercourses, water
bodies and other significant geographic and natural features; and resources protected
under other chapters of this Code.

3. Aoneinch equals 50 feet scale map of the site showing proposed excavation, grading
or filling.

4. Existing and proposed contours at two foot intervals on USGS datum, clearing limits,
and delineation of 100-year floodplain and floodway.

. A sequence of construction of the development site, including stripping and clearing;
rough grading; construction of utilities, infrastructure, and buildings; final grading and

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 7 of 12
194



landscaping; and removal of temporary erosion control devices. Sequencing shall
identify the expected date on which clearing will begin, the estimated duration of
exposure of cleared areas, and the sequence of clearing, installation of temporary
erosion and sediment measures, installation of storm drainage, paving of streets and
parking areas, and establishment of permanent vegetation.

6. All erosion and sediment-control measures necessary to meet the objectives of this
chapter throughout all phases of construction and permanently, after completion of
development of the site. Depending upon the complexity of the project, the drafting of
intermediate plans may be required at the close of each season.

7. Seeding mixtures and rates, types of sod, method of seedbed preparation, expected
seeding dates, type and rate of lime and fertilizer application, and kind and quantity of
mulching for both temporary and permanent vegetative control measures.

8.  Provisions for maintenance of control facilities, including easements and estimates of
the cost of maintenance.

9. Location of proposed and existing utility lines.

10. Details of temporary drainage system to direct stormwater runoff from graded portions
of the site and details of the permanent drainage plan.

11. Temporary access routes and construction entrance.

12. A signed and sealed estimate from the Professional Engineer or Certified Professional
in Erosion and Sediment Control of the estimated cost for the work included in the

plan.

13. Any additional items indicated in the APWA Erosion and Sediment Control
Specifications and Design Criteria.

14. The signature and seal of a Professional Engineer or a Certified Professional in
Erosion and Sediment Control (CPESC).

c. Additional information or data may be required as deemed appropriate by the director.
Requirements for maps, plans, reports or drawing may be waived if the director finds that
the otherwise submitted information is sufficient to show that the proposed work will
conform to the erosion and sediment control requirements required by this chapter.

d. Additional erosion and sedimentation control measures may be imposed by the director.

e.  All erosion and sediment control plans shall be designed and shall meet the design criteria
set forth in the most recent version of the APWA Erosion and Sediment Control
Specifications and Design Criteria, as adopted by resolution by the governing body, and
shall be adequate to prevent transportation of sediment from the site to the satisfaction of

the City of Belton.
f.  Grading and erosion control on individual lots and areas less than one acre:

1. Applications for areas less than one acre or individual lots shall be shown on a plot
plan that contains the following:

(i) Property lines existing and proposed, lot and block number.

(i) Location of structure.

(i) Elevation on the top of the foundation, proposed and existing grading contours,
property corners.

(iv) Location of drainage swales, inlets, and arrows showing direction of runoff.
(v) Location of sediment and erosion controls.
(vi) Any additional information required by the director.

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 8 0f 12

195



(vii) All sediment and erosion controls shall be removed from the lot after vegetation
has been established.

(viii) The application fee if any fee has been established at the time of the submission
of the application. This fee shall be for the application processing and
administration of this chapter.

(ix) No building inspections shall take place until erosion controls and a construction
entrance are installed.

(7) Security for performance of work. The director shall require the applicant to provide security
equal to the estimated cost to install and maintain the approved erosion and sediment control
measures for the duration of the site development permit as defined in subsection (j)(5) of this
section if the land disturbance is within the watershed of a public or private lake or pond or if the
erosion and sediment control plan is for an area of one acre or greater and the estimated cost to
install and maintain the approved erosion and sediment control measures is $2,000.00 or
greater. The applicant has two options to secure the performance of work;

a.  Option 1: Performance bond. The applicant may furnish a performance bond, approved by
the director of finance; or

b. Option 2: Letter of credit agreement. The applicant may enter into a letter of credit
agreement with the city, whereby the applicant will submit a letter of credit from a bank
approved by the director of finance.

(8) Mud, material or debris on city streets.

a. No activities are permitted that cause mud, soil, earth, sand, gravel, rock, stone, and
concrete, building materials or other materials to be deposited on public streets. Other
measures may be required in order to ensure that sediment is not tracked onto public
streets by construction vehicles or washed into storm drains.

b. If mud, material or debris is deposited on a public or private street, the respbnsible party
shall abate the violation based on section 15-46 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Belton, Missouri.

(9) Inspection.

a. By submitting a development plan or applying for a building permit, the applicant consents
to inspections of the proposed development site and all work in progress. The director or
designated agent shall enter the property of the applicant as deemed necessary to make
regular inspections to ensure the validity of the reports filed.

b. A copy of the permit and erosion and sediment control plan must be available on the site
for inspection by authorized representatives of the City of Belton.

c.  The director or designated agent shall make inspection at its discretion and shall notify the
permittee wherein the work fails to comply with the erosion and sediment control plan as
approved. Plans for grading, stripping, excavating, and filling work bearing the stamp of
approval of the City of Belton shall be maintained at the site during the progress of the
work.

d. The permittee or his or her agent shall make weekly inspections of all control measures in
accordance with the inspection schedule outlined on the approved erosion and sediment
control plan. The purpose of such inspections will be to determine the overall effectiveness
of the control plan, and the need for additional control measures. All inspections and
modifications to the erosion and sediment controls shall be documented in written form and
noted on the approved erosion and sediment control plan.

e. The permittee or his or her agent shall inspect and repair as needed all sediment and
erosion controls after each rainfall event. The dates of these inspections and repairs shall
be noted on the erosion and sediment control plan.

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 9 of 12
196



f.  Copies of the reports on the erosion and sediment control plan shall be submitted to the
public works department on monthly basis. Failure to submit this document could result in

a stop work order.

g. In the event work does not conform to the permit or conditions of approval or to the
approved plan or to any instructions of the director, notice to comply shall be given to the
permittee. After a notice to comply is given, the permittee or the permittee's contractor shall
be required to make the corrections within the time period determined by the director. If an
imminent hazard exists, the director shall require that the corrective work begin

immediately.

(10) Coordination with other permits. When a person is developing a site, and a site development
permit is required in accordance with subsections (j)(3) and (5) of this section, no other
construction permits shall be issued to make improvements on that site until the person has
secured the site development permit for the same site. This includes all permits issues by the
director or any other city department. The city may simultaneously issue a site development

permit and a grading permit.

(11) Maintenance of control measures. The applicant shall at all times maintain all erosion and
sediment control measures in good order and in compliance with the erosion and sediment
control plan for the site and with the city's adopted standards, for the duration of the permit as
defined in subsection (j)(5) of this section. In determining the applicant's compliance with the
erosion and sediment control plan for the site, the director shall take into consideration any

results the applicant has obtained through sampling.

(12) Sampling. The applicant shall have the option of including a system of regular sampling by
individuals approved to perform such sampling by the city as a part of the applicant's erosion
and sediment control plan. The director may require sampling to determine the effectiveness of
the erosion control plan or to obtain information to investigate complaints regarding the site.
Sampling shall not be the only item reviewed to determine compliance with the erosion and
sediment control plan for the site. The director may also perform sampling.

(13) Removal of control measures. The applicant shall receive the director's approval before any
structural erosion and sediment control measure identified on the plans is removed or made
ineffective. Removal of erosion and sediment control measures must be performed in the
manner described in the erosion and sediment control plan and in accordance with the city's
adopted standards. When determining whether an erosion and sediment control measures may
be removed or made ineffective, the director shall take into consideration testing results

furnished by the applicant.

(14) Action against the security. The director may take action against the security if the applicant
fails to install or maintain the erosion and sediment control measures in accordance with the
erosion and sediment control plan for the site and the city's adopted standards for the duration
of the permit as defined in subsection (j)(5) of this section. The director will provide the applicant
with ten days' written notice before any action is taken against the security, and if during that
ten-day period the applicant bring control measures into compliance with the plan, no action

shall be taken against the security.
(15) Enforcement and penalties.

a. Stop work order; revocation of permit.

1. In the event that any person holding a site development permit pursuant to this
chapter violates the terms of the permit, or implements site development in such a
manner as to materially adversely affect the health, welfare, or safety of persons
residing or working in the neighborhood or development site so as to be materially
detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or improvements in the
neighborhood, the director may suspend or revoke the site development permit and

issue a stop work order.

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined -~ City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 10 of 12

197



(k)

0

(m)

2. For the purposes of this subsection, a stop work order is issued by posting a copy of
the stop work order on the site of the land disturbance activity in reasonable proximity
to a location where the land disturbance activity is taking place. A copy of the order, in
the case of work for which there is a permit, shall be mailed by first class mail,
postage prepaid, to the address listed by the permittee on the permit; faxed to the
number listed on the permit; or e-mailed to the e-mail address listed on the permit. In

~ the case of work for which there is no permit, a copy of the order shall be mailed fo
the person listed as the owner of the property on records filed with Cass County,
Missouri.

3. A permittee or property owner shall have the right to appeal the issuance of the stop
work order within five working days of the issuance of the stop work order. The city
manager shail hold a hearing on the appeal of the stop work order and render a
decision on the appeal.

4. No person is permitted to continue or permit the continuance of work in an area
covered by a stop work order, except work required to correct deficiencies with
respect to an erosion or sediment-control measure.

5. Ten working days after posting a stop work order or upon issuance of a decision by
the city manager if an appeal is filed, the director, if the conditions specified in the stop
work order have not been satisfied, may issue a notice to the permittee, or property
owner, of the City of Belton's intent to perform work necessary to comply with this
chapter. The City of Belton may go on the land and commence work after 14 working
days from issuing the notice of intent. The costs incurred by the City of Belton to
perform this work shall be paid by the property owner or permittee.

b. Violation and penalties. No person shall construct, enlarge, alter, repair, or maintain any
grading, excavation, or fill, or cause the same to be done, contrary to or in violation of any
terms of this section. Any violation of any provision of this section by any person,
partnership, corporation, or other entity shall be punishable by a fine of not more than
$100.00 per violation per day not to exceed $500.00 and/or 90 days in jail. Each day during
which any such violation is committed, continued, or permitted, shall constitute a separate
offense. In addition to any other penalty authorized by this section, any person,
partnership, or corporation convicted of violating any of the provisions of this section shall
be required to bear the expense of such restoration. The City of Belton reserves the right to
revoke the building permit for serious and/or repeated violations and/or may place a lien on
the property to pay for the city's costs in completing the work to remove the violation as
provided in this subsection (j)(15) and court costs.

(16) Severability. The provisions of this section shall be deemed to be severable, and the invalidity of
any portion of this section shall not affect the validity of the remainder.

Review of plans. The city engineer shall review all engineering drawings in order to determine
whether or not such drawings are consistent with the approved preliminary plat and comply with the
city's design standards. The city engineer shall notify the subdivider of any deficiencies and the
subdivider may then correct these drawings and resubmit them to the city engineer. If the subdivider
disagrees on the application of the city standards or the degree of conformity with the preliminary
plat, the points of disagreement may be appealed to the city council. The city council may only
reverse the interpretation of the city engineer if they determine that conformity with the preliminary
plat and the city's design standards would be achieved by the subdivider's plans.

Inspection. All improvements constructed or erected shall be subject to inspection by the city Public
Works Inspector and/or the city engineer or his or her designee.

Inspection procedures. After notice is received, the city public works inspector shall conduct an on-
site inspection to determine that the work complies with the approved engineering plans and
specifications. After such inspection has been made, the public works inspector shall notify the city
clerk of his or her opinion thereof. If the city council shall determine, after consideration of the opinion

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Council Regular Session RS 07.12.16 Page 11 of 12

198



of the public works inspector that such work does not comply with the approved engineering plans
and specificafions, the city council shall so notify the subdivider, and may require the subdivider to
terminate all further work until necessary steps are taken to correct any defect, deficiency, or
deviation to the satisfaction of the city council. Upon the correction of such defect, deficiency, or
leviation, the subdivider shall again netify the official.

(n) Final inspection. Upon completion of all improvements within the area covered by the final plat, the
subdivider shall notify the city public works inspector who shall thereupon conduct a final inspection
of all improvements installed. After such inspection has been made, the public works inspector shall
notify the city clerk of his or her opinion. If the city council shall determine, after consideration of the
opinion of the official, that there are defects, deficiencies, or deviations in any such improvements as
installed, or if there are any deviations in such improvements as installed from the approved
engineering plans and specifications, the city council shall so notify the subdivider in writing, and the
subdivider shall, at its sole expense, correct such defects, deviations, or deficiencies. When such
defects, deficiencies, or deviations have been corrected, the subdivider shall notify the official that

the improvements are ready for final re-inspection.
(o) Construction plan review fee. The subdivider shall pay to the city a plan review fee of one percent of

the estimated cost of the required public improvements, as defined in section 42-167, for the review
and processing of the construction and site improvements pians. This fee may be adjusted from time
to time by the city council.

(p) Inspection of public improvements. Unless otherwise approved by the city engineer, all
improvements shall be inspected by the City of Belton. The subdivider shall pay to the city a fee of
four two percent of the estimated cost of the required public improvements, as defined in subsection
(s) of this section, for construction inspection. The subdivider shall obtain a construction permit(s)
from the public works department; the fees shall be paid at the time of permit issuance. This fee may
be adjusted from time to time by the city council.

(g) "As built" construction plans. The subdivider shall contract with a professional engineer or land
surveyor registered in the State of Missouri to perform construction staking and preparation of "as-
built" construction plans. The professional engineer or land surveyor shall field verify and sign and
seal the "as-built" construction pians.

(r) lIssuance of building permits. Building permits shall not be issued until all planning, plan review, and
construction inspection fees have been paid. Building permits shall not be issued until the required
public improvements, as defined in section 42-167, have been accepted by the city or guaranteed by

a bond in accordance with the provisions of this section.

(s) Definition of public improvements. Required public improvement shall include those improvements
intended to be accepted for future city maintenance and/or ownership, including but not limited to
street facilities, sidewalks, sanitary sewer facilities, water system facilities, and storm drainage
facilities, including detention systems and other stormwater management facilities. Stormwater
management facilities will only be excluded from this definition when on private property and both
routine and long term maintenance is ensured; which will include restrictive covenants, deed
restrictions, maintenance bonds or other agreements approved by the city engineer.

(UDC 2010, § 20.27; Ord. No. 2003-2954, 1-28-2003; Ord. No. 2007-3310, 2-13-2007; Ord. No.
2008-3419, 2-12-2008; Ord. No. 2011-3751, § 1, 9-27-2011)

Exhibit A - Chapter 36 Redlined - City Couricil Regular Session R507.12.16 Page 12 of 12

199



200



SECTION Vil
H



202



BILL NO. 2016-83 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE RE-APPROPRIATION & REVISION OF THE
FISCAL YEAR 2017 ADOPTED CITY BUDGET BY ADDING A CERTIFIED

BUILDING OFFICIAL.

WHEREAS, on March 8, 2016 under Ordinance No. 2016-13, the City Council
approved the Fiscal Year 2017 City Budget; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2017 City Budget, the
hiring of a Certified Building Official was approved by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the FY-17 Adopted City Budget of the Inspections Department
needs to be amended to reflect the hiring of a City Building Official and

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURIL

Section 1. Inthe General Fund, #010 ...

INCREASE the balance by $ 56,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4001110 _, named __Salaries-Regular.

INCREASE the balance by $ 3.3334 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
# 010-2100-4001130 _ , named Salaries-Overtime,

INCREASE the balance by $ 10,410 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
# 010-2100-4001205 , named ___Medical-Health Insurance.

INCREASE the balance by $ 1,490 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4001210 , named ___Dental Insurance.

INCREASE the balance by $ 199 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4001215 , named ___Life Insurance.

INCREASE the balance by § 248 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
# 010-2100-4001220  , named ___ Vision Insurance.

INCREASE the balance by $ 242  (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4001225 , named ___Disability Insurance.

INCREASE the balance by $§ 4,593 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4001230 _, named ___ Social Security.

INCREASE the balance by $§ 6.901 _ (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
# 010-2100-4001235 , named Lagers Retirement.

203



INCREASE the balance by $ 3.290 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4001255 , named ___ Workers Compensation.

INCREASE the balance by _$ 32 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4001265 _, named __Employee Asst. Plan.

INCREASE the balance by § 150 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4003030 , named _ Medical.

INCREASE the balance by $§ 1.500 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4003235 , named ___ Expense Allowance.

INCREASE the balance by $§ 1,500 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4003405 , named ___ Training.

INCREASE the balance by § 200 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4003425 , named  Membership Dues.

INCREASE the balance by $§ 1.334 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4003705 , named ___Telephone.

INCREASE the balance by § 500 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4004009 , named ___Clothing.

INCREASE the balance by $§ 1.500 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4004012 , named __ Minor Equipment.

INCREASE the balance by § 500  (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4004014 , named ___ Office Supplies.

INCREASE the balance by § 500 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-2100-4004050 , named __ Motor Fuels.

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the Inspections Budget line items.

Section 2. Inthe __ General Fund Revenue Fund, #010 ...

INCREASE the balance by $_ 1,437,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
# 010-0000-3220500 , named ___ Building Permits

DECREASE the balance by § 94,423 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item,
#010-0000-3220500 , named ___ Building Permits.

'FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the Inspections Budget line items.

204



Section 3.  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from the date of its

passage, adoption, and approval by the Mayor.

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 12,2016

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME: July 12, 2016

Mayor Jeff Davis

Approved this day of . 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis
ATTEST:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI)
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS
CITY OF BELTON )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City
Clerk of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for

first reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the 12th day of
July , 2016, and thereafter adopted as Ordinance No. 2016- of the

City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the day

of , 2016, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:

NOES: COUNCILMEN:

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
City of Belton, Missouri

205



\\\

4V

City of Belton

CERTIFIED BUILDING OFFICIAL

Department: Community Planning & ‘Revised Date: June 2016
Development

Reports to: Director, Community Planning &
Development

GENERAL PURPOSE: Under general direction, conducts and documents building inspection activities to
ensure compliance with adopted building codes and related municipal codes and zoning ordinances for the City.

PRIMARY DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

The following duties ARE NOT intended to serve as a comprehensive list of all duties performed by all team
members in this classification, only a representative summary of the primary duties and responsibilities.
Incumbent(s) may not be required to perform all duties listed and may be required to perform additional,
position-specific duties.

e Oversees the enforcement of the building and construction ordinance as adopted by the city; conducts
inspections when necessary; reviews plans, specifications and other documents for code compliance.

* Assists with zoning and land development review, inspection, and compliance.

¢ Manages and supervises the department staff; reviews current trends and developments in the field of
construction.

e Prepares revisions to city codes, ordinances, and local regulations; provides technical building code
advice to department staff, developers, contractors, builders, the Assistant City Manager, staff, and the
citizens of Belton; explains, interprets, and provides guidance regarding codes to architects, engineers,
contractors, developers, and other parties.

* Researches problems and complaints concerning commercial and residential building, building
construction, and code compliance; resolves complex customer service issues; coordinates plan
reviews, permits, inspections, and enforcement actions.

e Supervises staff; conducts performance evaluations.

* Monitors revenues and the operating budget for division: reviews new construction materials and
supplies to ensure conformance with code; initiates pre-development conferences with commercial or
large multiple building developers to ensure efficient coordination with city services.

* Knowledge of management principles and practices, including budgeting, policy and procedure
development, and personnel supervision.

¢ Reviews plans and related technical materials for compliance with adopted codes, regulations and
industry standards.

206
City Buiiding inspector 10of4



JOB DESCRIPTION
City Building Inspector

Reviews permit applications for adherence to associated codes, regulations, and industry standards;
approves permits; documents and enters approval into records/files.

Responds to questions from the public, property owners, and other parties/agencies by explaining the
applicability of codes, ordinances, city and state statutes and related regulations and industry standards,
the codes enforcement processes, and case-specific information while maintaining required security and
confidentiality of information created or encountered in the course of assigned duties.

Creates and maintains files and related records in manual and automated systems, and assures proper
retention and archiving.

Conducts field work and inspections of properties related to building codes and other codes
enforcement for compliance with permitted activities, adopted codes, regulations and industry
standards; writes up violations, if found; and documents and takes pictures of violation issues.

Researches code issues; ensures familiarity with adopted codes; identifies discrepancies, anomalies
and conflicts in City codes and regulations and refers the same to management for attention.

» Prepares and submits routine, recurring and special reports to management.

Assists with the review and development of policies and procedures associated with building, zoning,
and related codes and regulations for the City.

Supports the relationship between the City of Belton and the constituent population by providing
excellent customer service; promotes the City goals and priorities in compliance with all policies and
procedures; maintains absolute confidentiality of work-related issues, client records and City
information; and performs related duties as required or assigned.

Ensures that job duties are completed in strict adherence to established safe work practices.

e This position has direct supervision over Building Inspectors (2).
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor's Degree and three to five years of experience in general construction, contracting, planning, project
design or materials procurement that includes leadwork or supervisory experience over assigned projects; OR

an equivalent combination of education, training and experience.

Required Licenses or Certifications:
e Possession of a valid State of Missouri Driver's License.

Completion of Certified Building Official Certification or the ability to obtain full certification within six
months of appointment.

Required Knowledge of:
e Construction permitting processes; industry standard building construction practices, methods and

materials.

207

City Building Inspector 20of4



JOB DESCRIPTION
City Building Inspector

Principles and techniques of review and-evaluation of construction-plans and related technical data for
compliance with codes and standards.

City/departmental standards for the creation and maintenance of records, including automated records
and databases.

Procedural and legal processes invoived in the resolution of codeé violations.
Federal, state, and local laws applicable to building and zoning codes.
Effective communication principles and practices to include public relations.

Modern office procedures, methods, and equipment including computers, computer applications such
as word processing, spreadsheets, and statistical databases.

English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Principles of business letter writing.

Required Skill in:

Utilizing personal computer software programs and other relevant software affecting assigned work and
in compiling and preparing spreadsheets.

Establishing and maintaining effective working relationships with staff, management, vendors, outside
agencies, community groups and the general public.

Interpreting and applying building codes, laws, ordinances, statutes and construction industry
standards.

Analyzing construction plans, specifications and associates technical data for compliance with codes
and standards.

Detecting and documenting defects and deviations from permitted construction activities and codes and
standard.

Preparing and maintaining files and records for code violations in both manual and computer-based
systems.

Scheduling worksite inspections and technical plans reviews in response to code violations or
allegations.

Communicating effectively verbally and in writing sufficient to explain the codes enforcement processes
and requirements to interested and affected parties.

Conducting code interpretation, building inspections, and code enforcement.

Maintaining confidentiality and communicating with tact and diplomacy.

208

City Building inspector 3of4



JOB DESCRIPTION
City Building Inspector

Physical Demands / Work Environment:

e Work is performed in a standard office environment; routinely travels to various inspection sites and
occasionally may be exposed to dangerous machinery, extreme weather conditions, and potential physical
harm when conducting on-site inspections.

Salary Range:
e Salary range of $55,816.96 - $84,932.11 per year, DOQ, with a competitive benefit package.

209
City Building Inspector 40f4



)00s3eA uAjoie)
Jojeuipioo) "a-3

uojAe|o 3a4p uosuyof uog

1N3INdOTIAId
JINIONOD3

Jo0)0adsu| uip|ing Jo0309dsu| Suipjing
Jadoo) qoy JUDbIDA
Jauueld Ad |eryjo Sulp|ing
ONINNY1d 7 SNOILO3dSNI

dOIv ‘S1zdia7 D Aer
40103¥1a

J919Y2s A9|ysy
1SINOILd3D3Y B "LSSV "NIANGY

IN3IINdOTIAIA JIINONOIT ANV ALINNININOD

210



SECTION IX
A



212



R2016-27

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PUBLIC WATER LINE EXTENSION AT THE
CORNER OF 163%° STREET AND GIVAN AVENUE, COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE

ARVEST BANK DEVELOPMENT.

WHEREAS, extension of the City’s drinking water system was necessary to serve the Arvest
Bank and other adjacent, future customers; and

WHEREAS, Section 36-111 of the Unified Development Code provides for formal acceptance
of public improvements by the City of Belton according to the following:

(a) Developer shall submit "as built" plans electronically to the city engineer prior to
requesting final acceptance of improvements.

(b)Upon the determination by the City Council, after consideration of the opinion of the
building inspector that there are no defects, deficiencies, or deviations in the
improvements, and that all improvements have been installed in conformance with the
approved engineering drawings, and with the requirements of these regulations, the city
council shall by Resolution or by Letter, formally accept such improvements. The
improvements shall become the property of the city council or appropriate utility

company involved.
(1) Maintenance of improvements. Prior to the acceptance by the City of Belton of the

improvements required herein, except those improvements required by section 36-108,
the subdivider shall provide one of the following to guarantee the improvements against
defects in workmanship and materials, and providing for the normal maintenance for the
first two years after the date of acceptance of such improvements. Such guarantee shall be
in an amount equal to 100 percent of the estimated cost of the improvement.

a. Maintenance bond written by a bonding company, or

b. Cash deposited in escrow from which the subdivider would be entitled to any

interest income, or
c. Upon approval of the city council, a personal surety bond; and

WHEREAS, 358 feet of water line was installed and completed by the contractor for Arvest
Bank, Crossland Construction, LLC on May 13, 2016 with a two (2) year maintenance bond,
conforming to the approved engineering drawings and complying with the requirements of the
Unified Development Code in effect at the time of completion.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the Public Water Line Extension at the corner of 163td Street and Given
Avenue to the Arvest Bank development and is hereby formally accepted by the City of Belton

and shall become the property of the City.

213



Section 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and

approval.
READ and ADOPTED:
Mayor Jeff Davis
Approved this day of , 2016
ATTEST:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI )
COUNTY OF CASS )SS
CITY OF BELTON )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of
the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced at a

regular meeting of the City Council held on the 12th day of , 2016, and adopted at a
regular meeting of the City Council held the day of , 2016 by the following vote, to
wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:

NOES: COUNCILMEN:

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

214



JAVICEs
¥ /

CITY OF BELTON
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM

Y
%R1anon

PUBLIC WORKS

AGENDA DATE: July 12,2016 DIVISION: Public Works Engineering

COUNCIL: Regular Meeting [ ] Work Session [] Special Session

[ ] Ordinance X Resolution [ ] ConsentItem |[ | Change Order | [ | Motion
[ | Agreement | [ | Discussion [ ] FYI/Update | [ | Presentation |[ | Both Readings

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION:
As is required by the Unified Development Code 36-111, this is a procedural item for acceptance of new

infrastructure constructed and completed on May 13, 2016 with the new Arvest Bank on 163" Street.
The public improvement consists of 358 feet of water line that has been installed, inspected, and tested
per City of Belton standards. The City has received a two (2) year maintenance bond for the
aforementioned public improvement in the amount of $40,000.00

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:
Approve and authorize a resolution formally accepting the Arvest Bank public water line extension.

BACKGROUND:
Attached is a memo from Ron Raines, Construction Inspector, requesting acceptance of the Arvest Bank

public water line extension.

IMPACT/ANALYSIS:
FINANCIAL IMPACT
Contractor: n/a
Amount of Request/Contract: | $ | n/a
Amount Budgeted: $ | n/a
Funding Source: n/a
Additional Funds: | $ [n/a
Funding Source: n/a
Encumbered: $ [n/a
Funds Remaining: $ | n/a

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:
Approve and authorize a resolution formally accepting Arvest Bank public water line extension.

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

Resolution
Memo from Ron Raines, Construction Inspector

I'\Agenda Items\2016\071216\MBMOK Arvest Bank Infrastructure Acceptance RS 07.12.16\1. Accept Public Infrastructure
for Arvest Bank RS 07.12.16.doc 215




."RU ICEs
A3

= CITY OF BELTON — PUBLIC WORKS
QLE/ MEMORANDUM

PUBLIC WORKS

Date: May 18, 2016

To: Jeff Fisher, Director of Public Works

From: Ron Raines, Public Works Construction Inspector

Subject: Arvest Bank Public Water Line Extension

The Public Infrastructure for the Arvest Bank project was completed on May 13, 2016. These public
improvements consist of 358 feet of water line that have been installed, inspected, and tested per City
of Belton standards. The City has received a maintenance bond for the above mentioned public
improvement in the amount of $40,000.00. This improvement is ready to be placed on the City Council
agenda for formal acceptance.

216



SECTION IX
B



218



R2016-28

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT #1 WITH BURNS & MCDONNELL
ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC. IN A NOT-TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $45,000 TO
PERFORM EVALUATION AND ENGINEERING FOR THE CITY’S NEW COMPOSTING

PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Belton, understands it is important to be stewards of

the natural environment; and

WHEREAS, the City has the authority and follows Article IV, Division II, Section 2-921
Purchasing Procedure of the Ordinances of the City of Belton, Missouri, to approve contracts for services

thereto; and

WHEREAS, on April 12, of 2016 under Ordinance No. 2016-16, the City Council approved a
On-Call Engineering Services Agreement with Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, this task agreement with Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. is
necessary to evaluate and perform a certain level of design work to determine location of the new
composting program and certain components to secure continued permitting for the wastewater treatment
plant from the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (DNR); and

WHEREAS, staff recommends approving Task Agreement #1, herein attached and incorporated
as Exhibit A with Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. in a not to exceed amount of $45,000
to evaluate and perform a certain level of design work to determine location of the new composting

program.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That this resolution approving Task Agreement #1, herein attached and
incorporated as Exhibit A in a not to exceed amount of $45,000 to evaluate and perform a certain

level of design work to determine location of the new composting program is hereby approved

for purposes described above.
Section 2. The City Manager and Director of Public Works are authorized and directed to

execute the task agreement on behalf of the City.

Section 3. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and

approval.

Duly read and passed this __12th day of _ July , 2016.

219



Mayor Jeff Davis

ATTEST:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI )
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS.
CITY OF BELTON )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced

at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the __12th dayof  July , 2016, and
adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held the day of , 2016 by the
following vote, to-wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:

NOES: COUNCILMEN:

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

220



CITY OF BELTON
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM

PUBLIC WORKS

DATE: July 12, 2016 For: Public Works
COUNCIL: Regular Meeting ] Work Session [] Special Session
| [ ] Ordinance X] Resolution [ ] Consent Item [] Change Order | [ | Motion
[ ] Agreement [] Discussion [ | FYI/Update [_] Presentation ] Both Readings
ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION:

The City budgeted for a new composting program to be located at the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). The
highlights of the program will be that the community will have a place they can dispose of tree limbs and brush
(not including grass clippings) for free at the WWTP. These materials will be mulched and added to sludge
generated from the WWTP where both will be processed and eventually made into a mulch that the Parks
Department will be able to utilize in the soils for the gardens. This kind of operation is becoming common in
the industry and is an excellent environmental program that reduces waste to the landfill and fuel consumption.

This program was also included in the recently executed Abatement Order on Consent (AOC) with the Missouri
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) in which certain actions are required of the City. The facilities for the
composting program must be constructed by December 31, 2016. It is necessary that the City perform an
adequate level of engineering evaluation and design to secure the necessary permit for this operation. The
attached Task Agreement (TA) describes the scope and costs needed to meet these objectives.

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:
At the July 12, 2016 City Council Regular Meeting, authorize and approve a resolution for Task Agreement #1

with Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. in a not-to exceed amount of $45,000 to perform
evaluation and engineering for the City’s new Composting Program.

BACKGROUND:
The City currently disposes of its sludge at a landfill. Public Works Staff has been exploring alternatives to this

recently and in addition to this program is evaluating a land-application method and partner that other plants in
the region are using.

The City has also determined that it wishes to reduce its sludge disposal by 20% initially through this
composting program and has committed to it through agreement with DNR.

This task agreement would be funded through the composting project in the wastewater enterprise fund with
support from the Engineering line item in the Public Works budget (Fund 010-2000) in an approximate amount
of $20,000. Staff is proposing two other engineering task agreements at the July 12, 2016 regular Council
meeting that would also be funded through the Engineering line item. City Council approved on-call
engineering contracts for these engineering firms at the March 22, 2016 Council meeting.

I\Agenda Items\2016\071216\Engineering Task Agreements RS 7.12.16\MBMOK Burns & McDonnell - Composting 7.12.16\1, B&M TA
Information Form RS 07.12.16.docx 221



Summary of FY2017 010-2000-400-3025 PW Engineering Line Item

Consultant Scope Amount Notes
FY17 Budget - $136,083
(various) - $32,559 Already Expended
Olsson Associates | Stormwater support $30,680 Requested 7/12
TranSystems Traffic data $10,798 Requested 7/12
Burns & ;
McDonnell Composting ~$20,000 Requested 7/12
NEWCO Traffic to be balanced at end of
TranSystems Study +12,500 FY17
Remaining $54,546 Allocatec'l f"o.r various future
mitiatives
IMPACT/ANALYSIS:
FINANCIAL IMPACT
Contractor: Burns & McDonnell
Amount of Request/Contract: $ | 45,000
Amount Budgeted: $ [ $70,000+
Funding Source; Wastewater
Additional Funds: | $ [ $20,000
Funding Source: PW-Engineering
Encumbered: $ [ N/A
Funds Remaining: $ | N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:

Staff recommends approving as described.

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

Resolution
TA and Scope

I'\Agenda Items\2016\071216\Engineering Task Agreements RS 7.12.16 MBMOK Burns & McDonnell - Composting 7.12.16\1. B&M TA

Information Form RS 07.12.16.docx

222




Attachment 1

paBlie WORKS
City of Belton — Public Works
Task Agreement

Contract.

Funding Amount: Not to Exceed $45,000

Date of Schedule of

Tagk Agreament No: 1
Hourly Rates and Expenses;

Ordiriance or Resolution:

Purchase Order No:

Project Title: Composting Facility

Contractot/Consuitant (including subs): Division and Staff Project Manager:
g

Burns & McBonnell Engineering Company, Inc.

1) Project Description and Scope of Werk

Project Management Manual reviewad: Aftachments (Gantt Chan, eic.): 2) Conceptual Layout
._3) WWTF Wast Reduction Mermo

PROJECT Scope (can ba in the form of an attachment):
Profect Dascription and Scope ef Work are included In Exhibit A.

Staff Signatures Partner Signatures
Dirgctor of Public Works: City Manager: Project Manager: Company Prinolpal (if different):
Jeff Fisher Ron Trivitt Jeff Heidrick Ren Coker
/‘? /7 v
Signaturs: Bignaturs: e V. -~ 9: ; A ' ,
Date: Date: : E i :: 20 is .Dain: : E zz ] g s z
Property Conceptual -
Project Fype: Design X | Construction Problem Surveying
Agcquisition Solving
Project Discipline(s): Transportation Planning Water Westewater X Stormwater
Repart(s) Recaived:
Work on File:

This Task Agreement is subject to el the provisions included in the On-Call Professional Services Agreement effective oni the day

of . 20 )
Aftach scopa of work, budget, and other supporting material.

223




S BURNS
“\ MEDONNELL

City of Belton, Missouri
TASK ORDER 1

Project Description:

As part of an Abatement Order on Consent No. 2018-WPCB-1348 (Order), the City of Belton is
obligated to spend up to $70,000 on a Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP} as defined in
Appendix A of the Order. Per Appendix A, the SEP includes planning and construction of a
composting facility for processing of up to 20% of the City’s waste sludge from their wastewater
treatment process.

The proposed composting facility will be located on the existing wastewater treatment plant site.
The composting facility will include the following per the Public Works Department Memorandum
dated July 14, 2015:

- Covered sludge storage pad with perimeter curb; pad is anticipated to be asphalt with
exterior dimensions of approximately 54-feet by 24-feet.

- Designated area for yard waste and brush drop off for the citizens of Belton and the
Parks Department. Circle drive and drop area will be less than one acre in the vicinity of
the existing drive off of 211" Street.

- An asphalt paved pad and perimeter curb for traditional windrow composting pad is
anticipated to be approximately 120-feet by 60-feet. Other composting alternatives,
including in-vessel and aerated static pile, will not be evaluated.

- Stormwater runoff from the composting area and the yard waste and brush drop off area
will be routed to a detention pond designed to accommodate rainfall runoff; volume and
discharge configuration pending approval from the Missouri Department of Natural
Resources. Stormwater best management practices (BMP’s) will be implemented to
mitigate conveyance of woodchips and partially stabilized sludge to the pond.

Odor control is specifically excluded from the project description.

The City of Belton will be responsible for selection and procurement of com posting equipment
including, but not limited to the following: dump truck, tractor, skid steer(s), windrow turner (as

necessary), wood chipper, and screening and separation (shaker) equipment.

The City of Belton will dig test pits in the vicinity of the proposed retention pond; BMCD will be
present to observe test pit excavation. Samples from the test pit excavation will be submitted by
the City of Belton to a qualified geotechnical testing laboratory for permeability evaluation. Resuits
will be submitted to BMCD.

The City of Beiton intends to seif-perform construction of the facility. Design will be based on
topagraphic and boundary survey from the City and County Geographical Information System
(GIS). Final topographic and boundary survey, if nacessary, will be directly acquired by the City of
Belton. Design medifications resulting from final topographic and boundary survey will be provided
by BMCD based on a negotiated maximum not to exceed value.

1
224



S BURNS
S\MEDONNELL
Scope of Work:
Task 1 — Mestings and Presentations
1.1 Prepare and conduct a project initiation meeting with Client staff to discuss goals, scope,
schedule, required data, and other pertinent items.
1.2 Prepare and attend milestone meetings in Belton (four (4) meetings).
1.3 Present findings to the City Council (one (1) presentation).

Task 2 — Compost Facility
2.1 Prepare a basis of design document. Document will include an evalustion of compost mix
design, equipment requirements, composting site layout, a review of regulatory requirements
and an opinion of probable construction cost.

2.2 Upon approval of the basis of design document, develop a final deeign to guide City steff in
construction of the composting site. A tots! of three (3) design drawings will be included for site
layout, sections, and details. Abbreviated technical specifications will be provided to aid the City
inn construetion of the composting facility. Division 0 (bid documents and General Conditions)
and Division 1 specifications will not be provided.

2.3 Up to sixteen (18} hours of service is allocated to assist the City of Belton with application
far construglion permit end operating permit medification.

2.4 BMCD wif} provide up to three (3) site visits turing construction to observe the progress of
the work. Submittal reviews, contract administration, exhaustive inspections, and fisid testing

are not included in this scope of work.
Task 3 - Project Management & Quality Control:
3.1 Provide project coordination, management and quality control/quality assurance

225



Yard Waste Drop-off and Chipping

Compast Facility

EERTy Belton, MO WWTP Composting Facility

PI B ¢ R T - 'l
- Sfo:,,:;;m,, N Conceptual Layout

- Detention Pond A ~ \. BURN s

- Asphait Pad \ MSDONNELL




CITY OF BELTON — PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
MEMORANDUM

PUBLIC WORKS

Date: July 14, 2015

To: Ron Trivitt, City Manager

From: Rex Olinger, Jeff Fisher

Department/Division: Public Works/Water Services (WWTP)

Subject: WWTP Waste Reduction

Introduction

Currently, the sludge from the City of Belton Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) is delivered to the
Courtney Ridge Landfill for disposal. On an annual basis this amounts to approximately 1,440 cubic
yards of sludge. This process involves 95 trips to the landfill and 2 man hours per trip. This also requires
1 of the 3 plant operators to be gone from the plant, which means shutting down the sludge dewatering
process while he/she is making the delivery to Courtney Ridge.

Composting is an environmentally responsible alternative to wastewater sladge disposal, which provides
beneficial products for use in soil remediation and mulching. An Exceptional Quality Class A Biosolid
product, which has to meet strict pathogen and metals limits, can be used without regulatory oversight
on gardens, ball fields, lawns, and any other area where soil enrichment would benefit growth.

Benchmarking

Last year staff toured the St. Peters Missouri Composting Facility. They started their process with an
asphalt pad and a loader mixing the sludge with the wood chips manually and piling the mixture into
rows. When it was time to turn the rows or screen the compost, those processes were contracted out. As
they refined their process, it grew into a computer controlled/ monitored 8 bay composting station and
they had purchased all the necessary equipment to complete the process. Their process is now able to
provide citizens and contractors top soil, compost, and mulch at reasonable costs. The facility uses all
sludge produced by their wastewater treatment facility and also receives sludge from other facilities. As
an example, some of this product was used as a soil amendment on a road/curb repair in a citizen’s yard.
The new grass was thicker and richer in color than the rest of his yard. This citizen used this product on

the rest of his yard to beautify his property.

Site Location

The City will not need to acquire land for this project as the Wastewater Treatment Facility sits on 60
acres. The area in the northeast corner is relatively flat and is higher in elevation than the treatment
facility. This would provide a means of controlling runoff to prevent untreated or partially treated

compost from making it to waterways.

227



Capital and Operational Needs

To produce a Biosolid of exceptional quality, sludge is dewatered and mixed with a bulking agent
(usually wood chips) and allowed to degrade the organic materials in the mixture. The decomposing
materials produce heat. Heat is required to eliminate pathogens. After temperature and time
requirements are met testing is performed on the cured product for pathogens and metals, If they are
under EPA established limits the product can be separated into a potting soil like material and mulch
which can be utilized for soil amendment and mulch.

Funding for a Composting Program can come from existing revenues and can be implemented and
scaled to cause little or no impact on rates.

Initially a small startup composting facility would require;

e A pole barn or similar structure for storing dewatered sludge. A 54 ft. x 24 ft. building would be
required at a cost of $10,000 not including delivery and labor for construction. As an alternative
the barn located in the North West corner of the property could be modified for sludge storage.
The cost for may be similar due to potential repairs and adding a concrete floor.

® A concrete or asphalt compound for windrowing the compost. Estimated size and costs are
$35,000 for a 120 ft. x 60 ft. pad.

e Windrow turning can be performed manually with existing eguipment and the separating
processes can be contracted out until the process warrants the purchase of separating equipment,

A retention pond to hold runoff from the pad.  $21,100 (See attached Excel file)

228



Constructing this initial facility can be done in house for training and cross training of Public Works
personnel. It may also be possible to utilize Laborers Training Center students for some of this work

providing them experience and hands on training.

During the first year or two of composting a consultant can be retained to assist in developing a design/
build plan for expanding the program. The sludge taken to landfill would continue to be reduced by 10%
each year. At about the 50 to 60% mark it may be most effective to purchase a Windrow vehicle ($190,
000.00) and a mixer ($150,000.00). It is also at this point that the City will need to sell product to the
public to cover costs or some portion of the costs. When the facility reaches 80 to 100% sludge
composting the site could be utilizing a computer controlled/ monitored system to reduce cure times and
increase the efficiency of composting. This would include 3 to 5 concrete bays with underground
blowers, a screener for separating topsoil from compost and mulch and the computer system. Costs for

this last step should be approximately $700,000 to $1,000,000.

Cost-Benefit Analysis

A 20% reduction in Sludge hauling will reduce current expenditures in Sludge Hauling by $6,600.00
and Motor Fuels by $648.00. This is not a significant reduction in the overall cost of treatment but the
environmental benefits and expenses incurred by the Parks Department would be. There are also two
benefits not directly tied to cost savings. One is the treatment facility would gain 36 man hours for each
20% reduction. This is the time spent driving to the landfill. This time would be available for the
composting and other plant processes. The other is reducing potential liability by having the dump truck
on the road less often.

It is our intention to give the Parks Maintenance all of the product they can use. While speaking with
Ted Lange the Parks Maintenance Supervisor, he stated that he could probably use all the compost, soil,
and mulch produced and was excited about the prospect of possibly having these valuable resources
available. The Parks Department spends $6,000 on mulch and fertilizers, and Ted stated he could use
more but it was not in the budget.

The wastewater treatment facility averages 93 trips to the landfill annually. The annual cost of sludge
disposal is $39,400. Budgeted Sludge disposal fees are $33,000, annual fuel costs of $3,000 and 186
man hours at $3,400. Any man hours removed from driving would be utilized in the composting
operation. A 20% reduction in landfilling costs (not including man hours) is $7,200.

The initial startup cost is approximately $70,000. This cost can be reduced significantly by obtaining a
used skidsteer from the Transportation Department. Estimated man hours required to mix and build
windrows can be covered by the reduction in driving time. After the initial mixing and building of a
windrow, the man hours needed for monitoring and turning the windrow would be minimal.

Recommendation:

Beginning in FY 2017, budget for the initial startup of the program to supply enough volume to meet the
Parks Department needs and to have some small volume for other internal needs. This site and the
operational characteristics can be scaled up if and when it is desired. It must also be noted that the City
would be required to request a modification to the Operating permit to add composting to the sludge
disposal in addition to landfilling.

The initial goal is to reduce landfill waste by 20% reducing operational costs by $7,200. This cost
benefit alone may not warrant the program, but there are cost benefits to the Parks Department, citizens
in the form of brush drop off, and certainly an environmental benefit.

229



230



SECTION IX
C



232



R2016-29
A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT #1 WITH OLSSON ASSOCIATES,

INC. IN A NOT-TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $30,680 TO PROVIDE STORMWATER
PROGRAM SUPPORT.

WHEREAS, on March 22, of 2016 under Ordinance No. 2016-4187, the City Council approved
an On-Call Engineering Services Agreement with Olsson Associates, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, this task agreement with Olsson Associates, Inc. is necessary to provide stormwater
management support, including the evaluation of long-term maintenance costs, updates of priorities for
capital investment, and reorganization of City code related to stormwater; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends approving Task Agreement #1, herein attached and incorporated
as Exhibit A with Olsson Associates, Inc. in a not to exceed amount of $30,680 to provide stormwater

program support.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That this resolution approving Task Agreement #1, herein attached and

incorporated as Exhibit A in a not to exceed amount of $30,680 to provide stormwater program

support is hereby approved for purposes described above.
Section 2. The City Manager and Director of Public Works are authorized and directed to

execute the task agreement on behalf of the City.

Section 3. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and

approval.

Duly read and passed this day of , 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis

233



ATTEST:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI )
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS.
CITY OF BELTON )

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced

at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the _ 12th day of  July , 2016, and
adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held the day of , 2016 by the
following vote, to-wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:

NOES: COUNCILMEN:

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

234



RVICES
&5

CITY OF BELTON
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM

*a,
“Aranion

AGENDA DATE: July 12,2016 DIVISION: Engineering

COUNCIL: Regular Meeting [] Work Session ] Special Session

[ ] Ordinance | [X] Resolution [] ConsentItem | [ ] Change Order |[ | Motion
[ ] Agreement | [ | Discussion [] FYI/Update | [ | Presentation | [ | Both Readings

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION:
Staff is proposing a task agreement with Olsson Associates to accomplish several goals related to stormwater

management:

1) Update list maintenance needs from 2012 Stormwater Master Plan, both short-term and long-term

2) Update capital project list and revisit cost estimates and priorities
3) Review and better organize the UDC pertaining to stormwater requirements; make consistent with

Design and Construction Manual and standardized checklists
4) Develop checklists for stormwater studies and plans on private development projects

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:
At the July 12, 2016 regular City Council meeting, approve a resolution for Task Agreement #1 with Olsson

Associates for stormwater program support in the not-to-exceed amount of $30,680.00.

BACKGROUND:
Olsson Associates completed the City’s Stormwater Master Plan in 2012. Since that time, the City’s stormwater

infrastructure continues to deteriorate at levels far exceeding annual allocated funding. Stormwater
infrastructure maintenance is performed by the Transportation Division and is currently funded through the
same revenues used for street maintenance. Because street preservation is a priority and takes up much of the
available budget, limited funds (approximately $12,000 annually) have been available to maintain the City’s

stormwater infrastructure.

Since 2012 several additional maintenance and capital needs have been identified by staff. With approval of the
attached task agreement, Olsson Associates will lead staff in updating the stormwater capital project list and
maintenance needs list, as well as develop budgets for annual system-wide maintenance.

In addition, implementation of the City’s stormwater requirements on multiple projects over the last 4 years
have helped identify weaknesses in current code. Olsson will lead staff in coordinating various sections of City
code as well as the Design and Construction Manual, followed by development of standardized checklists for
stormwater study and plan review. Future presentations to Council regarding various aspects of the City’s
stormwater management program will follow in coming months, including as part of the City’s Capital

Improvement Program.

This task agreement would be funded through the Engineering line item in the Public Works budget (Fund 010-
2000). Staff is proposing two other engineering task agreements at the July 12, 2016 regular Council meeting
that would also be funded through the Engineering line item. City Council approved on-call engineering
contracts for these engineering firms at the March 22, 2016 Council meeting.

I:\Agenda Items\2016\071216\Engineering Task Agreements RS 74 _16\Olsson - Stormwater Management 7.12.16\1. Olsson TA #1
Stormwater Master Plan and Code Update Council Agenda Information Form RS 7.12.16.doc



Summary of FY2017 010-2000-400-3025 PW Engineering Line Item

Consultant Scope Amount Notes
FY17 Budget B 8136,083
(various) - $32,559 Already Expended
Olsson Associates | Stormwater sapport | $30,680 Requested 7/12
TranSystems Traffic data $10,798 Requested 7/12
Bumns & .
Mc’llg'gnn ell Composting ~$20,000 Requested 7/12
NEWCO Traffic to be balanced at end of
TranSystems Study +12,500 FY17
ey $54,546 Allocatefi fqr various future
Initiatives
IMPACT/ANALYSIS:
FINANCIAL IMPACT
Contractor: Olsson Associates
Amount of Request/Contract: | $ | 30,680
Amount Budgeted: $ | 136,000
Funding Source: 010-2000-400-3025 (Public Works — Engineering line item)
Additional Funds: | $ [ N/A
Funding Source: N/A
Encumbered: $ | N/A
Funds Remaining: $ | N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE;:
At the July 12, 2016 regular City Council meeting, approve a resolution for Task Agreement #1 with Olsson
Associates for stormwater program support in the not-to-exceed amount of $30,680.

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:
Resolution
Olsson Associates Task Agreement and Scope

I\Agenda Items\2016\071216\Engineering Task Agreements RS 344 16\Olsson - Stormwater Management 7.12.16\1. Olsson TA #1
Stormwater Master Plan and Code Update Council Agenda Information Form RS 7.12.16.doc



mhmlums
City of Belton — Public Works

Task Agreement

Contract: On-Call Engineering Services

Ordinance or Resolution:

Task Agreement Not 1

Funding Amount: Not to exceed $30,680
Funding Source: PW-Engineering

Date of Schedule of
Hourly Rates and Expenses: 2016

Purchase Order No: TBD

Project Title: Stormwater Program Support- Goals 1 & [I

Olsson Associates, Inc

Contractor/Consultant (including subs):

Division and Staff Project Manager:
Engineering- Zach Matteo

Project Management Manual reviewed: n/a

Attachments (Gantt Chart, etc.): n/a

See attachment

PROJECT Scope (can be in the form of an attachment):

Staff Signatures

Partner Signatures

Director of Public Works:
Jeff Fisher

City Manager:
Ron Trivitt

Project Manager:

Company Principal (if different):

Signature: Signature: Signature: Signature:
Date: Date: Date: Date:
Constructio Property Conceptual -
Project Type: Design Problem Surveying
n Acquisition
Solving
Project Discipline(s): | Transportation Planning Water Wastewater Stormwater | XXX

Report(s) Received: N/A

Work on File: Stormwater Master Plan, current code

This Task Agreement is subject to all the provisions included in approved contract for On-Call Engineering Services.

[Type text]

Attach scope of work, budget, and other supporting material.

237
Belton Contract Guidebook

00850-1 of 1



ATTACHMENT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task Agreement 1: Stormwater Program Support - Goals 1 and 2
Belton, MO

The following provides a description of services to be performed under the Task Agreement.
The purpose of this effort is to achieve Goals 1 and 2 on the attached “2016 Stormwater
Program Goals and Actions.”

Olsson staff members will complete the following steps in order to accomplish the goals of the
project:

Project Management:

Goal 1

Hold a Kickoff Meeting with the City and provide regular updates. The kickoff meeting
will review the project goals, schedule, lines of communication, and will facilitate
exchange of information and documentation. It is also assumed some of the tasks under
this Task Agreement will be best completed at city hall with Public Works staff to
efficiently compile and review appropriate information.

— Ordinance, Criteria and Development Processes:

Review and synchronize current city stormwater related ordinances (four assumed: UDC
Chapters 32, 34, 36 and City Code of Ordinances Chapter 11), design criteria/standards
(City supplements to APWA 2600 and 5600), and development guides (up to two). This
includes items related to floodplain management, stream buffers, stormwater detention,
water quality BMPs, erosion control, and standard conveyance systems. This scope
does not include full re-write of ordinances and criteria, but rather recommended edits
and modifications to current documents for ensuring consistency between documents.
Two to three meetings with staff are assumed.

Develop standardized checklists for stormwater studies and plans for private
development projects. Develop one list for internal staff use, another for external
distribution to developers/designers.

Goal 2 — Maintenance Planning and Budgeting:

1.

Review master plan and update maintenance recommendations to include estimated
short and long term costs. Meet with Public Works transportation and maintenance staff
to identify recently identified storm sewer maintenance problem areas. Develop
projected costs both for critical high-need areas as well as annual system-wide
maintenance. Provide the following deliverables:

a. Written memorandum of findings and recommendations

b. Updated GIS database indicating maintenance needs, severity and nature of
issues. Coordinate assistance by City GIS staff. Scope assumes approximately
50% of GIS updating effort by City staff.

c. Tabular cost estimates of initial and ongoing annual maintenance

d. Recommend lower cost projects on Capital Project list for possible inclusion on
Maintenance Project list; evaluate lower levels of flood protection for possible cost
savings.

238



ATTACHMENT A

2. Update capital improvement project prioritizations based on current conditions and
potential funding scenarios. Identify projects that have higher potential to receive outside
funding. Include CIP project updates from item 1.d above.

Schedule
Estimated completion time is 15 weeks from approval and notice to proceed.

Fee
The estimated hours and fees for this Task Order are outlined below:

Personnel and Avg. Hourly Rates
Proj. Mgr. Proj. GIS Admin. | Total Total
TASK DESCRIPTIONS Sr.Eng. Eng. Tech. Asst. | Hours Fees
$175 $120 $70 $55
Project Management & Meetings 10 6 16 $2,470
Goal 1:
1. Ordinance and Standards Coordination 20 24 4 48 $6,600
2. Standard Checklist Development 8 16 4 28 $3,540
Goal 2:
1. Severity Investigations, CIP review, recommendations 20 70 36 4 130 $14,640
2. CIP and Budgeting Updates 8 16 2 26 $3,430
TOTALS: 66 132 36 14 248 $30,680

239




240



SECTION IX
D



242



R2016-30

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT #18 WITH TRANSYSTEMS
CORPORATION IN A NOT-TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $10,798 TO DEVELOP A TRAFFIC
DATA MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND SUPPORT TRANSPORTATION PLANNING.

WHEREAS, on March 22, of 2016 under Ordinance No. 2016-4189, the City Council approved
an On-Call Engineering Services Agreement with TranSystems; and

WHEREAS, this task agreement with TranSystems Corporation is necessary to develop a traffic
data management system, to organize traffic data in a systematic way and efficiently provide data to

residents and developers; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends approving Task Agreement #18, herein attached and incorporated
as Exhibit A with TranSystems in a not to exceed amount of $10,798 to develop a traffic data

management system.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That this resolution approving Task Agreement #18, herein attached and

incorporated as Exhibit A in a not to exceed amount of $10,798 to provide stormwater program

support is hereby approved for purposes described above.
Section 2. The City Manager and Director of Public Works are authorized and directed to

execute the task agreement on behalf of the City.

Section 3. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and

approval.

Duly read and passed this day of , 2016.

Mayor Jeff Davis

243



ATTEST:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk -
of the City of Belton, Missouri

STATE OF MISSOURI )
COUNTY OF CASS ) SS.
CITY OF BELTON )

1, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced

at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 12th day of _ July , 2016, and
adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held the day of , 2016 by the
following vote, to-wit:

AYES: COUNCILMEN:

NOES: COUNCILMEN:

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN:

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk
of the City of Belton, Missouri

244



CITY OF BELTON
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM

PUBLIC WORKS

AGENDA DATE: July 12,2016 DIVISION: Engineering
COUNCIL: Regular Meeting [ ] Work Session ] Special Session

[ | Ordinance Resolution [] Consent Item | [ ] Change Order | | Motion
[ ] Agreement | [ | Discussion [ ] FYI/Update | [ ] Presentation [ ] Both Readings

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION:
Staff is proposing a task agreement with TranSystems to develop traffic data management systems. Traffic data

is currently not organized in a systematic way and makes responding to requests from residents and developers
inefficient. This scope includes reviewing current data on file throughout various sources, development of a GIS
database to better organize traffic data and easily provide to the public, and development of a program to

systematically set traffic counters proactively rather than reactively.

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION:
At the July 12, 2016 regular City Council meeting, approve a resolution for Task Agreement #18 with

TranSystems for traffic data management support in the not-to-exceed amount of $10,798.00.

BACKGROUND:
Staff envisions a OIS database of traffic data will be beneficial to multiple parties, including several City

departments, residents, property owners and developers.

This task agreement would be funded through the Engineering line item in the Public Works budget (Fund 010-
2000). Staff is proposing two other engineering task agreements at the July 12, 2016 regular Council meeting
that would also be funded through the Engineering line item. City Council approved on-call engineering
contracts for these engineering firms at the March 22, 2016 Council meeting.

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)

I\Agenda [tems\2016\071216\Engineering Task Agreements RUE.16\TranSystems - Traffic Data 7.12.16\1. TranSystems TA #18
Traffic Data Management Council Agenda Information Form RS 7.12.16.doc



Summary of FY2017 010-2000-400-3025 PW Engineering Line Item

Consultant Scope Amount Notes
FY17 Budget - $136,083
(various) - $32,559 Already Expended
Olsson Associates | Stormwater support $30,680 Requested 7/12
TranSystems Traffic data $10,798 Requested 7/12
Burns & 5
McDofmell Composting ~$20,000 Requested 7/12
NEWCO Traffic to be balanced at end of
TranSystems Study +12,500 FY17
Remaining §54,546 Allocate'd f(?r various future
initiatives
IMPACT/ANALYSIS:
FINANCIAL IMPACT
Contractor: TranSystems
Amount of Request/Contract: | § | 10,798
Amount Budgeted: $ | 136,000
Funding Source: 010-2000-400-3025 (Public Works — Engineering line item)
Additional Funds: | $ | N/A
Funding Source: N/A
Encumbered: $ | N/A
Funds Remaining: $ | N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE:
At the July 12, 2016 regular City Council meeting, approve a resolution for Task Agreement #18 with
TranSystems for traffic data management support in the not-to-exceed amount of $10,798.

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:
Resolution
TranSystems Task Agreement and Scope

I:\Agenda Items\2016\071216\Engineering Task Agreements RQ7% §2.16\TranSystems - Traffic Data 7.12. 16\1. TranSystems TA #18
Traffic Data Management Council Agenda Information Form RS 7.12.16.doc



EXHIBIT

A

e e

@

PUBLIC WORKS

City of Belton — Public Works

Task Agreement

Contracts On-Call Erigineeriitg Services

Otdinance or Resolution:

Task Agreement No: 18

Funding Amount: Not to exceed $10,798
Funding Source: PW-Engineering

Pate of Schedule of
Hourly Rates and Expenses: 2016

Purchase Order No: TBD

Project Title: Traffic Data Development and Managemerit

TranSystems Corporation

Contractor/Consultant (including subs):

Division and Staff Project Manager:
Engineering- Zach Matteo

Project Management Manual reviewed: n/a

Attachments (Gantt Chart, etc.): n/a

See attachment

PROJECT Scope (can be in the form of an attachment):

Staff Signatures

Partner Signatures

Director of Public Works: City Manager: Project Manager: Company Principal (if different):
Joff Fisher Ron Trivitt
Signature: Signature: Sigrature: Signatures
Date: Dates Date: Date:
Project Type: Desis Constructio Property ::;l:l:fnmal B Surveyin

} pe: gn n Acquisition s eying

olving

Project Discipline(s): | Transportation ;‘(X Planning )x(x Water Wastewater Stormwater

Report(s) Received: N/A

Work on File: data, current code

This Task Agreeinient is subject to all the provisions included in approved contract for On-Call Engineering Services.

[Type text]

Attach scope of work, budget, and other supporting material.

247

Belton Contract Guidsbook

00950-1 of 1



EXPERIENCE | Transportation

Scope of Services
Traffic Data Management

The project consists of preparing memorandums for the following:

[) Data review
a) City to provide folder of previous/historic traffic data. Organize data and determine if
additional information is needed.
b) Review data and develop ADT'’s, peak hour volumes, and collection date for each

dataset.

c) Review data available from Operation Green Light to determine how to ADT's may be
estimated.

d) Review MoDOT traffic volume map for joint locations.

e) Review previous TranSystems TEAP and traffic studies to supplement the City data.

2) Roadway Classification
a) Review the current comprehensive plan and recommend revisions to the roadway

classification map.
3) Traffic Count Map
a) ldentify roadways and locations for a traffic counts.
b) Recommend traffic count intervals.
4) GIS Dataset
a) Prepare a GIS dataset that includes datapoints for traffic data.
b) Assist the City GIS staff in integrating the traffic data and linking to the data stored on
the City of Belton’s Engineering server.

Please note that preparation for and attendance at meetings are not included in this proposal. If
requested by the Client, these services will be billed as Additional Services on a time and materials basis
in accordance with the general provisions of this Agreement.

SCHEDULE

TranSystems anticipates that the scope of services can be completed within six weeks of
receiving the executed contract and site plan.

COMPENSATION

As compensation for the performance of the above described Basic Services, TranSystems will
be reimbursed by the Client by payment of hourly rates plus expenses up to 2 maximum fee as
shown below. Invoices will be sent monthly and will be based on TranSystems’ total Services
actually completed as of the time of billing.

Maximum Fee $ 10,798.00

248



EXPERIENCE | Trnsportation

ASSUMPTIONS

This proposal and TranSystems’ agreement to perform the Services is based upon, and subject
to, the following assumptions:

|. No traffic counts are included.

2. No traffic modeling or projections are included.
3. City to host the final data and GIS interface.

249



| | | 1 | !

- d SyStB ms EXHIBIT B

BASIC DESIGN Dl_lTIES
WORKFORCE AND FEE ESTIMATE
ESTIMATE OF HOURS
Team members shown
on the right were used fo
|estimate the fee. The
aciual personnel may
vary. o o
Tech| GIS | Cler
TASK | #|ecalEC3| TH[1s2| A3 |14 |1S2| 13| S3| T3 | 2m | A3 |TOTAL
Task 1| a 2 1 3
Task 11 b 1 ]16] 24 4
Task 1 c| 1 4 8 13
Task 11 df 1 4 5
Task 11 e 2 4 6
Task 2 a1 4 121 1 18
Task 3] al] 1 2 12 15
Task 31 0b 2 2
Task 4 [ af 1 4 16 21
Task 4 | bl 21| 4 4 10
1 1 312440 1 ) N 68
2 2 1 4 ’”i1) o N 18
3 - | - 4124 . ’ . : W T
4 4 3 8 20 31
o 10 y

C:\Users\iwzimmermann\Desktop\New folder\beiton\2016-18 Traffic Data Management\2018-18 FEE - Traffic
2018 250 Data Management Page1



	071216_cc_agenda_packet-1
	071216_cc_agenda_packet-2

